United States Facific Fleet,
Cormander Marianas,

Guam, Varienas Islands,
Monday, December 1, 1947. ;

The com-lssion met at 9:10 a.m.
Present:

Reer Admirel Arthur G, Robinson, U. S. Navy.
lieutenent Colonel Henry K, Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United

Stetes Army,
Iieutenant Colomel Victor J, Gerbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United

States Army,
lieutenant Commander Breadner W, Lee, junior, U. S. lHaval Reserve,
Vejor Andrew I, Lyman, U. S. lerine Corps, members, and
Iieutenant Comrander Joserh A, Regan, U. S, Navy, and
lieutenent James P, Kenny, U, S. Havy, judge edvocatas.
Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Havy, reporter.
The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of rroceedings of the fourth day of the triel was read and
approved.

No witnesses not otherwiese connected with the triasl were present.

i The defense began.

| -
Yr. Hideo Fuwete, a connsel for the accused, resd e written opening
stetement in Jepanese, epnended hereto marked Ly P

| An interpreter resd a transletion in English, eppended hereto marked
"o.»

f Vr. Tekemi Kerasewe, a counsel for the sceused, reed & written raquﬂati
| for judicial notice in Japanese, appended hereto marked o

An interrreter reed an English translation of the request for judieclal
notice as follows:

1. Article 61, Articles for the Uovernment of the United States Navy:
"limitation of trials: offenses in generel.--lo person shall be tried by
court martial or otherwise punished for any offense, except as provided in
the following erticle, which appears +o heve been comnmitted more than two
yeare before the iseuing of the order for such triasl or punishment, unless
by resson of having absented himself, or of some other manifest impediment
he shall not have been amensble to justlce within that period. (R.8.,
sect. 1684, art, 61; Feb. 25, 1695 c. 128, 28 Stet. 680)."

2, The fact thet Palau Islands were mandated to Japan on 17 February
1920 and occupied until 2 September 1945.

3, The Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States:
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| from the plece of trial or heering, or when it anpears to the satisfection

" AVENDMENT V--CAPITAL CRIVES; DUE FROCESS.

"No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous
erime, unless on e presentment of indictment of s Grand Jury, except in
cases srising in the land or neval forcee, or in the ¥ilitie, when in actual
gervice in time of War or public denger; nor shall any person be subject for
the seme offence to be twice put in jeoperdy of life or limbj nor ghell be
compelled in any criminal case to be & witness egeinst himself, nor be de-
prived of 1ife, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor shall
privete property be taken for public use, without just compensation.”

L. Articles 60 and 63, Geneve Convention, 27 July 1929: o
"Article 60, At the opening of a judicial proceeding directed against
a prisoner of wer the detaining power ghal) sdvise the representative of the
protecting power thereof as soon &3 possible and alwaye before the date set
for the opening of the triel...."

"irticle 63. Sentence may be pronounced egainst a priesoner of war only
by the same courts end according to the seme procedure as in the case of per-q
sone belonging to the armed forces of the detaining power."

5, The fect that neither Ttaly nor Bulgarie have ratified the Hague
Convention of 1907.

6. Articles of Ver 25 and 38:
"Sec., 1496. Depositions: when edmissible (Article 25.) 4 duly authens
ticated deposition teken upon reasonable notice to the opposite party may be
reed in evidence bhefore eny militar  court or commission in any case not
capital, or in any proceeding before a court of inquiry or a military board,
if such deposition be taken when the witnese resides, is found, or ie about
to go beyond the State, Territory, or district in whieh the court, commis-

gion, or board is ordered to sit or beyocnd the disteance of one hundred miles

of the court, commiseion, boerd, or arpointing euthority thet the witness,
by resson of age, sickness, bodily infirmity, imprisonment, or ogther reason-
able cause, is unable to appear and testify in person st the place of trial
or hearing; Provided, That testimony by deposition may be edduced for the
defense in capital ceses. (Jume /4, 1920, c. 227, subchepter II, section 1,
41 Stat. 792.)"

nSec, 1509. President may prescribe rules (article 38). The President
may, by regulations, which he may modify from time to time, prescribe the
procedure, including modes of proof, in cases before courts-martial, courte
of inguiry, military commissions, and other milltary tribunsls, which regu-
lations shall, in so far as he shall deem precticable, apply the rules of
evidence generally recognized in the triel of criminal cases 1in the distriet
courts of the United Stetes: Provided, Thet nothing econtrary to or incon-
sistent with these articles shell be so prescribed: Provided further, That
all rules made in pursusnce of this article shall be laid before the Con-
graa; annually. (June 4, 1920, c. 227. subchepter II, Section 1, 41 Stat.
794 )"

7. Section 454, Naval Courts and Boards:

n,5,, Limitatlion when & deposition is used, == In any cacse where &8
deposition 1s used in evidence by the prosecution by reason of the fact
thet orel testlimony can not be obtained, as authorized by article 68, A,G.N§,
the meximum pundshment which mey be imposed shell not extend to death or to
imprisonment or confinement for more than one year.
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"Also, as & matter of policy, where a deposition hae been used by the
prosecution in the trial of e commiseioned or warrent officer, the meximum
punishment adjudged should not extend to dismissal.

WThese 1imitations apply to a1l cases, whether or not the trial ie for
an offence for which a limitetion is otherwise prescribed. Where & deposi-
tion doees not enter into proof of all the specificetlons, the limitation
appliee only to those epecifications into which it enters."

8. Regulations governing Vilitary Iife (November &, 1943, Army ordi-

| nance No. 16).

nG Pri e.
5. Mlitery discipline is the life-blood of the militery forces,

| therefore military ciseipline must dlways be rromoted in the military forces.

The proof of military discipline being rromoted is exemplified in that the
superiore end the subordinates lay the true principle of the militery force
in their hesrts regardlese of time or place, that military duty is executed
with zeal and that orders are carried out without fail. Obedience is an
essential factor in order to maintein rilitery diecipline; therefore it is
vital that superiors ere obeyed with heart and soul, end that their orders
ere implicitly carried out so s to heve it become & hebit, And then,

| obedience should flow out of the spirit of loyalty end fostered to the ex=-

tent thet even under the denseet showers of bullete one secrifices his 1ife

for his country and obeys the cormand of his superior most feithfully. And

in order to realize the foregoing, the superiors themselves rust obey orders
and set en example of obedlence.

"Chapter II, Obedience.

"o, 9. The obedience ol a subordinete to cne's immediate guperior
must in sll occasticne be rost strict.

Mio. 10. The way of obedience must be sdhered to between the senlor
superiors in direct line or those who are not in the relation of comrend and
the newly appointed subordinates as far ag their duties ellow.

"No. 11. Orders must be obeyed respectfully and carried out immedi-
ately. On any occesion, to argue upon its propriety or to question its
cause, reeson and the like is not allowed. When the newly received orders
end the previcus cnes VAry, ratiently state this and requeet instructlon.

"o, 12. To exprese to the superiors with & sincere feeling of essist-
ing onee superior points which one is fully convinced will benefit the armed
forces 1s the duty of all military personnel, perticularly the officer. Imn
expreseing this, however, it is imperative thet it is done in an orderly
menner. Moreover, even if one differs in opinion with the matters already
decided by the superior, one rust effsce oneself end endeavour to promote
the intention of the superior with heart and soul.

9, Japanese Aruy Criminel Code, Chapter 4, Crimes of resisting Orders.

Nprticle 57. One who resists the superior officer's orders or who is
not suberdinate to them, shell he condemned to such penalties es follows:

1. In the fece of the enemy, he shell be condemned to death or & 1life
term or above ten Yyeers confinement.

2. In wer times or in an area under martial law, from above one year
to ten years' confinement.

2, In other cases, under five years' confinement.®

i i it
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The judge advocate objected to the comriseion taking judicial notice of |
jtems eight and nine as stated in the request of the sccused. '

The comrisslon was cleared,

The comriesion was opened and 1]l parties to the trial entered. The
commission ennounced that it would tele judicial notice cof sll items with the
s - | exceptions of iteme elght and nine.

A witness for the defense entered and wes duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate:

1a {. State your name enéd former rank.
|A, Tenaka, Vasao, first lieutenant, Imperial Japenese Army Reserve.

2. Q. If you recognize the accused, stete their nemes snd former ranks.

: The witness correctly identified all of the accused with the exeception qﬁ'dﬁht
-lTaunkiyn, Naohiko, whor he wae unsble to identify.

Examined by the mccusged:

3. Q. VYhen did you enter the Japenese ermy?
A, I was conscripted into the ermy on July 29, 1941.

F AR 4. Heve wou had duty on Feleu Islends?
A, I have,

5. Q. To what unit did you belong?
| A, Koichi Anti-aireraft Tnit.

| 6. 4. Fleese explain your post.
A, Company Commender of the Third Company of the Folchi Unit.

7. Q. Did you see a prisoner eround lay of 19452
A, I did.

| 8. Q. Where did you see this prisoner?
A, JNaval Cemetery at Koror.

9., Q. Explein to the commission hor you came to Bee thile prisoner at this
naval cemetery.

A. Around 6 o'clock in the morming on the desy of the execution, a runner
from the headquarters came to me and relayed an order to dig a grave et the
| Naval Cemetery. I did not know the reason for it end I did not think the
runner would know the resson, so I did not msk him, I changed my clothes
end went to the headquarters, When I went to the heedquarters, I did not
meet an officer, but I met one non-commissioned officer who was doing the
work of an adjutant, working in the office, eo I esked this non=commiseioned
officer and he told me & prisoner was to be executed by the orders of Com-
mending Officer Incue, and the comranding offlcer had ordered that the exe-
cution wonld teke place at 0900, "so have Tanaka go to the scene with hise
men,” This non-commissioned officer said that he would not give any further)
orders concerning thie because he had alreedy told me.
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0. Q. Whet happened then?

. Around 8:30 I hed ell my ren vho were not on duty go to the scene and
[Ebout ten minutes after we arrived, Katzuyeme end his men ceme to the scene,
ot in formation but dispersed. About five minutes after this the men of the
eadquarters and commending officer of the headquarters end the prisoner came.

1. Q. After the prieoner came, what heppened?

. After the prisoner came with the comrending officer, Ketsuyama tock the
commend of the men at the scene and seluted Koichi, After this Kolchi made a
speech to all of us who were acsembled there.

12. Q. Whet did he say in thie speach?

A, As it wes a long time ago, T do not remerber word for word of this
speech, but the general meaning was &8 follows: "The prisoner is to be cut
by the orders of Divieion Commander Inoue. By this, each unit end men should
[bolster their spirit and Tight courapeously.”

The witness was duly warned.

. The commission then, at 10:20 a.m., tock & recess until 10:%5 a.m., at
vhich time it reconvened.

Present: A1l the members, the judge acvocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters. ;

Stewert R, Smith, yeoman rirst clase, U, 8. Navy, reporter.
Yo witnessee not otherwise connected with the trisl were present.

Tenska, Vesao, the witnees under examination when the recess was teken,
entered. He wag werned that the omth previously taken wes gt111 binding,

end continued his testimony.
(Exeminetion continued.)

113. G. TWhat happened after thie speech was glven?

A, After this speech the men were diemdssed and all the officers gathered
near the prisoner. At that time Ceptein Eoichi seld to Cnose to tell the
prisoner that he wes going to be executed by orders, OUnose gaid something
to the rrisoner in English and I suppose he told the nrisoner what Captain

Koichi told Cnose to say.

14. Q. Then what happened?
A, We put the men around at the grave and the officers and the prisoner

went to the grave, I saw them go and then went beck to ry barracks to get
sone clgarettes. As the barracks was ebout fifty meters from this scene, I
ceme back ebout five or ten miputes later and the execution was elreedy

perfnrmnd 5

15. Q. What did you see when you came to the scene again?

L. Then T arrived at the scene the second time the execution was over and

I the prisoner was lying prone in the hole. As it is a cusiom in Japen for
the person closest to the deceased to throw earth on the grave first, by hand

or by shovel, first Ceptain Keichl threw three shovele of earth on the grave

ahd then the other officers followed suit and we buried the prisoner.
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16. Q. TWhat happened after you finished throwing esrth on the grave?

A, Ketsuyama placed a rock about one and one=helf feet in diameter on the
greve es @ temporery grave merk. Then we put the bottle and dishes on the 7%
grave; and also in the bottle we pleced flowere. Te also placed & candle and
we sprinkled weter on the grave and on the rock, aend then under the command
of Katsuyame everybody et the scene saluted the grave.

17. Q. Did you nlece eny inscription on the grave marker?

A. After everyone ssluted the grave to conscle the deceased, the men were
dispersed and then Ceptain Koichl seid to me to have a cross made by the

; ] Tenake Unit and later clean the grave. I went back to the barrecks with my
men and ordered two soldiers who were carpenters to meke the croes, 4s I did
not ¥now the nere of this prisoner I had a soldier with the best handwriting
write on the crgss: "The grave of an American cfficer flyer." And then we | Fx
placed the cross on the grave end we cleened the grave. )

18. Q. Before thie nrisoner was executed, did you talk to anyone about the - 2
prisoner? |
A. About two or three deys before this, when I met Ceptain Foichi, Cantain i
Koichi seid to me, "I received a telephone cell from the Dol !nit telling me
that the division heedquarters will send a rrisoner to the Kolehi Unit and
that they want the prisoner cut by them. Vhat do.you think about this? At |
thet time Colonel Doi seid thet he hed refused this but asked me, Captain |
Koichi, if I did not went to do so., 1 refused.” At this time Captrin Koichl
asked me what I thought ebout it. I seid to Cepteln Koichi, "I approve your
opinion. Tt is best to refuse,” |
|

19, 4. Other then the above, do you know enything else sbout this prisoner?
A. Before T became rdjutant to Koichl in June, when I put the ecross on the i
grave end I hed grass placed over the grave, but when T beceme adjutant |
Ceptein Koichi ordered me to get = long grass. It is e Koreen gress which |
was at the school ground, so I had this long grass planted on the grave. f
After this I know that Captein Koichi visited the grave two or three times
| without being seen by anyone. le tried to conceel the fect thet he visited
| the greve. He did not tell me this tut T know sbout it. I also know that
Ketsuyame visited the greave. On the first of September when we went from 1
Koror to Debelthuap, T wes ordered agein by Ceptein Koiehi to clean the grave,
so T went end cleaned the grave and placed some flowers on the grave. At
this tire, I know thet he, Captein Kolchi, went to visit the grave, also,
After thet, es I went to Debelthuap, I did not know what happened.

20, Q. Whet wes the generasl reputation of Ceptain Koichd?

A, He wes very good to his men ancd he was very kindhearted, Thile I was
in the arm-, thet is five years, I did not see & ¥indhearted officer like
Koichi, I could nmot believe thet Ceptein Koichi wes en officer who graduated
from the mcedemy. I cannot state right off et rresent but he did not strike
his men or meke them do hard work. fle wee very quiet and a very warmhearted

person,

The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine this witness.
The commigsion did not desire to examine this witness.
The witness seid thet he had nothing further to state.

The witness was duly werned and withdrew.

The commission then, at 11:25 a.m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, tomorrow,
Tuesday, December 2, 1947.
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SIXTH DAY

United States Facific fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
Tueaday, December 2, 1947,

: The commission met at 9 a.m,

Prasant:

- Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U, 8. Navy,
! Lieutenant Colonel Hemry K, Hoscoe, Coamst Artillery Corps, United
|Statea Army,
Licutenant Colonel Victor J, Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,
Lieutenant Commander Bradner ¥, Lee, junior, U, 3, Naval Reserve,
Major Andrew I, Lyman, U, 3, Harine Corps, membsrs, and
Lisutenant Cormander Joseph 4, Regan, U, S, Navy, and
Lieutenant James F, Kenny, U. 8, llavy, judge advocates, 2
Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first claes, U, S, Navy, reporter. 1
The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

The reeord of nroceedings of the [ifth day of the trial was read and
approved,

No witresses not otherwlse connected with the trlal were present,

Koichi, Hiroce, one of the accused, was, at his ovn request, duly sworn
|ae a witness in his own behelf,

i
|
|
|

Exanlned by the judge advocate:
|1. §. Are you an accused in this casel
| L
-hl 188, |
|
Zxamined by Lthe accused:

2a Q. ¥Fhen dic you enter the Japanese Armyl
A, I entered the military academy in November, 1922, and was graduated from
that academy on July 17, 1941,

3. Qe Did you ever serve om Koror Island, Palau Islands?
A, Yes.

4e Qs From when to when did you serve on Koror Island?
A, I served on Koror from November 1944 until the end of the war.

5 Q. Vhat was your rank at this time?
A. First T vas a first lieutenant and in the middle of March 1945 1 was
promoted to the rank of captain,

6. Q. What was your duty while you were serving at Koror?
A, I was a commanding officer of the Frovisicnal Anti=alreraft Unit attacheq
to the l4ith Diviasion, J '

7. Q. Did you see any prisoner vhile you were serving on Koror?
A, Yes, I did,




8. Q. When did you see this rrisoner?
A, I recell it being in the riddle of Fay, 1945.

9. Q. Do you recall the nsme of this rnrisoner?
A. I do. Vis neme is Faufman, second lieutenant, army aviaetor.

10. Q. Do you know what happened to this prisoner?
| l'-al-i I !‘.‘D.

11. Q. What happened to him?
| 4. e wes finelly executed,

12, Q. Do you ¥now how he came to he executed?
.".’" I do.

i
|13. Q. Please explein to the commiesion how he care to be executed,

. I shell explain., About helf a month prior to the middle of lay, 1945,
ny poeition wae destroyed by the Americen eir relds, Therefore ry nositions
and my men susteined grect dorage. At thie time T wes ordering on one hand
| to repair the destroyed rosition end on the other hand I wee meking opere-

| tionel rlens for the future. Just at thie time, Colonel Doi celled me on the|
| phone end releyed me the following meseare; he seld, "T" e division hesd=
|quarters wents to hrve your unit execute the evistor which the Ietsuyeme Unit
|hed shot down in the previous battle. I, Doi, em opnosed to it but what do
|you think gbout trigi®

14. 4. Then you were ssked shout Yyour opinion by Colonel Doi, what did you
reply to this?

A, T seid to him, "The spirit of the men would not be bolstered by killing
|ona nrisoner, An opposite phenomens mipht be crused by this an® the spirit
{(wil) Le lowered. MNoreover, it is = pity to ki1l e non=resisting prisoner
jand if we do this we vill lose 211 sense of reenonaibility. It is not worth
|doing. l'oreover, we are gtill fighting end there is no time end we esrnot
tell when there is going to be = big alr reid and we have no time., I vant you
to refuse this definitely for me." This is what T releyed to Colonel Dod.

[15. Q. What did you do then?

lA. Colonel Doi then said to re, "I definitely agree with vou end I will
ﬁdafinjtviy refuse this for you.,"

|

ilﬂ. Qs Thet did you do then?

e A short time elepsed, sbout one dey, and during this period I recell
recelving one or two telephone celles from Colonel Dol to the seme effect. 4nd
reach time I told Dol my reesons and asked him to definitely refuse this to
headquerters,

T« Q. Vhat d18 you do then?

A, Each time Colonel Doi said that he would relay definitely ry refusal to
eadquarters end then there was e lest phone call in which Colonel Doi
elayed the following mesesge: "I relayed your definite opposition to the
eadguarters without feil but the headquerters are still insisting upon
elivering the prisoner and having him executed, They are saying that they
111 have Fatsuyama do it. Relay this to Ketsuyama,"

8. Q. Did you relay what you heard from Doi to Katsuysma?
o I immedietely called Katsuyema by phone end relayed 'to Katsuyame the
rders of the division,
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19. Q. That was Katsuyama's answer to thia?
A, Katsuyama said that he was definitely egainst it and wanted it %o be
refused.

20, Q. Did you relay to amyone that Katsuyama was against it}
A, Yes, I did, I told Colonel Dol that Katsuyama and also I were against
it and wanted this to be relayed to headquarters without fail,

21, Q. Vhat did you do then?

A, Just at this time I had received orders from Staff Officer Nakagawa of
division headguarters to come over to headquarters to discuss matters concerns
ing the repairing of the position and also about operation plans,

22, Q. Then what?

A, Just before leaving for the division headquarters, I told Katsuysma that
if there was any talk raised concerning the prisoner I will refuse it,
Kateuyama asked me to have it done for him,

23, Q. You have testified that you received two or three calls from Doi,
How much time elapsed between the Tirst phone call you received from Dol and
the last phone call?

A, I do not recall it very definitely but it was two or three days.

24, Q. Did you go to division headquarters?
A, T did.

|25, Q. Vhat happened when you got to division headquarters?
A, T immediately went into conference with Staff Officer Nakagawa uﬂnunrnin#
Ioparltionu. After this conference was over, Nakagawa said to me, "You shall
| come with me to the division commender and explain to him about the battle
' condition, the condition of damage, and also about the plans of the division
which I have just explained to you." I accompanied Nakagawa and then went.

|
|26. Q. That did you do then?

A, Just before going in front of the division commander, Nakagawa said to
me, "When you go before the division commander you must not express your
opinion concerming the plans of the division which I have indicated to you in
the conference, You must not express your opinion, The division commander,
once he has decided upon & point, is not e man to change it," He repeatedly
cautioned me about this,

27. Q. What happened when you went in front of this divielon commander?

A, BStaff Officer Nakagawa and I went in front of the division commander and
I was told to explaim about the battle condition, the deamage of the positiom
and also about the future battle plans drawn up by the division, Just when I
got to explain about the damsge sustained by the Katsuyama Unit,” the divisiom
commander asked me about the spirit of the Estsuyama Unit, I repllied to him,
saylng that the spirit wes boletered and it was very excellent, The divisiom
commander still seemed to be worried about this and he said, "The priscner
that Katsuyama shot dowm the other day will be delivered to you in order to
bolster the morale of the anti-aireraft umit, Have Kateuyama execute him,®

23, Q. TWhen the division commander gave you this order to have the prisoner
axecuted, did he give you any further instruetions?

A, Yes, he did, He said to me, "Perform this executlion right in the middle
of the Katsuyama position and have many men assembled and returm the belong=
ings of the prisoner to him when executing.” Besides this he gave me other

detailed cautions but I have forgottem them,
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29. Q. With regard to the prisoner's belongings, did the division commander
glve you any other imstructions?

A, Yes, he did, As I did not clearly get the last worde of the commanding
officer, I asked him to repeat it and he sald, "I want you to return the
prisoner's belongings to him and I don't want you to take it yourself." 1
replied to this, "I just asked you this because I didn't quite get you the
first time, and I didn't mean I was going to take it.,"

30, Q. When you were ordered to perform this exscution by the division
commander, did you say amything to this?

A. I was thinking to refuse this, My thoughts were to definitely oppose
this but when I was told this face to face by the supreme commander of Faleu
I, then being just a captain and in front of him Just like a child, ecould not
oppose this anymors, Furthermore, I had kmown before that the division com-
mender, Inoue, was & man that once he sald something would never change his
decision and, moreover, he said this in spite of his kmowing that Katsuyama
and T had ovrosed this from time to time, In spite of all this, he told me
this so I could not refuse this any longer.

31, Q. Then you did not say amything?
Ao I 4id not,

32, Q. VWhen the prisoner was deliverei to you, did the commanding officer
say anything else besides the execution?
A, I do not understand what the counsel nmeans,

33, Q. When the commanding officer ordered you to execute the prisoner, did
he give you any other order besides this execution order?
A, He just gave me orders to execute the prisoner,

34. Q. Did the commanding general order you to keep the prisoner in safe

custody?
A, No, he did mot, He just ordered me to kill the prisomer.

35, Q. Vhen the commander gave you this order, did Staff Officer Nakagawa
hear this toco?

A, Yes, he was right beside me end listening., i'hether he was listening to
this particular point or not I do mot know,

36, Q. VWhat happened then?

A. Then we withdrew.
|

|37. Q. Thenm what?

A, Just at this time when I withdrew from the room, I was in sort of a ddlyb
and I remember saying the following to Staff Officer Nakagawa, "The higher
peopls, it seems to me, have mo eye for looking into the future." To this
Nakagawa replied to me, "I understand your feeling very well, I sgree with
you," and he showed a very sympathetic attitude, T have confidemce in the
character of Hakagawa,

78, Q. That do you mean whem you say, "the higher pecple have no eye to
look imto the future?®

l This question was objected to by the judge advocate om the ground that if
was irrelevant and immaterial,
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The accused replied,
The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained,

The commission then, at 10:02 e.m., took a recess until 10:30 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpretera.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman firat class, U, 5, Navy, reporter.
| No wltnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

| Rolchl, Hlroe, the witness under sxamination when the recess vas taken
entered., He was warned that the oeth previously talen was still binding, and
icontinuud his teatimomy,

(Examination continued),

39, Q. After you withdrew from the presence of the division commander, what
did you do then?
A. I returned to the pler at Bebelthuap Island.

40, Q. Vhaet happened there?
A, Thile I wae waiting for the boat that night at the pler, I met Second
Lieutenant Cnose and Sergeant Major Tsuchiva escorting a prisoner.

-‘:bli &« Then what?
A. Then we boarded a motor boat and then returned to my unit at Koror and
came back to my quarters.

42« Qs That happened after you returned to your quarters?
A. I then called up Katsuyama by phone.

£3. Q. That 414 you say in this phone call?

A. I relayed the order of the division commander and told him that the
exscution would taks place at 7 o'cloek the mext morning at the cemetery om
the hill,

44e Q. At this time, did you tell Katsuyama that Ketsuyema was going to do
the execution?
|A: Tea, T did.

45. Q. That 4aid Katsuynﬁa say to this?
A, He sald, "Aa 1t 1s the striect order of the division commander, 1t cannot
be helped,"

46, Q. Did Katsuyama come to your quarters that night?
A He did not,

\IkT. Q. What happened then?
A. Then I went to bed.

48. Q. Then what happened?
A. §he next morning T went to the cemetery on the hill,
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!division commander and then I told the men that the priscner was going to be

A, Then I thought that it would not be proper to execute the prisoner with-

A. Then I had the prigpner led to the hole which had been already dug and

49. Q. Vhat happened on this hill?
A. At the cemetery, all the men were assembled and were waiting for me,

50, Q. And then what?
A. The men saluted me. Then I relayed the substance of the orders of the

exscuted by the order of the division commander. I alsc said to them to com=
ply with the wishes of the commanding general and work with all your might
and exert every effort im battle,

£l, Q. Then what?

out telling him the reason so I told Second Lieutenant Onose to tell the
prisoner about it,

52« Qe What happened then?

had him sit, Then I had Katsuyama execute the prisoner. Just before this,
the prisoner vas given a cigarette and was aleo blindfolded.

53« Q. UThat happened after this?

A, After fixing the corpse of the prisoner, I, first of all, covered two or
three spades of earth, After that the officers covered earth in order of
their senlority, then the men covered it up and on top of the earth a stone
was placed, Flowers were offered and a cup of water, I do not know whether
it was a candle or some sort of incense, tut this was offered,

£4e Q. Then what?
A, After this we fixed the grave so 1t resembled the other graves that were
nearby and with my command I had all the men there offer a2 silent prayer,

!:?1(:‘

55. Q. Then what?

After the silent prayer was offered, the ceremony was concluded in a wery
ordely manner. T later had First Lieutenant Tenaks make & grave marker and
erect it,

|

564 Q. Did rirst Lieutensnt Tanaka carry out your orders? '
A. Yes, he did, The next day when I and an orderly, who I had carry a bunech
of flowers, visited the grave I found a crose = a grave marker - erected
there., On the face of this grave marker it was written, "The grave of an

American officer airman,®

57« Q. You testified that you ordered Katsuyama to execute, Did you order
anyone besides Katsuyama to execute?
A,  Ne,

58, Q. ¥as Onose your direct subordinate?

A. No, Cnose was not my subordinate,

59. Qe How about Tsuchiya?
A, Tsuchiya also was not my subordinate.

60, Q. Did you, at any time, order Tsuchiya or Onose to do the execution?
A, No, I did not order Tsuchiya or Onose to execute,
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Cross-examined by the judge advocate:

61, Q. In the cemetery at the scene of the executicn, were you the senior
officer present?

A, IQﬂ-

62, Q. Did you actually tell Katsuyama when to execute the prisoner?
A, Yes, I did, The next morning at 7 o'clock.

63. Q. At the scene, did you tell him when to use his sword cn the prisoneri
A, TYes, I did,

64. Q. At the scene did anyone show “atsuyama how to use his sword?
4. Onose showed Katsuyama,

. The accused moved that thils answer be stricken on the ground that the
i!accusnd was teatifylng agalnst a co-defendant.

| The judge advocate replied,
|
I The commission anncunced that the motion was denled,

({65, Q. When was it decided that Eatsuyama was to carry out this execution?
A« When I was in the presence of the divisicn commander it .mas decided that
| Katsuyama was to carry out the execution.

|

lﬁﬁ. Q. Isn't it a fact that you, yourself, decided that Katsuyama was to
carry out this executicn?
A, lNo,

I
|
|6T. J« Isn't it a fact that before you went to headquarters, you conferred
|with Katsuyama concerning the execution and he told you that he would carry
jout the execution?
|A. Mo,

5 5 bl
|68. Q. Do you recall, on August 19, 1947, having written down gomething 7
|contrary to what you have just testified to? "
A+ Do you mean conflicting with what I have just testifled?

' 169, Q. Yes,
' There ia no contradietion,

70, Q. Is this statement in your own handwriting? (The judge advocate
produced a document written in Japanese.)
A, Yes, it ia.

| Tl. Q. Do you recall writing down in that statement the following,

i "Therefore, I consulted with my nearby adjutant and Katsuyama, bore in mind
f Jjust in case this could not be refused if the decision was already made by
, the higher authority, that informed them, #I'1l do my best asking Commander o
| Doi to refuse this matter, However, if it was ordered, what would you dot?'
Then Eatauyama said '"If it was decided to be an order I, as the last assigned
company commander, will carry out.' Therefore, I bore the worst in my mind I
I asked Commander Dol to refuse this matter to the utmest to the Division
headquarters.” Do you recall having written that statement in your own
handwriting?

A, In the first statement I wrote this., I wrote this, but this is a
! mistake,
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= 72, Q. Other than Katsuyama, did you ever request any of your other subord-
inate officers to carry out this execution?
A, No. Absclutely not,

73« Q. Do you recall heving made a telephone call to Lieutenant Hameishi
and asking him to carry cut the execution?

This guesation wae objected to by the accused on the grounds that it was
irrelevant, immaterial, and teyond the scope of the direct ecmmination,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission ennounced that the objection was not sustalned,
The question was repcated.
A, There i1s no such faot,

’ T4y Ga« Do you recall having made thls request to Lieutenant Haneishl and
being refused by him becuuse he vas on & different lsland from Koror?

This question wes objected to by the accused on the ground that it wae
irrelevant and immaterial,

The Jjudge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objectlion vae not sustained.
The guestion was repeated.

A. There 1s no such thing.

75« Q.+ Tas Lieutenant Hanelshl a subordinate of yours? |
j-., Yﬁﬁ-. :

76, §. Vas he serving under your command in May of 19457 ;
A, Yes,

77« Q. Now, you sald that the men assembled at the cemetery, Vho assembled

these men at the cematery? i
4, First Lieutenant Tanaka assgembled them, I recall it being First

Lisutenant Tanaka but there was a sergeant major in place of Tanaka and I [uve 5??: 1
another recollection that it was this pergeant major. My recocllection ies very

faint and I cannot say this definitely,

7. Q. At any time, when you were in the presence of Genersl Inouse, did you
tell him you were oponlsed tc carrying out the executlon of this priscner?
A, I did mot oppose it in the presence of the general. f

Reexamined by the accused:

M. Q. You replied in the cross-examinstion that it was Unope who showed
Katsuyana how to cut, Wasn't it that Onose coached Katsuyangabout his foot- VA

ing?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that 1
was leading,
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The accused withdrew the guestion.

80. Q. Describe what OUnose actually showed Ketsuyama at the scene.
A. Katsuyema was far back from the vrisoner so Onose instructed him to go
closer to him so that he would mot fall in cutting.

Bl. Q. You testified that when you received the order to execute from the
division commander you dif€ not refuse, Why did you not refuse?

A. Then I, who had at that time just become a captain and was loocked upon aj
'a child, had come face to face with a person who had this big title of Suprem
(Commander of Falau, I had the intention to oprose it all the way but when I
‘came face to face with him I was not able to say it. loreover the commanding
| general mew that Kateuyama and I ooposed this by the phone call T made to
Dol and in spite of his knowing this he ordered me, Furthermores,:the
commanding general, once he had made & declsion on a matter was & man to have
this order carried out. Thia was his principle so I was afrald to oppose to
him and I had my face dovn and was not able to say anything,

B2. Q. You were just shovm by the judge advocate a statement you said you
hed written in August and you tesatified thet it was a mistake and that there
was an error in this, How did you come tc write thlas atatement?

A. Then I wrote this two and one-half ysars had slready elapsed from the
time of the incident and I had elmost forgot them about it. Then I was told
by the investigators that I, on my owmn, hacd Katsuyame do it and then I was alsc
told that this was done with »yr will, I had no recollection of this and my
will had not at any time figured in this incident. Therefore, my recollection
concerning the incident at that time was bad and I was suddenly asked this so
I thought of stating that &1l the company commanders had assembled and decided
on this and this is how my first statement was made,

83, Q. You have tostified that it was the order of the division commander
to have Katsuyama do 1t., Thy didn't you write in the statement that it was
the order o” the commanding general to do 1it?

A., I did not want to say that I had recelwed orders from the division com-
mander, I wanted to conceal it and I wanted to write the statement 1n as
lbrief a manner as 4 could so I just wrcte anti-airereft unit, After finding
out that I had to write everything that I had to write, 1t was very difficult
for me, but I stated that it was the order of the commanding general,

B4, Q. Tas it the general's orders that Katsuyama do the axecution?
A. Yes.

85, Q. Although you were the senior officer at the scene of the execution,
could you have stopped the execution?
As No, I ecould not.

86, Q. Could you refuse to carry out the general's orders to execute the
prisoner?

This question was objected to by the Judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied,




The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained,

87. Q. Did you actually and personally behead the prisoner?
A. Do you mean that I, myself, took the sword?

g8, Q. Yesa.
A, No, I did not,

89. Q. This statement of August 19, 1947, under what elrcumstances were
you required to write the statement?

A. I was requested to come to the Meiji Bullding and I vent there and then
suddenly the invest!gator told me to write the truth of this incident, I was

requested to write this in a very short time so I did not have emough time to
make it all inelusive,

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., took a recess until 2 p,m., at which
time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first class, U, 8. Navy, reporter,

No witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trlial were present,

Kolchi, Hiroe, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,
entered, He was warned that the cath previcusly taken was still binding, and
continued his testimony.

(Reexamination continued,)
90, Q. After you had finished this statement of August 19th did you ewver
verify it? TVas it read back to you and verified by you?
A, HNo, it was not.

G1. Q. ¥ho was present when you wrote this statement?
A, Investigator Yckol was present.

92. Q. Did you aver order Lieutenant Haneishi to execute this prisoner?
As, No, I did not.

93. Q. Did he execute the prisoner?
A. HNo, he did not,

94 Q. This sergeant major you think might have assembled your men that
day, was this Tsuchiya?
A, No, it was not Tsuchiya.
The judge advocate did not desire to recrcss-examine this witness,
The commission did not desire toexamine this witness.
The witness made the following statement:

I would like to add the thinges that came out during the conversation
with the investigator. I never asked Haneishl or Tanaka their opimion if
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they wanted to execute, nor did I request Eateuyama on my own if he wanted to
exscute, In order to comply with the wishes of the division commander that
the division commander wanted as mamy men assembled as possible, I phoned
Haneishi when I came back from escorting the prisonmer. Haneishi replied say-
ing that he refused and was busy. I just relayed to him the wishes of the
division commander. When I was investigated there seems to have been a mis-
understanding because of the order of divisiom commander was to bolster the
morale, but we, from the first up to the end, faced this with humane feelings,
4 That is all,

The witness resumed his status as accused,

Tsuchiya, Nachiko, an accused, was, at his own request, duly sworn as a ;
witness in his own behalf, |

Examined by the judge advocate:

P 1. Q. Are you an accused in this case?
A, Yea,

Examined by the accused:

2. Q. Were you ever stationed with the Japanese army in the Palau Islanda?
A, Yes,

3, Q. Where were you stationed in the Palau Islands and during what peried
of time?

A, I was attached to the intelligence sectiom of the staff of the 1ith
Division, From April of 1944 to November I served on Koror and from that
time on I served at Babelthuap.

Ly Q. TWere you ever demobilized?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate om the ground that
it was irrelevemnt and immaterial,

The accused replied,
The commission amnounced that the objection was sustained,

5, Q. InApril and May of 1945 where were you attached and with what
organigation?

A. I was attached as a clerk with the intelligence section of the staff of
the 14th Division,

6. Q. What were your duties with this intelligence section?
A, It was chiefly clerical,

7. Q. Did you have amy other duties?
A, TWhem the officers of the imtelligence section went out on trips, turms
were takem to accompany them,

8. Q. Who took turns to accompanmy the officers?
A. The non-commissiomed officers of the imtelligence section,

9. Q. How many nom-commissioned officers were there?
A, Thare were three,
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10, Q. What was the state of your health in April and May of 19457

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The mccused replied.
The commission amnnounced that the ohjectlon was not sustained,

A. From March T was teken by malnutrition and in April and Mey this condi-
tion was in progress, I was excused from prart of my duty by an officer but
I stil) had ny ordinary duty, Thia was because at that time there was a
shortage of non-commissioned officers.

11, Q. Did you still have to go out on theses outaide jobs with the officers
A, TYes,

12, Q. In April and May of 1945 were you given & speclal ssaignment in
connection with a priscmer of war?®
A, Yes,

13. Q. What was this special assignment?

A. On about May 23, 1945, Onose came out of the intelligence staff officer
Yajima's room and he said to me, "It's your turn to go out, isn't it,
Tpuchiya? TWon't you go to Koror for escorting prisoner Kaufman?® As Koror
was not a jungle like Babelthuap, I thought it was good for my health and
though the pericd of this trip would be very short I thought the fresh sea
air would do me very good and I was very glad to go with him., Without being
armed, myself, Shimojo, and Onocse went to staff officer Yajima's room and
Yajima handed over to Onose the prisoner's vatech, wallet, necllace, ring,
apd such things, At this time Cnose repeated the order which he had recelved,
Tt was firet to safely escort the priscner to Koror, second to return the
belongings to the prisoner without fail, and third to confirm his execution,
This was the first time that I learned about Kaufman's execution and I was
very surprise’ but I accepted to go because the order was already given,

13, Q. This prisoner Keufman = had you known sbout him before you came to
Yajima's office with Licutenant Onose?

A, Tes, I did, I knew about it by reading the interrogation report of the
prisoner.

15, Q. You mentioned Shimojo., Who is this Shimojo that you mentioned?
A. Shimojo was a photographer attached to the intelligence section,

16, Q. Do you know who told him to go with Lieutenant Onose to Yajima's
office?

A. I do not know who ordered him but when I went to Staff Officer Yajima's
room he was with us.

17. Q. Were you three the only ones who went to Yajima's room that day?
A, At that time, yes; only three of us went,

18, Q. At that time did you'hear Yajime say or give these imstructions that
you have just testified to?
A, No, I @id nmot hear from Yajima., I heard it when Onose repeated it,

g6
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19. Q. COnose repeated the instructions thet he hed received from Yajima. |
Is that the story?
A. Tee,

20, Q. Did Yajima give you any instructions?
A. No, T did not receive any specific instructions from him,

|21, Q. Did he give Shimojo any instructions?
s A, TWhile T was present there he did not give instructions to Shimojo.

- —— ——

|22, Q. Vias Onose the only one he telked tol
A, Yes.

23, Q. When you heerd this prisoner thet you were going to escort wes to be
| executed, did you still went to go on this mission?

A. At this time a very unplemsant feeling came over me but since the order
| wag alreedy out I oheyed 1t.

24. Q. Where did lieutenant Onose go to get his rrisoner, Faufman?
A. Accorpenied by myself end Shimojo, he went to the Hempeital to get the
rrisoner.

25, (. At the Kempeitei, who was the prisoner turned over tol
A. Second Ideutenent Assno of the Fempeltei hended over the priscner to
Second Iieutenent Onose. |

26, Q. Then what heappened? .
A, There one armed assistent Kempei, who wes e leading privete who was

attached to us, held the rope which was stteched to I'sufman end from there
Onose, Shimojo, myself, and this sssistent Yempel and the prisoner went to
Gespan Pler. |

27. G. Vihet did you do there?

A, Prior to tris, enroute to this Gespan larbor, Onose hended me over the
wetch, the ring and wallet which conteined meny things, and seid thet Yejime
told him to return these belongings to him without fail and I am to return
them. Don't return them to him becsuse they would be stolen but return them
et the lest minute.

28, Q. TVhot heppened theni
A, Onose then got some dried biscults from the Gaspen field storage house
and geve it to Faufman end from there we went to Nelkken Pler.

29, Q. Whet did you do there?

A, Then we got there I sew & captain who hed his ears bendaged end from
this conversetion this ceptein had with Onose I learned he was Ceptein Koiehy.
| Ceptein Koichi hed with him an orderly.

30. (. How long did you stay on this pler?
A, T think sbout two hours.

31. Q. Then what happened?
4. Just before it got dark & motor boet ceme and Koiehi, his orderly, Onosg,
Shimojo, the assistent Kempei, Xaufmen, myself end some other soldlers whose
unit I do not know got aboard this boat.
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A, From there we went to the front of Captain Kolchi's quarters. Food was

g e * 2

32. Q. Vhen did you arrive at Koror?
A, Tt was around midnight when we reached Koror.

23, Q. What hapvened when you reached Koror?

A. At the Koror pier nom-commissioned officers of the Kolehi Unit met us,
From there we went to the headquarters of the Koichi Unit and after about
one hour arrived there.

34, Q. What happened to the prisoner?

A, At the headguarters the prisoner was handed over by the Kempel to the
non-commissioned officers of the Koichi Unit and I think he was taken to
an air raid shelter,

35, Q. ¥ho handed the prisoner over?
A, Onose did,

%6, Q. Are you sure you didn't hand him over?
A, No, it was not me,

37, Q. Then what haprened after Lisutenant Onose handed this prisoner over
to the Koichi guards?

brought over and Ceptain Koichi end some of his non-commissioned officers
were discussing the time end the place regarding the execution.

A, DNo, I did not.

39, Q. Did any of the enlisted men teke part in 1t?

A. The persons who took part in the conversation were Kolchi and a non-
commissioned officer or non-commissioned officers of the Koichi headgquartera,
The rest did not teke part in it.

40, Q. After the meal, what did you do?

A. Just before we had the meal the Kempei went to the Kempel detachment at
Koror; he left us and went there, After having the meal, Shimojo and myself
left and went to an air raid shelter which was about one kilometer away from
this place and slept there.

41. Q. Where was the priaoﬁ;r?
A, I do mot know where he was but probebly he was in an air raid shelter,

42, Q. What did you do the mext morning?
A. The next morning when I went to the naval cemetery I saw Kaufman sitting

down.

43. Q. Why did you go to this naval cemetery?
A. The day before the execution I was told by Onose to return Kaufmen's
belongings at the last mimute, so I carried his orders out accordingly.

L4. Q. Why didn't you return them to him the night before?
A, If I had returned these belongings him the night before, as this
prisoner was helpless, these belongings

45, Q. What did you see when you arrived at the cemetery that morning?
A, I saw fifty to sixty men assembling and I saw a first lieutenant with hiA

ears bandaged,
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46. Q. At that time did you kmow who this first lieutenant was?
A ilo, I did not kmow,

47. Q. That &bout the prisomer, K-ufman? What was being done to him?

A. Kaufran was sitting dovm and Onose was glving Kaufman a cigarette. At
this time I so'd to Onose, "I will return these belongings to him" and he
said, "Yes, return them,® So I returned the necklace, the watch and the
wallet which included many things. At this time Shimojo took one pleoture of
this,

48, Q. Did these many things include a necklace with a cross?
As No, I did not see such a thing,.

49. Q. What happened then?

A. One man of the anti-aireraft unit took hold of the rope which was tied
to Kaufman and pushing the crowd that was gathered there, he left this place
and right behind the prisoner Shimojo followed.

50. Q. After you had given Kaufman his persona) belongings, what did you dﬁﬁﬁ?*v—
’ A, I stayed at that spot and saw Kaufman being led away.

51, Q. Did you see Kaufman executed?
Ak, Yes, I did,

52, Q. Did you take part in the execution?
A o No, I did not,

53, Q. How far away were you when Kaufman was executed?
A, I was about fifteen meters away,

54. Q. Did you take any pictures of the execution?
fA. ©No, I did not.

55, Q. Did you see anyone taking any pictures while the execution was going
on?
A, Yes, I saw Shimojo take pictygs, ST

56, Q. VWhen did you leave?

h; After the execution vas over I thought about his belongings belng re-

turned without fail sc I went over and loocked at his corpse and saw that his
tch was attached to him and that his belongings were buried and presently
er this the body was buried, Just at this time Shimojo had finmished taking

jetures and was rolling his film.

Q. When did you leave this scene?
After offering a silent prayer to Kaufman's spirit, I left the scene,

e Q. Did you go alone?
I went with Onose.

Q. Where did you go with Onose?
With Onose I went to Katsuyeams Unit and there looked over the anti-
1.rur-.ﬂ:- position and had a meal and spent about four hours in all atthis

teuyama Unit,




60, Q. When did you return to division headgquartera?
A, The night of the same day.

61, Q. Did you return with the same group to division headquarters as had
left the division headquarters?

A. VNo, Shimoje in the evening of that day parted from us took &
different action, He returned to division headguarters the day after we fﬁﬁh
went back,

62. Q. While you were at the scene of the execution did you aid in any way
the execution of this prisoner?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it celled for the opinion of the witness and invaded the province of the
commission,

The accused did not reply.

The commission anmounced that the gbjection wvas not eustained,

A, No.

63. Q. Did you have any intention of killing the prisoner?
A. TNo, I sbsolutely did not.

64. Q. How long had you been in the army?
A. I was in the army from Jamuary of 1939 until the end of the var.

65. Q. VWhat kind ol duty have you had in the army?
A, I had chiefly clerical duties,

66, Q. During all the time that you have been in the army, have you ever
killed a man in combat?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
1t was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused did not reply.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

The commission then, at 3:05 p.m., took a recess until 3:30 p.m., at
which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.
Ho witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
Teuchiya, Naohiko, the witness under examination when the recess was

| taken, entered, He was warned that the oath previously taken was still
binding end continued his testimony.
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Cross-examined by the judge advocate:

67, Q. ¥%ho was the first person to talk to you about this trip to Koror
regarding Keufman?
A, Second Lieutenant Onose.

68, Q. And what did he say to you?
A, "It is your turn to take a trip, ismn't it, Tsuchiya? Will you go to
Koror to escort Keaufman? Koror is not like Babelthuap which is heavily

jungled.®

69, Q. Do you mean he asked you to sccompany him rather than ordering you tg
accompary him?

A, Mo, he did not request as he was my senior in the semse of rank, It was
more than half an order,

70, Q. TVas Onose always in the habit of apeaking to you so politely?
’ A, Toa,

TL Q. After you had received this polite order from Onose, what did you

ugderstand your duties to be?
A, I just thought that it was to send Kaufman to Koror.

72. Q. Did you understand that you were to be a guard?
A, Yes, I did understand it to mean & guard,

?3; Q. ¥When did you first learn that Keufman was to be exscuted?
A, TVhen I vent into staff officer Yajima's room and there Unose repeated
the orders, That is the firat time I knew about it,

7%4. Q. Then you knew before you left this room that you were to guard
EKasufman until he was executed, Is that correct?
A. I do pot understand the question,

75. Q. You knew before you left Babelthuap that you were to be & member of gn

execution party. Is that correct?
A, Hhid not know, 7

76. Q. Why not? You learned from Lieutenant Onose that you were to be a .
guard and you learned from Lieutenant Onose that Kaufmen vas to be executed,
Why didn't you know that you were to be a member of an execution party?

A, I replied I did not know because I did not receive any orders to execute
the prisomer, I was told by Onose of the three duties, one to escort the
prisoner, two to return his belongings, and three to confirm his death,

77« Q. When you were told by Onose to confirm the prisoner's death, what did

you understand that to mecan?
A, I understood that the prisoner, Kaufman, was to be exscuted,

78. Q. And you knew before you left Babelthuap that you were escorting a
prisoner on the way to his death. Isn't that true?
A, I understood that Kaufman was going to be executed at Koror,

79. Q. And you were taking him there for that purpose, were you not?
A. Tes.
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Reexamined 'y the accused:
80, Q. When you say that you were teking the prisoner to Koror to be
exscuted, what do you mean by thatl
A, Onose took me because of this duty, so I understood Onose's duty as suchg
81. Q. Since you were not & part of the command of Koichli and not subject
to his orders, would you have exscuted the prisoner if Koichl had crdered you
to that day?

This question vas objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
1t was irrelevant, immaterial, and purely egpeculatlive,

The accused replled.

The commission anmounced that the objection was sustained,

82, Q. Did this Kempei from divislon headquarters that accompanied the
prisoner take any part in the execution?

A., No, he did not,

83, Q. DNow, after Lieutenant Cnose had turned this prisoner, Keufman, over
to the Koichi gusrds, did your duty as & guard cease at that time?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was beyond the scope of the crosg-examination and called for an opinion

of the witness,

The accused replied.

The commission ammounced that the objection was not sustained,

The question was repeated.

A. Tes.

84, Q. Now, did you still have any other duty ss far as this prisoner was
concerned?

85. Q. And what was this duty?

A, That was to return Ksufman's belongings to him without fail.

86, Q. Is that why you went to the scene of the execution?
A. Yea.

The judge advocate did not desire to recross-examine this witness.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness made the following statement:

Concerning the point where Unose taught how to cut, there seemed to have
been & question and so I would like to gtate all I know about this, First
Kaufman was made to sit dowm at the spot of the exscution with his back towards
the sun. Shimojo wanted to take a picture of this and as the light was com-

AQ Yes. 5 '.'(._
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ing directly he wanted the position of Kaufman changed, The position of
Kaufman was changed so he would face the sun snd then he was made to sit down,
Firat Katsuyama's footing was firm, but as the position was changed he was
not prepared so Onose coached him about his footing.

The witness resumed his status as an accused,

Commander Martin E, Carlson, a counsel for the accused, requested that |
the commiseion adjourn until 9 a.m., Thursday, December 4, 1947; to awmalt .
the arrival of further defense witnesses,

The commission ammounced that the request was granted.

The commission then, at 3:55 p.m., adjournmed until 9 a.m., Thursday,
December 4, 1947,




United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands,
Thureday, December 4, 1947.

The commisesion met at 9 a. m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 3. Navy,
Lieutenant Colonel Henry K. Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United

 States Army,

Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,

Lieutenant Commander Bradner W. Lee, junior, U. S, Naval Reserve,
Major Andrew 1. Lyman, U, S. Marine Corps, members, and

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A, Regen, U. S. Navy, and

ieutenant James P, Kenny, U. S. Navy, Jjudge advocates.

Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S. Navy, reporter.
The accused, their counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the sixth day of the trial was read and

| approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
Commander Martin E. Carlson, counsel for the accused, requested that
the commission recese until 2 p. m. in order to allow the defense time to
interview the witnesses who had arrived from Japan this morning.

The commiseion announced that the request was granted.

The commiseion then, at 9:15 a. m., took & recese until 2 p. m., &t
which time it reconvened.

Presents All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first clase, U, 8, Havy, reporter.
Mo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
A witness for the defense entered and was duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate:

1. Q. State your name and former rank,
A. Nekagawa, Kiyoshi, colonel, Imperial Japanese Army.

2. Q. If you recognize the accused, state their names and former ranks,

The witnese correctly identified eash of the acoused.
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Examined bty the accused:

3. Q. Have you ever served im the Japanese army at Palau?
Ay Yes,

4e Q. VThat was the length of time that you served?
A, From 4 April 1944 to 26 February 1946,

5. Q. In vhat unit did you serve at Palau?
A, The Fourteenth Division headquarters,

6« Q. That was your duty at Fourteemth Division headquarters?
he Officer in charge of operations.

7« Q. TWhile you were serving at Palau, did you ever see a prisoner?
A-.- Hﬂ.

8 Q« Then do you koovw anything pertaining to a prisonert®
s I have heard about it,

9, Q. Vhen was this?
A, I recall that it was around the middle of May 1945.

!10. Q. Around this time did you call the accused, Koichi, to the headquar-
iters?
s Yas,

1l« §. For what reason did you call him?

ihe The Koichl Frovislopal Anti-eircraft Unit was bombed by the Amerlcan
iplanes and was greatly damaged. The headquarters planned to meke & mew oper-
lation and this new vlan wae studied, and, to get the opinion of Koichl and to
|find out the extent of the damage, Foichi was called to headquarters, Captei
'Hoichl was called to headguarters to report the extent of the damsge and to

at this time the Commanding General's new plan was made knowm to Captain Kolc
80 he would understand 1t,

12, Q. Did you take Captain Koichi to the Commanding General?
A.J To have Koichi report directly to the Commanding General, I went along
with him to the Commanding Gensral,

13, Q. Were you presgent during the time the Commanding General end Eoichl
were talking?
» Tes,

« Qs During this time did the Commanding Gemeral say anything about a
iprieoner?
« I recall that there was an order to execute a prisonmer,

5¢ @« To whom was this order given?
« 1 recall that it was the Katsuyama Unit which sustained the greatest
e by the bombing and was the umit that shot down the B-24,

16, Q. Was this order passed on to Koichi?
A, I recall that it was,

talk over the future operatlons and the reporting of hie preparations and also

L




17, Q. Vhen the Commanding General gave this order, did he say the reason |
why the execution was to be performed? i
A. T recall that it was for bolstering the movale.

18, Q. Before you took Koichi to the Commanding General did you say any=
thing to Koichi?

A. I recall saying to him, "As the plans for the use of the anti-aircraft |
unit are slready settled by the headquarters and the Commanding General, 1f
he once gave out an order he wlll not change 1t, and on this point he ls very
i strict, Your opinion is very good but I think 1t 1s better if you thought 1t
over and T think it better 1f you will not tell this to the Commanding
Genaral."

19, Q. Did Koichi eay anything to the Commanding General when he recelved
| the order to execute? i
‘A, I recall that he did not say anything.

20. Q. Tas there any circumstence as to why he was not able to say anything]

This ques‘ion was objected to by the juige advocate on the ground that
1t was leading and called for an opinion of the witness,

The accused replied,

The commigsion announced that the objectlon was susteined,
|
21, Q. Vhat was Koichi's attitude when he received the orders of the
Commanding General?

A, His attitude was one of respect.

22, Q, Was this the first time that you heard about this execution? 5
A, I recall that it was two or three days before but T em not sure of this,

i = —

23, Q. From whom di3 you hear of this two or three days before?
A. I recall that it was from Staff Officer Yajima,

E2¢. Q. At that time, what did Yajima say?

A, I recall that he said that the Commanding General decided to do this,

25, Q. Did you hear vho was to perform this? |
A, I resall that T heard that it wes a plan to have the anti=-sircraft unit
at Koror Island perform it,

26, Q. Is the Koror Anti=-aircraft Unit the Kolchi Unit?
A. Yea,

27. Q. Did you hear what Koichi's opinion was about thie execution?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that ip
colled for hearsay.

The sccused withdrew the question,

28. Q. Did you hear what Koichi's opinion was as to this? X
A, I recall that I heard it from Staff Officer Yajima.
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Q. When did you hear this?
I racall that it was before the execution.

Q. How much time befora?
I recall that it was about two or three days.

Q. What was Kolchi'e opinion?

This question was objected to by the Judge advocate on the ground that

it called for hearsay,

The accused withdrew the guestion,

The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine this witness,
The nommisaifn did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness made the following statement:

As this is an old memory, I would like to say that I am mot very clear

on the dates and what happened at that time,

1.
A,

e
A

The witness gas duly warned and withdrew,
A witness for the defense entered and was duly svorn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

Q. State your name and former rank,
Watanabe, Toshio, captain, Imperial Japanese Army.

Q. If you reco nize the sccused, state their names and former renks?
Captain Kolchi, Second Lieutenant Onose, Second Lieutenant Katsuyanma,

and Sergeant Major Tsuchiya.

3e
1-

be
Ao

Je
A,

Examined by the accused:

Q. Have you ever served with the Japanese army at Palau?
I hﬁvﬂq

Q. During what period of time was this?
From April 1944 to December 1945,

Q. ¥ith what unit did you servel
Fourteenth Division Headguarters,

Q: On what island was this Fourteenth Division situated?
It was on Koror Island and also Babelthuap Island.

Q. Of these two, on which island did you serve?
I served on both of these islands,

Q. Vhat wes your duty at this headguarters?
I served as an intelligence officer umnder Staff Officer Yajims.

Q. While you were serving at Palau did you ever see a prisoner?
I did.,

a7

s




g3 * 2

10, Q. Do you know the name of this priscner?
Aof Second Lieutenant Kaufman,

11, Q. VWhen was thia?
A. It was around the beginning of May 1945.

12. Q. Do you know what happened to Second Lieutenant Eaufman after that?
As He was executed,

13, Q. Do you kmow how Second Lieutenant Kaufman came to be executed?
1- I dﬂ.

14, Q. Flease explain to the commission concerning this?
A, Second Lisutenant Kaufman parachuted from his plane and was captured at

Defense Unit to execute the prisoner in order to bolster the morale of the
Doi about this but Dol refused this., Therefore, Inoue again ordered the

| Eoror Defense Unit as to this execution and finally had him executed at the
| Eatsuyama Unit.

|15« Qe By vhat means did you come to know what you have stated before?
{As I learned about this from the substance of the telephone call made by
Staff Officer Yajima to Doi.

16, Q. How many times did Yajima call Doi in regard to the execution?
A, As I remember, there were two,

|1?. Q. You just testified that this prlsoner was executed at Koror. TVas
thie prisomer brought to Koror?
(A, Yes.

18, Q. Who brought this prisoner to Koror?
A, TFrom the intelligence section Second Lieutenant Onose, Sergeant Major
Tsuchiya, and Shimojo went along.

19« Qe+ How did Oncse come toc take the prisoner to Koror?
EL. By orders of Staff Yfficer Yajima,

| 20, Q. Do you know what order -ngﬁivan to Onose by Yajima?

|Ae I recall that he sald to escort Second Lisutenant Kaufman to Keror,

21, Q. At this time, how many officers were attached to the intelligemce
section?
A, Three,

22, Q. Do you know why Onose was selected to go from among these three?
A, The duties of Onose were not wery urgent and could be left for two or
three days, so he was selected to go.

23. Q. Do you mean that he was selected because of his dutiea?
A, Yes,

24e Q. Do you know why Tsuchiya was selected?

he At that time, Sergeant Major Teuchiya wae in poor health and as Babel=
thuap was heavily jungled and unhealthy, whenever there was a duty to go out
the NCO's tock turns to go out and get the sun so that they might protect
their health, Just at this time I recall it was Tsuchiya's turn. I do not
know any other reason why he went along.

L
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Koror, He was sent to Babelthuap., Liesutenant General Inoue ordered the Korol

anti-aircraft unit., Yajima, by orders of Lieutenant Gensral Inoue, telephoned
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25. Q. Tou heve just testified thet Onose received orders from Yajima to
escort the priscner to Foror. How long & time elapsed from the time he re-
ceived the order until the time he left for Yoror?

A, It wee the same day and I think it waes about three or four hours later.

| 26, Q. From the time you first heerd Yajime cell Dol on the telephone
about this prisoner until the time he left for Ioror, how much time elapsed?
A. I recall thet it was about two deye

The judpe edvocate did not desire to cross-exemine thie witness.
The commission did not desire to examine thie witness.

The witnese cald that he had nothing further to stete,

Tne defense rasted.

Commander l'artin E. Cerlson, 2 counsel for the sccused, made & motion
| for & directed acquittal in the cese of Onose, Ichiro.

{

I

1

I

| The witness wee duly werned end withdrew,
I

{

|

!

The judpe advocate replied.

| The comm’ssion announced that the motlon wes denied.

Cormender l'artin E, Cerleon, & counsel for the sccured, mede & motion
Fo ]

for a directes edgnittel in the case of Tsuchiye, 'achiko.

The judpge edvocate replied,

The commission announced that the motion was denied.

| The secused, Folehi, Hiroe, read £ written statement, in Jepenese, in

his defense, erpended merked "W."

! An interpreter reed an English transletion of the stetement of the
| acoused, Koichi, Hiroe, appended merked "X,"

f The commiesion then, et 3:25 p.m., took a recess until 3:40 p.m., et
which time it reconvened.

|

|

} Precsent: All the merbers, the judge advocetes, the eceused, their
| counsel, end the interpreters.
|

Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first cless, U, S. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the triel were present.

The aceused, Fetsuyama, Tetsuji, reed a written statement, in Japanese,
|| in his defense, appended, merked "I,"

#®

An interpreter read an English translation of the statement of the
sccused, Ksteuyeme, Tetsuji, appended, merked "Z."
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The mccused, Onose, Ichiro, read a written statement, in Japanese,
in his defense, appended, marked "AA."

An interpreter read an English transletion of the statement of the
accused, Onose, Ichiro, appended, marked “BB.""

. The accused, Tsuchiya, Nachiko, read & written statement, in Japaness, |
in his defense, appended, marked ncCc.®

An interpreter read an English translation of the statement of the
acocused, Tsuchiya, Naohiko, appended, marked "DD."

The commission then, at 4135 DM, adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Friday, December 5, 1947.




EICHTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands,
Friday, December 5, 1947.

The commiseion met at 9 a.m.
Fresent:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Hobimason, U, 8. Navy,

Lieutenant Colomel Henry K, Roscoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,

Lieutenant Colonel Vietor J, Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United
States Army,

Lieutenant Commander Bradmer W, Lee, junior, U, 5. Nawval Reserve,

Major Andrew I, Lyman, U, 8, Marine Corps, membera, and

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A, Regan, U. 3. Navy, and

Lieutenant James P, Kenny, U. 8. Navy, judge advocates,

Stewart R. Smith, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter,

The accused, their counsel, end the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the seventh day of the trial was read and
approved,

No witnessea not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
The judge advocate read a written opening argument, appended marked "EE,"

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the judge advocate's
opening argument,

Mr. Takami Karasawa, & counsel for the accused, began reading a written
argument, appended marked "FF."

An interpreter read an English translation of thia portion of Mr,
Karasawa's argument, appended marked "GG."

The commission then, at 10115 a.m., took a recess until 10:40 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.,

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
counsel, and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Mr, Takaml Karasawa, a coumsel for the accused, completed reading the
written argument, appended marked "FF."

The commission themn, at 11:20 a.m., toock a recese until 2:05 Pems, at

which time it reconvened, 1 :
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Present: All the members, the judge advocates, the accused, their
‘eounsel, and the interpreters,

Stewart R, Smith, yeoman first clase, U. 3. Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwise comnected with. the trial were present.

An interpreter read an English translation of the final portion of Mr,.
Takami Karasawa's argument, appended marked "GG." .

Commander Martin E, Carlson, & counsel for the accused, read a written
argument, appended marked "HH."

The commission then, at 3:05 p.m., took a recess until 3:25 p.m., at
which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge mdvocates, the accused, their
Jcaunanl, and the interpreters,

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter.
Yo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
The judge advocate read his writtem closing argument, appended marked "II

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the judge advocate's
closing argument,

Tha trial was finished.
The commission was cleared,

V’f The judge advocate was recalled and directed to record the following
findinga:

As to the accused, Koichi, Hiroe:

The specification of the first charge proved in part, proved except the
words "and TSUCHIYA, Neohiko, then a sergeant major, IJA," which words are

not proved,
And that the accused, Koichi, Hiroe, is of the first charge guilty.

The first specification of the second charge proved in part, proved
except the words "TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, them a sergeant major, IJA," which
rds are not proved,
The second specification of the second charge proved.
And that the accused, Koichi, Hiroe, 1s of the second charge guilty.

As to the sccused, Katsuyama, Tetsujls

The specification of the first charge proved im part, proved except the
rds "and TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, them a sergeant major, 1JA," which words are

t proved,
And that the accused, Katsuyama, Tetsuji, is of the first charge gullty.
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As to the dccused, Onose, Ichiros

The specification of the first charge proved in part, ‘proved except the
words "and TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, them a sergeant major, IJA," which words are

not proved,
And that the accused, Omose, Ichiro, is of the first charge gullty.

As to the accused, Tsuchiya, Naohiko:
The specification of the first charge not proved,
And that the accused, Tsuchiya, Naohiko, is of the first charge mot

guilty; and the commission does therefore acquit the said Tsuchiys, Nachiko,
of the first charge.

Tesuchiya, Naohiko, was excused from further ettendance before this
| commission,

The commission was opened and all parties to the triel entered,
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the triel were present.
The commission snnounced lts findings.

The commission then, at 4:40 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, tomorrow,
Saturday, December &, 1947.
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United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Mariznaa,

Guam, Marianss Islands,
Saturday, December &, 1947.

The commissicon met at 9 a.m,
Presesnt:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, liobinson, U, S. Navy,
Lieutenant Colonel Henry K, Hoascoe, Coast Artillery Corps, United

States Army,

Lieutenant Colonel Victor J. Garbarino, Coast Artillery Corps, United

States Army,

Lisutenant Commander Eradner W, Lee, junior, U, 5. Naval Reserve,
Major Andrew I, Lymamn, U, S, Marine Corrs, members, and
Lisutenant Commander Joseph A. Regan, U, S, Favy, and

Lieutenant James F, Kenny, U, S, Navy, judge advocates.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, 8, Navy, reporter.
The accused, their coumsel, and the interpreters,

The record of proceedings of the eighth day of the trisl vas read and

approved,

-

Vo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trlal were present,

A witness for the defense as to matters in mitigation entered and was

duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate:

Q. itﬂta your name,

1,
A, Kuwvata, iiideo,
Examined by the sccused:

2. Q. Are you a defense counsel in this cese?

A, TYes,

3, Q. Have you some documents which you want to introduce as evidence at
this time?

As TYes,

4e Q. What kind of documents are these?

As Theae are documents in mitigation for thaa+ucused.

5 Q. Do you wish to imtroduce these documents as evidence in mitigationm?
Il. Yes. '

6. Q. For whom do you wish to imntroduce these documents?

A, I wish to introduce these documents for Koichi, Katsuyama, and OUmose,

Tl
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7. Qe Are these documents written in Japanese?
A, Yes, they are written in Japanese but are slreedy translated im English.

8. Q. Did you read these documents?
A, Yes.

9, Q. TWhat did you find out as a result of reading these documents?

A, These documents were written by their superiors or colleagues or other
persons while they were serving in the Japansse army and I find out that
these were suitable to show their character.

10, Q. Have the judge advocates had access o these documents?
A, They have not, so I wish to show them to them, now,

The witnese produced fourteen documents in Japanese in mitigation and
they were submitted to the judge advocatey and to the commission, and by the
acoused offered in evidence for the purpose of being read into the record in
mitigation, There being no objection the documents were so received and are
appende” marked "Exhibit 10" through "Exhibit 23."

The witness produced fourteen documents, the English translations of
WExhibit 10" through "Exhibit 23" in behalf of the accused in mitigation and
ther were submitted to the judge advocate and to the commission, and by the
accused offered in evidence for the purpose of being read into the record in
mitigation. There being mo objection the documents were so received and are
appended marked "Exhibit 10(a)" through "Exhibit 23(a)."

11, Q. Please refer to these doeuments and read them,

A. I have five documents for Koichi, five documents for Katsuyama and four
for Onose. As the substance of some of these are repetitious, I wish to read
just three for Koiechi, three for Katsuyama, and three for Onose, but I wish
to waive the reading of the documents in Jareneae and just have them read in

English,

An interpreter read "Exhibit 10(a)," "Exhibit 11l(a),""Exhibit 12(a),"
"Exhibit 15(a)," "Exhibit 16(a)," "Exhibit 17(a)," "Exhibit 20(a),"
"Exhibit 21(a)," and "Exhibit 22(a)." -

The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine this witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state.

The witness resumed his status as counsel for the accused.

The commission was cleared,
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The judge advocates were recalled and directed to record the sentences of
the commiseion as follows:
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Li na.n;,. Commander, U, 8. Navy, Judge Advocate,
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_ James P, Kemny,
Lfﬁtum ; U, 8, Navy, Judge Advocate,




The commission was opened, All parties to the trial entered.
The commission then read and pronounced the sentences to the sccused,

The commission, having no more cases before 1%, adjourned to await the
action of the convening authority.

-

: L A- a7y -
- H A, REGAN
Lieutenant Commander, U, S. Navy, Judge Advocate.

b Q,,’.‘.J /ﬂf.ﬂ,,«47
JAMES P, KENNY,
Lieutenant, U. 5, Navy, Judge Advocate,
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OFENING STATEMENT !"Cll THE FROSECUTION
Delivered by

Lieutenant Commander Joseph A. Regan
24 November 1947.

In May of 1945, the Palau Islands were under heavy air attack by
the American Army Air Forces. On one of the many raids, a B-24 was hit
by Japanese anti-aircraft fire from a battery located on Koror Island,
Only one of the crew members was able %o parachute to safety. Actually,
| the term safety is improper, for while the survivor, Wallace J, Kaufman,
| second lieutenant, U. S. Army, landed safely, he did not survive his
| treatment in the hands of his Japanese captors.

' Kaufman was taken into custody by the Japanese unit on Koror, Hg
was question at the headquarters there and then sent to the Lith Division
headquarters on Babelthuap Is}and, Kaufman again was questioned, this

| time by Lisutenant Colonel Yajima, the intellignence officer, and a re-

| portef this interrogation was made to Colonel Tada, chief of staff, and .
| o Lieutenant General Inouye, the commanding officer of the Lith Divisiom,
Just how long Kaufman was kept a prisomer on Babelthuap is uncertain, but
in any event sometime in t he latter part of May, General Inouye ordered
his exscution, This order was given to Iieutenant Colonel Yajima with
instructions that the Xoichi Anti-Aircraft Unit on Koror was to carry out
| the execution, This unit was, at that time, commanded by Captain Kolchi,
| 1JA, ome of the aceused in this case, The island of Koror was under the
general command of Colomel Ded, IJA, Tajima called Dol on the telephone
and asked him to make the arrangements, Dol refused, but he did call

| Koiehi to advise him what was planned at headquarters, The next day, of
a few days later, Koichi was at the 1lith Division Headquarters on Babe=
lthuap, pre to confer with one of the staff officers. Imouyo
heard of his presence and had him summened, General Inouye directly
ordered Koichi to have Kaufman executed,

Yajima to secure the prisonmer and to deliver him to the Koichi Anti~

. adroraft unit at Koror, Onose asked that he be permitted to take Ser-
geant Major Tsuchiya along to. guard the prisoner, and he a
thtnphotopuphrwth-n-lurahhnjnhmuﬂh
order to take pictures of the execution, Tajima
requests, but having been told by General Inouye that he

:
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| await the morning., At Eoichi's headquarters a confernese was held, It

was attended by Koichi, Onose, Katsuyama, Tsuchiys, and Shimojo., There
was discussed the time and place for the execution of Kaufman, It was
decided that Kaufman was to be executed the followimg morning at the
naval cemetary, a few meters distant from Koichi's headquarters. The
following moraing, Kaufmen was takeh from the air raid shelter to the
soene of the execution where his grave had already been dug. Many of
the men of the Koichi Anti-aireraft Unit gathered to witness the ex=
eoution., Whenm all preparations had beon made, Koichi appeared upoa

| the sceme and Katsuyama, his subordinate, who had already been desig-
| nated as the actual executioner, drew his sword, Apparently Katsuyama
| was not an expert swordsman, for from his stance it was evident %o

Onose that he was not going about it im the proper fashion and Onose
instructed him as to how to place his feet and how to best swing his
sword, Katsuyama followed the instructions of Onose and bhrought hie
swerd down, almost completely severing the head from the body of Kaufw-

| man, While this was going on, Shimejo, was taking pictures., The body
| tumbled into the grave and was Buried by the orders to Katsuyama,

After the execution, Onoso, Tsuchiya, and Shimojo returned to
Babolthuap where Shimojo immediately developed his pictures and turned
them over to the intellfgence, Onose and Tsuchiya reported back to
Yajima and informed him that the execution had taken place, In a mub=
sequent conversation Omose admitted that Katsuyama was clumey and that

| he, Onose, had had to instruet him,

The facts of the case are simple and the facts are that these
four accused each contributed to the murder of Kaufman,

Respectfully,
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OBJECTION TO THE COMMISSION TAKING JUDIOIAL
NOTICE

Delivered by
Commander Martin E, Carleon,

24, November 1947

The defense objocts to the courst taking judieial notice of the

tedam Deeclaration of July 26, 1945 and particularly paragraph 10,
on the grounds that nﬂ.tfsr the commission or the defense have been

urnished with a certified, an official, or otherwise trustworthy eopy of
s declaration as is required by sectiom 309, Naval Courts and Boards,

an official part of this trial,

We object to the commission taking judicial notice of the Poksdanm
claration unless there is a showing end proof made that Japan agreed to
bound and acocepted this Potsdam Dedlaration.

We object to the Potedam Declaration particularly paragraph 10 which
s in part that “stern justioce shall be meted out to all war criminals"

cause these four accused are not war eriminals simply because they have
n charged with a war erime,

We do not object to that sentence of paragraph 10 which readss "Free=

*' We move that when such a copy is furnished the commission, that it be

undamental human rights, shall be established" and do ask that the proée
mumuwummtmmmimhunm

F@ of speech, of religion, and of thought, as well as respect for the

to the mtmmmmﬂmmﬂthmthmdlﬂ.

hmmtthjdnﬂwahhmﬂrdtommtﬂlhm

Deelaration is in force, show how it is applicable in this case, relevant

te the issues here being tried, material to the tesuas in question and how
these four accused ate bound by this Potedam Declaration,

We object that the Potedam Declaration is immaterial and irrelevant,
Ve ob, MﬁMnMMJﬁemmiuﬂmm

|
Prisoner Yar Convention of July 27, 1929 unless the prosecution can show

tha: Japan ratified this convention and that these four acoused are bound
by 1%,

nmtutmmm:mmmiumt: 4id not rat-
grm.lum“hthum. Ve the commission's

utmrmwmmwmmun
mm-umt-mmmnw;m
the Prisoners of War Convention.” Legally therefore Japsn &8
a nation 1s not bound by the convention,

"o (2)*
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We challenge the judge adwoeate to show how and by what provision of
this convention these four accused are bound,

We object to the Genwva Prisoners of War Comwention as being immedterial
And irrelevant and that these four accused are not bound by this convention,

We object to the court taking judicial notice that Palan Islands is
of the territory under command of Commander Marianas and that Koror
is one of the islanda of the Palan group.

By our plea to the jurisdiection and our plea inm bar we put in issue the
question whether Palam is under the command of Commander larianas, We hold
t is not common knowledge but that it 1s a legal and strategual question
hich the judge advocate must prove,

We ask that the commission take judicial notice that Palen Island was
ot under the command of Commander Marianas May 24, 1945 at the time the
fense was committed,
|

. Before the court take judicial that Palau Islands are now under the
Eumnﬂ of Commander Marianas we move that the judge advocate be required
o offer proof that it is,

|
. We also objeot to the court taking judicial notice of the Hague
Convention of October 18, 1907 particularly article 23(e) because the

Hague Convention provided that shall be binding upon any of the belleger-
gnts in that war are parties to it. Neither Italy or Bulgaria has ratified
the Hague 1907 Conventions and Japan is therefore not bound by these

Hague Conventions of 1907,

Even the United States tock advantage of this provision and under
otion 1 eircular No, 136 War Department MKay 7, 1942 stated impart "The
Declaration number XIV October 18, 1907 prohibiting the discharge of
jectiles and explosives from balloons (HD XIV) is net binding and will
t be ocbserwed,”

| Isn't it strange that the judge advocates in order to prove their
now ask that t'e commission take judicial notice of a convention which
United States War Department in a written ciroular mumber 136, dated
May 7, 1942 said was not binding upon the United States.

We move that the judge advocates be required to prove this convention
that it wes 4n force, tut.r-p-numu{u, and that these fcur
od are bound by it partieunlarly article 23(e), show how it is applio=
in this case and relevant to the issues in question.

We object to the Hague Convention of Ootober B, 1907 as immaterial and

We move that the commission not take judicial motice of it,

S (2)
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OBJECTION TO THE INTRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS OFFERED INTO
EVIDENCE BY THE JUDGE LDVOCATES. .

Delivered by
Cormender Martin B, Carlsen, U.S5.N.R,

-I Objection to the decuments said to be the statementa of Koichi,

' Hirece, former Captein, IJi; Ketsuyama, Tetsuji, former First lLieuten-
ant, IJ.; Onoso, Ichiro, former Second Licutensnt, TJL; end Teuchiye, :
Nachiko, former Sergeant Major, IJL.

The ncoused object to the intreduction into gvidence of the
documents purporting to be the stetements of the pecuscd becouse to
ndrit these documents into evidence is strietly et varisnce with See=
tion 734, Nevel Courts end Boards, the 5th end 6th [mendments, and the
rulcs of evidence perticulnrly the rule prohibiting heoreey testimony.

' The witness, Commender Ogden, hes testificd thet he is the legnl
. custodion of thesc documents, He testified he vas orderod to investi-
gete vnr crimes end interrogcted suspects et tho stockede at Cuem,
But he further testified that these stotements, the documente purpor=
ting to be writton by the accused Kolchi, Katsuyeme, Onose end Tsuchiyr,
were not cven rritton in his presence. Ve meintrin that the witncss,
Commender Ogden, is not competent es a witness to testify regarding
these documents which are seid to contein the statements of the ce- |
cused, Thore ie a presumption thet a vitness is coppetent to testl-
fy regarding matters at issue, but in this crsc the witnese hes stat
that the stetements vere nmot mede or written in hie presence. He has
by hie own testimony ndmitted to being incompetent to testify ss to
vhether or not those stetements wore made under threet, iptirddetion,
prorise of rewerd, volunterily, or that they, the sccused, were told
they did not have to enswer incriminating questions, Since the witnesg,
Cormender Ogden, is incompotent to testify regarding these matters, ve
held thrt the judge sdvocate still has the burden of proof and rmst
prove thot thesc documents being offercd into evidemec are reguler,
thet the documents werc written by the eceuscd, thet the accused vere
werned thot thoy wore partics defondents, thet they were notified

of tho gist pf the evidence that tends to {rmlicete them, thet they
yere instrueted they would be end wore accorded the rights of scoused
before ® court mertiel, nemely the right to be present, to heve goun=
sel, to chellonge membors, to introduce end cross-cxemine witneases,
te introduce nev metter pertinent to the inquiry, to testify or de-
slare in their ovn behelf at their om request, end to moke state-

) monts end argumonts, The judge advecetc hee not nroved that thesc staf.
= monts wore medo voluntarily or that they are the truth, He bee only
proved thet he took cach of the sccuscd one et o time out of solitery
confinsment nnd had ther sign a stotement cs to the stotement signcd
ot Sugsmo Prison, thereby teying to incorpornte an unsworn stetement
into another npd lrter stotememt. It isn't proper. They must be told
theay heve the wight to refuse to enswer imcrimineting guestions,

+
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Norhere in theso documonts does there epperr anything to indi-
cote thet these sefegurrds gurranteed by the Constitution of the Uni-
ted Stetos were cver accorded to these accused vhose rlloged state-
ments nre sought to be intreduced.

To allow theso documonte to be introduced inte evidence will be
most prejudiciel to the substentive rights of the accused. Theoy will
be mrde to testify ocgoinst themselves.,

C.M,0, 1, 1940, p. 72, lays down the rule: "L gencrel court
mertinl reccived in cvidence, over the objection of the accused, ox-
troets from the tostimony of tho aceused bofore s Boord of Investipne
tion.: The cecuscd cppeared bofore the Soard aof Investigrtion se rn
intercsted party. The record did not show thet he took the stand st
his ovm rcquest, but did show thet he was sworn and sllowod tc testi=-
fy rt length aftor it wee appercnt that he wes involved to sueh an
extent thet an rccusrtion egeinst him could be implicd elthough he
wns not mrde r decfondant until he coneluded his testimony. It follows
thorefore thrt his teostimony before the Boerd of Investigetion could
have no ovidential valuc in the instent caso, end it should have been
excluded by the court,”

Yo further object boecause these documente do not show on the
feee thet thoy vere given volunterily end thet the sccused, Kelehi,
Krtsuyern, Onosc, »nd Teuchiyn, weived nll thc rights of = defendent.

stotemont, It is transloted: "obout € o'eclock the next morning wg took
Eoufmen end wont to the vieinity of the graveyard," Tt should be trons-
loted: "nround 8 o'clock the noxt morning Keufmen wrs brought to the
vicinity of tho cemctery,"

The dotc on this ststement is Septombor £, 1947, but there is
no plece shown vhere the documents wes medc end signed, The ariginel
dooumont veas mede ot Sugemo Prison, Tokyo, but there hos boen sdded
es pert of thc documont e prge, & svorn stetement of Tsuchiyr, dnted
Hovember 8, 1947.

Wo held thet the judge edveoccte still hee the burden of proof
end pust show by compotent witness thet those documents ore regular
rnd thet the 5th ond 6th /mendmonts of the Constitution of tho United
Stetes of !meriea ond Soetion 734, Nevel Courts and Boards heve not
been violetod, He must show thet the documents contein the truth,

Tsuchiyn wes an cnlisted man in the Jepencse Lrmy. He wes regu-
lrrly domobiliscd on November 8, 1945. Then as e civilian living at
hie home, he wae one dey (October 15, 1947) suddenly arrested without
a werrnnt end thrown into Sugemo Prison, a prison in Tokyo being run
by tho United Stetecs /rmy of Occupetion, and kept there four deys.
Here he wes hcld under arrest without o warrnnt or without charges
ever being nrofcrred ngainet him. Prior to being mut in Sugemo Prison

np (2}!
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he wee required to write a statement at the Melji Building on
September 8, 1947, which is nor being offered into avidence by the
prosccution. But this isn't the document that Tsuchiya wrote in
Tokyo, beceuse in eddition the judge sdvoestes heve hed mdded an
additional nage, » page on which there is & stetement to the effect
thet Tsuchiya swears that the attscked stetement is the truth,
This second statement wes made by Tsuchiya while he wes being held
in solitary confinement at Guam, still without cherges being pre=-
ferred egrinst him end heving been token from Japan to Guem without
eny extrodition pepers. It was a statement requested by o com-
mender of thc U.S, Nevy of o eivilien who hed once been en enlisted
nrn in the Jepanese Army. Ts it likely that he would refuse or
even dore to refuse to sign whatever he waa told to sign?

I would like to resd to you vwhet Wigmore says on preecent police
prectices and beliefs, I quote from Section 85la, Supplement to
Figmore on Evidence, Vol, 3, 1947, Pocket Supplement by Richmond
| Rucker: "85la., Confessions: Preesent Poliece Practieces rnd Feliofs. |
\ Recont inquiries, however, in well-informed guerters give the im-

' pression thrt the whole attitude of the police merscnncl to the usge
of confessions needs ¢ thorough and frenk but sympathetic investi-
getion, by nn autheritntive body, with committpes from both pertics
' exchenging fects and views in personnl meetings., It is believed
| that the following statements of fect ere corrcct, at leest for hun-

' dreds of citics end in lerge classes of crses:l (1) The usec of physi-
| cal beating-up, in veriont degrees of brutelity, not only ie pree-
ticed, but is deemed justificble, on the ground of neccssity. The
necessity is srid to exist chiefly in the ceses of notorious geng-
store end syndieated resesrls, rhere direct testimony or adequete
ciroumstontiel evidence is not expected to be rveilable; rnd that the
proctices is ssid to be limited to such ceses. (2) The use of frlse
pretences, deceiving the suspeet into believing thet silence will no
longer svail, ic hrbitually used, rnd is deemed justifiable. By
| "fnlec pretences" is moant such nesertions as "Your pal has told us
| the whole story end blames you, so you might as wcll tell your story
ond refut him if you ecen"; or "We have just found the goods where you
hid them, and we heve o coomplete ecscj so you mey ce well come elean”;
the forcgoing assertions being felse, Thia frenk justificrtion of
hebituel use of frlsities, vhore e porson deemed guilty hos becn
errested, leeds one to infer thot & false deninl of having used bru-
telity, vhen inquiry is mrde at the trisl, would clso be doemed
justificble, for mrteul protection, by the norticipents. (4) The
use of the foregoing methods, vhen cendidly justified, is plrced on
the ground thet in meny ceses it would be imposaible to cbtein other
evidence of sny sort suffieiont to teke the eosc to ¢ jury, end that
’ therefore a confession is indispensable, if such pcrsons pre to be
brought to justiece at all., This doctrine spproximatee rlmost ox-
e netly the legnl rule, obteining in the Middle Ages in Contlnental 1
lew down to the time of the Code Napoleon, thet no person could be
conderned until he had confossed; which of course led to the lawful
end hobituel usc of torture to complete the final formelity. &
police beliof thet a confession is indispenseble, and that it is
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therefore obtrinsble by the above methods, neturnlly tende to e
1axity in seerching thoroughly for other cvidence.

To the extont that the above practices ond beliefs vill be fournd
to oxist rmong police personnel pencrally, & thorough inquiry into
the necds ond possibilities of reform seems indiceted, OSuch en in-
quiry, horever, should be eonducted by suthoriszed commitices repre=
scnting both the police end the judieiary euthoritics, end with esn~
did end eympothetic attitude; for thesc beliefs nnd prectices heve
srisen neturclly from the onvironment, snd the police, #8 the cnemics
of ocrime and ne e body of men dovoting themselves at constent personal
risk to the protection of the community, cre entitled to the highest
respect and considerstion.

Meornwhile, until these unwholesome conditions are found to show
improvoment, so thet both brutelity and felsities moy be rresumed to
be the rere exception rother than tho hebit, ¢ Rule of Court of the
following tenor vould help teo dircourage the prectices end perheps
to modify the bellefs:

Rule of Court: Confessions mede to a Police or Prosccuting
officer. 'A confession msde to & police or prosecuting officer,
vhether the eonfessing person is or is not under arrest or detcntion,
will be recciveble in cvidenece, to & grend jury or et & triel, on
the following conditions only: 'l. The interview et which the nllcged
confession vas mrde must be recorded on a gound film,< the rccording
showing the place, the dete rnd hour, the nemes of every person pree
sent, and nrll stotemcnts mede by eny person present, '2, Tho film st
be snnexed to o certificate, bearing the gignatures of ell persons
present (except the arrested person), steting that the film is the
whole of r film tsken at the nlece end on the dey pnd hour recorded
and in their nrcsence., '3. A copy of the film, with a similar certi=
ficate, must hevc been deldvered to the accused or to his attornmey,
as shown by e receipt; end anothor copy must have been dopogited in
the custody of on incorporated benk in the county, subject to de=
livery to the Court on demend; rnd thc f41m=copy presented in court
st bear a notary's certificnte of ceth mde by one of the persons
present. thet the film offored in evidence is the identicel film token
at the purporting place and time,"*

These provigions moy scem redicel. But the impression given,
from information received, is that the 1eck of seruple candidly shown
in the use of these above practlces, justified ra they are on the
ground of the necessity bringing villeins to justice, eelle for the
nbove restrictions, in eid of the innocent end in discoursgement of
morelly untoneble mothods....”

Does the prosecutien bring into court the pcrsons vho were
present vhen Teuchiyr mede the statemont ot Tokyo, Jepen? No, thoy
do not. (In Secc. 833, Supplement to Figmore on Bvidence, Vel, 3, the
case of Poople vs, Goldblott, 383 Ill. 176 49 N.G, 24 36 (Murder con=
fession imvoluntery) Pulltin J., 41 "Goldblatt was subjected to ox=
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tonsive interrogetion dey and night for meerly threc deys. He was
not permitted to sce releatives or friends end hed no letryer with
whom he could consult,..no warrent had becn issued for his arrcst,
and he wos not trken before any megistrote for exsminntion until
ofter & habees corpus writ had been obteined in his behalf.")

Lftor Teuchiya hed been errested without eny werrent, wes he
;ver rllowed to see relotives or friends or consult with o lewyer?
O.

He hes boen in solitery confinement ever since, Not untll
Novembor 10, 1947 wes he notified why he woe hold end sorved with the
chorges rnd specifications. Two doys prior he wes osked to sign a
verifiertion. He did and vo objoct on the grounds he wes forced to
sign it.

(The cese of Feople ve, Cope, 345 I11, 278, 178 N.G. 95, loid
dowrn the rule thet "All persons present at the time the confeselon
wrs mode” must be called, Hove the proseoution celled ell persons
vho were rrescnt when the "eonfession" was eigned? They heve not.
They hoven't even celled e single merson vhe wves preeent or heve they

od tho wes present, Those "eonfessions”™ end wo object to the
use of the vord confession beceusc not o single statement is c con-
feseion, vere o1l mede and signed at Tokyo, et Sugnmo Prison. How
thoy vere secured we will never know beceuse the prosccution heven't
gseen it to esll eny witncsses who vore prescnt vhen they were written

end signed,

Quoting ogein from Vol, 3, "igmore on BEvidence, Sec, 860, p.
342: "The original English rule wee thet the rrosecution (offering
tho confession) must show that it was mede volunterily, i.e., with-
out eny improper induccment from the person receiving the confeseion,
end this rulo is acccpted in most americen jurisdictions." 1783
Thompson's cese, 1 Leach Cr. L., 3rd ed,, 928 somble, Hotham, B.; 185.
R v Werringhem v, Den, Cr, C. 447, Ferke B.; 1893, R. v. Thompson, 2
QOBQ 1-21 13-
Treland:192, Stete v, Treenor (1924) 2 Jr. Rep. 193;
Canndr: R v Plesriello, (1923) 1 D.L,R.979 Alte; (cited ante 839);
1934 R}v. Ressruseen, {1935] 1 D.L.R, 237 /1te, (precediny ceses not
cited.);
1935 Nesrkudonie v The King, (1935) 3 D.L. R 424, Dom,

Particulsrly note U.S. Fec: 183, Kopt v. Uteh, 110 U.E, 574,
587, 28 1, B4, 262, 4 Sup., 202, Herlen, J.;
I11, 1924 People v. Spranger 314 I11, 602, 145 NE 706; 1926, Pecple
v. Fox, 319 T11, 606, 150 NE 347; 1929 People v. Frugoli, 334 Ill,
324, 166 NE 129,

Celifornis 1899, People v, Castro, 125 Cel, 521, 58 Fec. 133.
Minn, 1937 State v, Neleon 199 ¥inn, 86, 271 NV 114,

Missourd 1913 State v, Thomrs, 250 Mo, 189, 157 S¥ 330 (for o con=
fession token in writing and signed while under arrest.)
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Virginie 1870 Thompson's Cose, 20 Grett, 731:

"Moreover, ob the principle of P, 18, ante, if e eonfesslon ie
rdmitted as voluntery but efter-erds the evidence scems to show thet
1t m=g not voluntary, the objection to it pust be reneved, i.e., by
motion to strike out,®

¥rss. 1934, Frorn v. Stete, 173 Mess. 542, 158 So 339, 173 Yase. 54,2
161 So 465;

"The wier hes rlso found representrtives thet the prosecution
rust, not merely in the sbove ciroumstences, but in 11 cases, show
the sbsence of rn inducement from apyope else e=nd pot merely from the
porson receiving the confepsion.”

Citing 1876 Stete v, Jervey, 28. Lo., fmn, 925 (thet the prosecution
must negrtive complusion, mot only of B,, but of enyone slee); 1920
People v. bedoss, 53 F.I. TEE,

Ve object because Comme nder Ogden 1is testifying me to hesrsay,
He con only testify as to whet tho interpreter told him. The prose=
cution would hove the Commission believe thet Commender Ogden is
quelified rs ¢ witness and yet he only knows whet he is testifying to
through the herrsay of the interpreter, The prosecution rust cell
the interpreter, Mr, Frederick Sevory in this instonce. Ve quote
secttion 812, Vol, 3, Wigmore on EZvidence, pege 227: ™! person con-
versing with ¢ third person through an interpreter is pot gurlified
to testify to the other person's stetements, because he knors them
only through the herrsay of the interpreter, Ordinerily, therefore,
the third nerson's words cennot be rnpgved by enyone oxcept the inter=
preter himself," '

Ve object beceuse the imterpreter, Mr. Srvory, wes not svwornm.

To objoct because thege gietements ere not confessioms, ~ig=
more on Evidcnee, Vol, 3, Sea, , Confessions: " confceeicn is 2D
ocknovledgment in Express words, by the cccused in ¢ eriminal erse, of
the truth of the guilty fect cherged or of some_csgentis] pert of ib."

us Cerlson
Conmencer, U. S. N. R.
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FLEA IN ABATEMENT

Delivered by
Martin E, Carlson,

May it please the Commission:

A1l of the mccused hereby meke this ples in abetement

in order to bring to the attention of the Commission the fact
that the effidavit of Koichi, Hirce; Katsuyama, Tetsuji; Onose,
Tchiro; end Tsuchiye, Nachiko, introduced into evidence by the
judge sdvocate to prove the controverted facts material to the
{ssue, cennot be and affidavits are not admissible as to con=-
troverted fscts meterial to the issue, that is records of court
cannot be proved by affidavit.

We cite the following cases in support of our contention:
Als. Pukering vs Townsend, 11& Ala, 351, 23 S. 703; Ark,
Western Union Tel, Co. vs Gillis, 89 Ark. 483, 117 SV 749, 131
Am. SR 115; Ge, Nrsples vs Hoggard, 58 Ge. 315; I11, Murphy vs
Schoeh, 135 Ill. &. 5503 Fenkelstein ve Schilling 135 I17, A
543; Mustin State Benk vs Morrison, 133 Il1l, & 339; Hume ete.
Mfg. Co, vs Caldwell, 35 I11. A. 492 /aff 136 Ill. 163, 26 NW.E,
599 /; Quinn Ve Rewson, 5 I11, A, 130; Ind. Ohio ete., R Co.
ve Levy, 134 Ind, 343, 32 N.E. 815, 34 N.E. 20; Kan, Johnston
ve Johnston, 44 Kan, 666, 24 P, 1098; Ky. ¥ay vs T11liams, 109
Ky 682, 60 5.7, 525, 22 Ky. L. 1328; Fhoenix Ins. Co. vs law~
rence, 4 Mete, 81 Am, D, 521; Newton ve Fest, 3 Fetc, 24
Telbot vs, Plerce, 14 3. Mon 156; Morton ve Sanders, 2 J7 Versh
192, 19 Am D, 128; Mo, Patterson vs Fagan, 38 Mo, 70; N. J.
Staley ve South Jersey Realty Co, (Sup) 90 A. 1042; Peer ve
Bloxhem, 82 N.J, L, 288, 81 A, 659; Seldwin vs Flegg, 43 F.J.
L 495; Cooper ve Galbreith, 24 N,J, L 219; Lummis vs Strattan,
2 N.J. L. 2,5; layton ve Coopa, 2 N.J, L 62; Pullen va Pullen,
46 N.J, Eq. 318, 20 h. 393; Cluteh vs Clutch, 1 ¥.J. Eq, 4743
N.Y. Inre Fldridge, 82 N,Y, 161, 37 im R,558; Okl. Watkine vs
Grieser, 11 Ok, 302, 66 P, 332; Pa. Hoer vs lulvey, 1 Burn 145;
Sturgeon vs “augh, 2 Yeates 476; Flaukurson ve Cove, 2 Yentes
370; 141ly vs Kitzmiller, 1 Yeates 28; S.C, McBride vs Floyd,
188 C.L. 209; Texna, Henke vs Keller 50 Tex Co. L. 533, 110,
S.T. 783; Tesh, Crahem vs Smart, 42 'ash 205, B4 P, B24; W,Va.
Herold ve Crag 59 V.Va, 353, 53 S.E. 466; Peterson vs Ankrom,
25 W,Va, 56; Tennant ve Divine, 24 V.Va, 387; Ind. Kellog vs
Euszhurh:ﬂ. 98 Ind, 154; Pa, Smith ve Veaver, 41 Pa, Super 253,
256,

The judge sdvogate may correct this rrocedure by refraining
from bringing into evidence affidevits to prove the records of
the court or this Commission that is to prove the controverted
facts materisl to the issue.

111 of the epcused prey thet these affidavite of KOICRI,
Hiroe; KATBUYAMA, Tetsujiy ONOSE, Ichiro; end TSUCHIYA, Nechiko,
be striken from the record and prays of judgment of the charges
end specificetions and preys that the cherges end specificetions
be quashed,

i




PLEA FOR DIRECTED ACQUITTAL
in the case of
ONOSE, Ichiro

' The pocused ONOSE, Ichiro, mekes & motlon for & directed scquittel.

offered by the prosecution to prove the
ie required in order to prove the mccused

There heae been no evidance
eriminel intent of Oncse, which
'guilty of the charge of murder.

the rrosecution thet he d6id

[ Mor hee there been any evidence oife
assgult, strile, ki1, en’ ceuse to be ¥illed by beheeding with £ sword one

|Ta’lace F. Isufmen.

: No evidence has been offered by the rrosecution to sho thet Onose
the alleged execution.

| éirectly participeted in
The eccused Onose, Ichiro, vreys

es to the charpe end epecificetion of ymrdep-es alleged in Cherge I.

|

I Yertin ~. Cerlson,
Comrender, U, C.

Counsel for the

¥eve! Reserve,
Defenee,

s that the Commission direct an gcquittel

1

S ——




PIEA FOR DIRECTED ACQUITTAL

in the cace of

| TCUCHIYA, Naohiko

| The eecused TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, mekes e motion for o directed scquittel.

i Teuchiye wes ordered to acecomparny 8 commissioned officer who hed been
ordered to escort & prisoner from 1.th Division Hesdquerters to the anti-
eireraft nnit et ¥oror, This wes 2 legal order end Tesuchiye, not knowing
for whet purrose Keufman was being gent to Loror arntil =fter he heard the
escort officer Onose receive his orders from the Steff Intelligence Officer,
| Yajime, accompenied hise superior officer Onose es he hed been lawfully order-

i * ed to do.

|
I The prosecution hae not proved thet Teuchiys was ever ordered to exe-
' | cute Yeufman or thet Tsuchiye participeted directly or indirectly in the
! executlion.
1
A17 thet he did wes to hend over to the condemned nen, Yaufmen, his
| pergonel belonglngs es te hed heen ordered to do.
I Surely the rrosecution do not contend that this conetitutes murder on
the nert of ‘Teuchiyae?
The accused Tsuchiye preyes thet the Commistion direct en aequittel as
. | 0 the charge and epecificetion of rurder.
| | /%i

.
1 | o T BOM
Corrence . £ Yeve) Reserve,

couneel Tor the Lefense,
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OPENING STATEMENT FOR THE DEFENSF
Delivercd by KUVATA, Hideo, on 1 December 1947,

The gist of tho facts rhich the prosscution has slloged and endoavorod
to prove in thc prosent easo is that on or about 24 Moy 1945, tho accused
KATSUYAMA, Teteujl whe vas a subordinate of the accused KOICHI, Hiroce, dcesp~
itated at the navel cenetery situstod on Koror Island, Palau Islands, an
Anorican prisoncr, Seoond Licutenant Kaufman who had been escortod the night
bofore to Xeror Islend from the Keopeltai on Babelthunp Island by the necus
ONOSE, Ichiro, the accused TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, Gunsoku SHIHOJO and an assistn
Kompoi (M,P.) Undoubtodly, to a person who is suddenly told of tho tbove
facts, it would sound only naturel that thoso nccuscd, particularly the acc=-
used KOICHI and EATSUYAMA arc chargod with murder. Noodlcee to say, tho
dofonse doos mot in any way intend to tako issue with the Judge Advoent o eco
corning tho fact that the prisoner, Second Lieutennnt Keufnan mas docepitat
at the nbove mentionod place and tine, by thc hands of the acouscd KATSUYLMA.
Howover, the point to bo assertoed and proved by tho ecoused in tholr defenso
is that the cxecution of Second Lieutenant Kaufpan vas solcly attributable
‘ to the ordor of Cormanding Officer Inouc, the highest suporior officer of

theso aocused, and though thesc aecused cxpressed opposcd opinions throughcuti
. and exorted overy effort with all the yosoureccs at th.ir comncnd to stop the

exosution, thoy had %o earry it out against thoir will, unable to counter th
stubborn will of thc Commandcr and opprossion of the military rogulaticns of
| the Jepancsec Arrod Foreos inmpesed upon thom, the csscnoc of which lay in
superior ordcrs and obediemco thoreto by the subordinates end stern punishnc
amounting to tho copitel sontencc vhich eould be moted out for the vielation
of these iron-clad rulcs.

Soveral dnys prior to this incident, the accused KOICHI was rcleyed by
Coloncl DOI by phone sovoral tincs the intentiom of tho Comnnding Officor
Inoue to cxceute Sceond Licutonant Keufman to bolstor the spirit of the mru,
Tho accused KOICHI, horevor, had refused to have this oxooution porforned fr
tho boginning becausc tho exocution of e single prisoncr would r.* in anyvay
contribute to o raisc in tho norale of the unit, Colonel DOI also agreed wit}
the opinion of tho mccuscd KOICHI and roleyed it to the division hoadquarters

Phon tho mecused KOICHI, on requcst of opcration staff officer, Lioutens)
Coloncl NAKAGATA of the division hcadquertors, wont to liondquartcrs the dey
bofore tho ineident to report on tho condition of damag.s Lo positions and ngy
sustained by the bambings of cnomy plancs, =nd conditions of progrose made 1
| ropeiring tho positions nnd to discuss futurc anti-cir battlc plans, ho pro=
ceoded to hoadgunrters with a firm detorminatior to refusc, if the cxecution
of tho prisoner should bo memtionod nt the division headquartcrs, But the
stato of affairs wag mot as he had oxpeetod, and ho wes dlirectly givon ordex
by tho Cormandor INOUE, Furthormore, tho deelsion of the Officer
INOUE to have tho prisoner executed scemed already docleive and irrevocable,
Here, tho accused KOICHI, realising that it would be of no avnil to expross
his opposition, amcceded to tho stern order of Comprnding Officer INOUE, The
acoused XOICHI who had eontinuously opposed the execution of the prisoner up
to this time, thought that since had once ¢ceeded to the order of his super-
ior, to gorry it out cxpeditiously ~nd preciscly wos to comply vith the righ
es of tho commnnding officer, ~nd to conduot this in an orderly and solemn
nanner under his control wos due the prisonmcr ns = soldier, Upon
returnirg to his unit, the cooused rrdo the nrrangerents ond earricd
out the exocution in sueh n solemn m=nner as he hrd plonnod, Moreover, ~fto

mnuonmum,huhlnnmﬂr,ommmm,m
¥ith the rest offering o silent preyer, proyed for tho prisoncr’s peaceful

u(1)
&
i (] s 8
8 S i /

P — N




O ¢ v 2

X%
|

| repose. Ho did overything possible to conply with tho honors due the soul *
of tho decensed prisoncr, Hec thon had tho aecused ONOSE report obout this ¢
division headquarters, Tho necused KOICHI will trko the stand in his omn
boh~1# end testify tc the cbove facts, In order to eorroboraote the :
timony of tho accused KOICHI, Licutenant Colonel NAKAGAWA who was with -
will tostify to the circunstoncos under which the cocusod roecived the ordo
fron Cormander TWOUE; =nd on cye-witncss TANAEA, Masco will tostify to the
circunatonces surrounding the nctual scene of tho uxoeution,

=]

l. Noxt, thc accused KATSUYAMA wne called by tho cecusod KOICHI prior to
his doparture to division headquartors, and was relaycd the intention of
Cornanding Officer INOUE to havo hi- oxocuto the prisoner, KLTSULLEL stotod
the improprioty of tho plan and roquested tho cecusod KOICHI to rofuso it
firnly for him, EOICHI agreod to this. But, lato thc next night tho aeeusdd
KLTSUYANL was rclnyod tho orders of tho division hoadquartors by EDICHI - -
i through the phone, orders ~hich insisto” upon KATSUYAMA's perfornonce. of thg

exceution of tho priscner, As KATSUYAMA could not holp this, ho oboyed and
carried it out, Thie wos anything but vhat the rccused KLTSUYAML intended.
Ho unavoidablo took this stcp bocouse he eould not rosist superiocr ordors.
The circumstonces surrounding this foet will be testified to by the accused
v KOICHI when he tckes tho stand,

[ The nccuscd ONOSE recoivod throc spocific dutics == to excort Second
Lioutonant Kaufren to Koror, to return his belongings, end to confirm the
oxooution of Seeccnd Lieutenent Kaufnan == fron hie irmedinte superior
intelligoneo etaff officor, Lioutenant Colonel YAJIML, On tho day bofore thn
oxecution, acccnpanicd by the accusod TSUCHIYL and gunsoku SHIMOJO, ho escul .~
ed Knufmen to Koror, Com:leting his designated nission he roturmed tc tho
division hoadquartcrs and reportod it to his superiors. This was the whole
of ONOSE's nctions and he did mot in any way take part in the execution, L
regords this, ONOSE's colloaguecs WLTANABE, Toshic or HAMANO, Julius will
tho stand and tostify.

As regards the noocused TSUCHIYL, upon receiving the above nentionod orders
or steff officor Y.JIML from tho sccused ONOSE, he accorpanied ONOSE to Korqr,
TSUCHIY.A carriod out a part of ONOSE's duty of roturning Kaufron's belon 6
at the seene just beforc the exocution, but he was only ONOSE's aselstant a
has boen testified by prosocution witness YAJINA, Moroover, the resson why .
ho was selocted to go along was bceruse it so happered that it vas his reg- '
ular turn to go out on a trip that day, and was shecr coincidence, Therefoxe, -
he took no part in tho oxocution and dofisitely did not comiit murder, The
asousod TSUCHIYA will take tho stand on his ovn bohnlf and testify to thie,

Lastly, in Cherge II, tho accused KOICHI 1s chargod with neglect of d
as violating tho law and custors of war, Thero rre, however, no grounds on
which to charge hin vith noglect of duty., The responsibility for thc custor
' urthnprimmruuhthnwerIMMMHnnr
INOUE and eannot devolve upon the accused KDICAY gho e enly & sorfmmder o
tho anti-aireraft unik, Moreover, the noeusef XOLGEI carried awl this
tion of tho prisoncr in necordance with the order of Offeor 4
and no duty undor intornational law is inposed upon the com r of the anf - 1
aireraft unit, thc accused EOICHI, to refuse tho order of Commander INOUE,
Thoroforo, the responsibility of viclating the duty of kooping custody of :5:
mmmmwmm“mwmmmpnmf ?
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to execute the priscner, and to charge the accused KOICHI with 1t would
be far from the point,

Reapectfully,

| Hideo Kuwata.

| I hereby certify the above to be a true and complete of the
| eriginial Opening Statement For The Defense” consisting of three (3)
| typewritten pages, to the best of my abllity,

|l Respectfully,

il ) |

| g - . |
¢ ,g_/\.,uq/t 4

| EUGENE )E. KERRICK, ir., .

i Lieutenant, USNR,,

Interpreter,
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¥OICHI, liroe, former Cepteln, Irperiel Japenere Army |

T heve alrecdy testified on the witness eltend, ut I desire
gdditionel stetement, This rereone] declaretion is mede g a8 plea to the
he Corriesion in the fervent preyer et

% i ; ks 3 .
i 4 , you congliqer snc undar-=
~14cht et the time vhen the Correndin enerel, Ileutennant Generel

: :

rad re to execnte an Americon nriconer of wer.

A1]1 my life I hed heen ¢ ttrected by thines militery. oo 2T the eerrllest
grrortunity I entered the Japenese 1itery dececeny,
; .

1, Iy motive for entering the I'ilitary Aceceny end underteking ite

neetion.

entered the 1'11itery Acedemy on 1 Yoverher 1938 =2nd wes rredunted
fror it on 20 July 1941. iy motive Tor entering the !'ilitary Acedemy wes
viory puerile end neive == T wer pttrected by the eplendor of milltery 1ife,
Tn the first veer st the ecadery T received ordinery higher educrtlon; end
treining. Ae the Chines incident had

in the lrct veer end a helf, militery
clrercy hroken out when I entered, the lenytl of the term et the scedery wes

shortened, Our reriod wes rostly ocen; jed hy suhjecte releting to the art off
war end sotuel treining in it, so that the rerieds 2] otted to scholestic
suhjects were very few, [oreover, 2c T ahsented rmyself from the ecedery for
elx months on cccount of illness, I hardly hed any oprortunity to e tudy |
internaticnel lew, Iy thoughts in the pre ent incident were puided more from
he standpolnt of humanity then whether it wes right or wrong under inter=-
nztionel lew,

e sttle conditions in the Faleu Island: at the time of the incicent.

After shout the middle of lduyust 1544, the lirdte opere tion waes 1runch- |
ed; and fron thet tire until the end of the war ve wersa econtinuously bombed-
-- it would he no exaggerstion to sey thet four to elght enery nlenes viere
ahove us, reiding us night snd dey, Cur enti-girers”t positions were borbed
at least once e dey, end eech time our poeition sustained greet demege and
meny of our men were wouvnded, Even in tiis fierce bettle, my men end T did
not herbor the slightest latred toward the enemy, but rether when we locked
up et the coursgeovs sttack of tre enemy, we edmired him saying, "Cur foe |
fights veliantly, ve must admit.” Tt wes ny firm conviectlien thet the
strongest weanon for a fighting men wee the jdea of righteocueness; end 1t wes
because of this conviction thet T wee able to fight through, boldly Bngd
feerlessly, without ceasing until the end of the wer,

o~

4=

3, The condition of ny famlly.

I heve wy mother who 1is £ifty-elght, two smaller gisters and two sme)=|
er brothers in my femily. Iy father dled two monthe prior to my demobiliza~
tion and hore=coming in Januery. After loeing ry father, I came to be the
prop and rmeinstay of the femily end it is my duty to loock after them now.

1

"y U_}rl




, i
Iy femily wes very hexé up, in 2 hend to mout: stete vhen I left then, so I 1
know ryxruther, vho is sick, 1s heving uneesy deye end 1s worrying ebout me,
leﬂ worde of ny mother when I left her, ™I will eet your meel every day end
:e\r,-gi‘,; your return. So pleese corme heel soon,® still ring in ry eers end I
|c:nnot forcet them.

L+ 1y thoughts on the incident.

“hen T received the stern order to do the execution from the divislion
comnender, Generel Tnoue, I wee in a dege end T felt r cold shudder go up my
lspine, Tor e week ofter this T wes in the prip of en extremely unpleesent
feeling juet es if some dar' Leavy clouds were hanginz over my heed, Then I
realized thet the orders of the “ivision corranier, General Tnoue, were fixed
end uneltersble, T decided ss ¢ roldier on the one hrné to corply with the
vizhes of the ~enerel end cerry them out, and on the other hend to shov the
rrisoner my sircerety hy conducting the executicn humenely so ss to alleviate |

as mich nein es mossible end by burying hir with cere to observe due pronriety

to him. Viith this in mind the execution wes cerried out,

I beg you to try to understend how impossihle it wee for me, e recently
promoted ceptain in the ermy, to refure to carry out the orders of the dlvi=-
gion cormender, Iieutenant Cencral Inoue, Tith the intenticn of heving the
genere] pive up the idee of evecuting the rrisoner, T walked into his office. |
So T wes sure there would be a wey out for me if the generel mentioned the
execution to re. 7T should heave known thet I could not refuse when I consider
the setuel condition in the Jepenese drmy,. At thet time I ves sbsorbed with
one thought == to re“use his orders., ‘hen I stood in front of the generel,
my trengient illusion wes broken ond I wa: obliped to fece colé reellity.

There I stood vithout & word to say then the generel in & fev worde toldI
me to heve Ketsuyema execute the rrisoner Feufran, as it wes his unit, the |
Ketsuyr—e Unit, thet bed shot Feufmen down. T etood there without being eble |
to utter a single word. I felt gs if 21) the things T wented to sey were
soing to burst out, but I wesn't eble to say e single word to the last., I
prey thet you will understend ry stete of ming and how immoseihble it wes for
me to refuse the peneral's order, You Americens telk of unlawful orders in
the Army and Nevy. In Jepen there wes no such thing as an unlewful order -
at least in our mind ms soldiers we vere not sllowed to comment on the lewful |
or unlewful neture of e superior's order. As e metter of fact, we vere edu-
" cated to the fact thet we were not to comment upon superior orders. Then
enyone in suthority spoke, there ves unguectioned ané absolute obedience. P Al |
lhave told you £1] this on the witness stenéd but T am so efreld you will not |
eonsider this when you judge re,
, Turthermore, when I think sbout how ny family is worrying end grieving |
| over me and lilewise how long in the future the beresved fardly of Second '
| I1ieutenent Faufmen will suffer, I have nothing but the deepest feellng of
| apology end remorse. IVhy ¢id it heppen to Faufmen end why did it hapren to |
| me? I
- | |
If in the future I am given the opportunity to be released it 1s my gin-|
| cere wish to peint the portreit of Kesufmen, as my occupetion is thet of
| portredt peinter, end send one to his family, keep one for myself end send
| others to the people connected with this incident es I wish to conscle his
| soul from the bottom of my heart, end extend ry heertfelt epology because I

ny (E}n




|

'wish to comTort his hercaved family. It would be most fortunste for me 2 g §
ripht be shle to nrorote internrtione] good=will through this. I beg thet my |

| deepest epology le extonded 4o the heresved Trnily of Second Iieutunﬂrnt lrilf':

| men end thet their names rnd address be rede ¥nown to me, I supplicate the

| merbers of the comrdssion thet e chence be grented me so thet T‘ng realize
the things thet T heve stated. Thet can I do to meke rmende, T who was sud-
denly celled uron to cerry ocut an order whici reent desth to & nrisoner?

' Tie cerried out the executio- solely bhecsuce of the irrevoceble crders of

| the Aivision cormender, Iieutenent General Inoue end I beg tc sseure ycu that
1t wes not & result of cur own true will, You may heve some doubt with regarf
to this point, becsuse the division comrender, Iieutenant Genersl Inoue, cnid
thet the execution wee mesnt to holster our rorele; but truly, ve did s much

| poeeible for the nrisoner £ll the wejy elong, by lending him ovr shoulders or
cerryine him on our hecks end trying to cerry on e nlepeent conversetlon not-
withstending the lenpuare difficulties while escorting him. Iurtherrore the

5 49 3= > o 2%

evecution wes confucted in accordence Vvith e wey ¢ he Serural; end =fter

burinl ves over, I frecuently visited his grove ne T would leve done towerd

those of my decessed subordinetes,

nut you rey sey, "y didn't rou stc +nd conrider helore vecu executed

Yeufren?" You nembers of the corrlsrion sre officers of meny yeerg' exmer-

sence. You nrobebly 211 foucht through the long war yeers end suffered ruch

vourself,

Do you understand vtet en order vae in the Jepenese Army. Lo you lmom |
+tet there wes no cuch thoughte that en order mirht be unlewful or &n order

rirht be refusedi |

'en died hecsuse they were orderec to do the imnossible,

-"."I‘Lf. wid 4 E‘!'I"‘.','.""T'f_'!‘{.a 11_. n otom L"ﬁ 121, : .J._,E'.n‘.:pFT'E'. vep -'."L‘"L'I‘L”' 't-l'}

You heve
1¢ in order to hice the reel story of the ex eution end in order
" o |

commit suicld
5 b I i

= e

to vrotect the penersl, Tou may thi no rersen mould teke hic own lile)
simply because he wes orderad i il the Jenanese Army £ll orders had
to be oheyed, Katsuyere wowld heve 15 Jife if the order had not been
receinded. .

Yetpuyeme wes ordereé to execute the rrisoner. I lkrow he heé no will to|

lde g0 £8 T Jnow he hed no will to teke 'lis own 1ife, |
|

T wish thot Fetsuyeme bed teken the witnees eteand but he hes elrercy _
died a thousend “esthe for whet he wes ordered to do thet dey end vhet he did
vhen he cerried out the generel's orders.
We thougtt of Feufmen that dey, but what could we do? I pray you under-|
stend our eriticel rosition end how imnogsible it wes to refuse to ohey. '
| Hove mercy on ue. If I could heve stopped the executlon T would have done B0y
| In enite of thie, the exccutlon was carried out beccuse T could not refuse
|| the orders of the commending general, Tnoue.

T bhelieve the feelings of Katsuyeme vho executed the rrisoner were com=
| pletely the same as m ne. As T wes his direct superior I em the one vho best
knows them. I heave sywpathy for Fetsuyeme's feelings., I am eshamed &8s his
il superior to heve had him carry out the execution and I wish to:extend ry
Il epology to him, T pray that you be lenient in your judgment of him,

"y [3]"




Appealing to your mercy, T ber thet gyrpethy be tendered us end suprli-

pate you for lenlent jur gment.,

December T, 1947.

hereby certify the ebove, con teting of three ané one-helf (32)

typenritten peges, to be o syne ont commlete trensletion of the original
Lk i i 2 S 7 - L~ e hpnd P o I | .
strterent written in Jeponese e f my ability. .
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Lieutensnt, USHH.
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I FATSUTAIA, Teteuji, forrer First Iieutenant, IJd

. Perpona’ Iivtory.

T wag born £s the second son of my father, fotero, no decenced, ct
201¢ Oaze=tekai, Trliei-rurs, lerdtelel-gun, Vegrno=ken, on 7 Februery 1915.

-

Gremrer School in l'areh 1927, enter-
Lehool in April of tie ceme yeer end |

T finlched the course et the T
| e5 the lageno Frefectural Suscle [idd
ereduated in l'erch 1932, ATter rrodupted fron school, I vorked et the

‘e}el-mure Industriel Corporstion, On the 10th of Jemuery 1¢3¢, I enlisted
snd entered the Ttsunoriye 20th J i1lery Repiment, I wee appointed to be a
non=cormissioned offlicel 0 irgt of ley of the yeer, an® then, efter

' t rejor on 1 Decenber 1G41. On 10 Decenber

| promotlons, wes gppointed sergegn g
1542 T hecame o cadet and entere i the Army Aczdeny ot Sagenihers-machi, Kozag
gun, Fencpewe-ken, from wl ich T pgredusted on ilhe rifteentt of Vovember 1943.
2+ 1he end of Octoher 1944, I wes attoched to an enti-zirereft unit of the
1ith Division, end nes appointed firsi lientenent on 1 l'erch 1945,

v Lirthplece to° tigh T Lieve referred above,

y fen’ly cone mother (elxty-four years old thi: yeer), my wife,
ry brother end ny brotl er'c vife, !y wife is now living with her pcrents;
ry lrother is st11) e prisoner c * wer irterned in Tussia; my brotler's wife,
00, 1s living with her perentc. SO MYy mother is living slone end working

o

az o fermer. oince it is herd for her to meintein her livelihood by herself),
prother='n=lew is helping her. 17 houge end ebout helf en ccre of land
gre el1 the nroperty I heve,
s -+ Teeling towerd the Incldent.

One dey, 4in the mdddle of Tay 1945, Captein Holehi celled for ryr opln-

7 Liag
jon es to the intention of Comrendin Generel Tnoue to give me en order o
axecute 2 vrisoner of wer in order to Lolster the morele of my unit, I ol= |

-

jected to the ex cution seying that the morele of ry unit wes ! igh end that
| it wes unnecessery to execule & prisoner for thet purpose. Captein Foichi
eaid, "I think so too," onc ggrecd with my opindon, =o I 6id not think I
eould be piven the duty of executing the prisoner, yvheress, on the next
morning I recelved s telephone epll frorm Ceptain Ioichl onc wes informed of |
g gtrict order of Comrendine General Inoue, #lipve Firet Iieutenant Ketsuyema
|| execute the prisoner.” Then I re eived this order, I wes so smezed that I
did not ¥nom whet to do. Through the conversation with Ceptain Koichi I |
knew thet the decision of the corrancing generel would never gllow me to abﬂ
jeet to the order, There was nothing I could do or say contrery to the :
orier, I hed to cerry it out. Yet I wees filled with sympathy towerd Seco
Iieutenant Keufmen when I saw him the next morning end I hed not the coursgq
to strike him with my sword. I had no intent to rurder, T hed no melice 1
my heart. lowever, T could not hesitate in the fece of the strict order of
Genergl Incue, my superior officer., Gteeling my heart ageinet »ity, end in|
o dege, I wes reedy to strilke vwith my eword. I herdly remember it. but it

I




-

e —

seeme there wogp ot
[ 1isted men Trom Div

standing right or the rrisoner wes Ju the vwrong place for r ricture, 1
can't rerember clesrly even nm what 1% wes 21l ebout, but I tl in} it wes ae

Teuchiye testified.

sion lleedguarters ha¢ to teke a niecture and I wes not

1
et time & question of & picture to be teken, wone en= I t
T |

hy? I dldn't unders and it any more then . do vihy I should he ordered
to execute 2 prisoner,

T felt pe if everything wel fepl heafore e snd T rep in o dese, Alter g
while, I returned to sormal, Vhet hed 1 donei 4 persch hed heen execubted.
':,_—_,- 0 ,"-'_.- asnAloE T'ere O -!";-__.-,-.-‘ heTore e ToVE, |

After thet, hy the comrenc of ‘wntein Foichi, we preyed for ike repore
of Second Ileutenant leufl an's soul end finished his Miriel cerencny, 4fter
4..5.1_‘4“ = alf4an vis :1'_.'-.‘ T e s Y ,.1 T ..“.' Yid ¥ 1-I,.-!-,-‘”'--‘. '--:.f_. 5.' P, .f,lr"J'LJn'.-'-Fl 1,.|_r' :‘-

14 £ :I-LJ_‘-_I|I

hen T recell the inedidant todey, I Ie ret thet T conld not refuse the

order, At thet tire, ve were veving deily eir reids end e Marious hettle wead

ponstently heing vieged. Under sue" clroumstences, I really could not help
i oul of Second Lievtenent Ieulren end heg

did thet dey.

; b nray for the renposs of the

the nerdon of his fTer {1y for what

K
o) -

In ley of 1945 the Lrericen eir relide ob +t.¢ northern Polau Islends
rere very heevy., 1Y unit Courht lrevely end To +unrtely shot forn en Ameri- |
cen plene. I thought it fortunste thet we shot down £ rlene thet dey, btut i3
war the beginning of vy gree tent misfortune, Thet pvent it seems 10 re 88
trarde for pe o8 it wes for Teufran,

11ed out an? saved himself but fete decree’, by the ordere of

ind Tor ne, the comnandll fflcer ol the t ths ot covn the rlene)
at ig to be my Tetel
I §id not he witners plend lecpure T just coulén't forece my alf
e ~ “oug A ;-n_.:‘._'!._ ,-r-».-‘l--!-._"l :11.51”'
T wa: ordered to comnd suleide !n order to conces) the execution and

You ee

i protuct the gen rel o ordered it, T vwar crezy to even cons 1der
euch e thing, but you do not vnon vhet the Jepenese Army Vs 1ike even in

1945. Then YejJime ardered me to stop. 1 wvas slreedy deed he seid, He dld-|

n'%t know but I hed alrecdy 1ied ¢ thousend times since the dey laufran was

executed.

' How have T lived gince that timel You heerd the gtrtement which wes

iptroduced into evidence. Thet mert only helf told of ny guffering ee I hed
for siy months been hicdden aviey 1ike &n enimel in the jungle. Then still |
undler orders of Yejime, T went heel to Jepen under an sssumed neme, Vas 1
to hide 211 ny life? lio cne «117 ever know how I heve suf Tered.

w

You say but whet of ¥eufman? I know what you mé&i.




I pleed with you to un eretand how impossible it wes for me to refuse td
carry out the Generel's orders end how witiful my present -::r.-r;”ti{m f 'i'!*e!
sleeplese nights I heve spent in bitter remorse for the pert . rleyed in the |

ecution of Isufmen, I Ino 1 er then gnyone, I helieve, the answer to

rJ-u_'
whet of Taufmani

s o

Te there no mercy for mel lust I pray egein e nd apgein end for over and
r1wave have but & trouhled 1ife heceuse I vwae e soldler in the Japanene Armyl
lveye ha g I L vas e

They neid the veor wae ovel in dugust 1945 but LE WAL ot and 1 not Tor me,
L

. - 1 Voam T Falt 4 + Anwr L]
This stetement is such & peor effort to explain 1o alt thet day and

al'p crdere. .

o |

hov irnossible it wee 1O refuse the gens

-

nray for your un erstanding and egk your ! 1ty for ne. I have known
y ce thet dov vhen Iaufman wvas & eeuted. There must bhe some
e

no kinén
ity and sone lendency evel for
g 'J_ 1.r_-\.|-.-|- "._.l' e r.t_
s w &

tesnect ful -:.."}

VATLUTALA, Tetsujl.
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| American law end ~rocedure I am privileged to make 2 steterment, So T make

ken, Though we vere not rich, I was brought up in a very peaceful femily.

| Japanese Covernment plenned to recruit lower renking officers because of the

| in the reeceful environrent of my femily end my eincere 1ife s e student.

| orders wos derénded of us., I received six months' training as a reserve

c ¢ LA

STATELENT
of

CNOSE, Ichiro, former Second Ileutenant, Imperiel Jopanese Army

1. I did not take the witness stend bedause I understand thet under

thie personel deeleration end ples for leniency for the small part I was
forced to play in the execution of an Americen flyer, Faufman.

May I go beck and tell you ebout myself in order io gshow to you that I
em not puilty es T heve pleeded end for your leniency and understanding of
the things I did es brought out by the evidence.

2. T was born in & famly of e fermer in & ruresl village of Fukushima-

Since my childhood, I heve been told by my perents thet I hed to be en hon-
est ran, After I greduated from 1iddle school, my parents kindly ellowed me
to go to Sendsi Technicel College where I recelvec three yesrs' educetion
in the use and menufacture of mechine toole end bollers. From that time the

chortege in the ermy, so I wae consceripted ageinst my will into the military
gervice as an Army recerve cadet in February 1942.

3., The life in the army wae entirely different from what I had known

In this new life, discipline wes.strict and implicit obedience to superior

officer st the reserve officers' ecademy, end during this period the main
point stressed in thet treining was obedience 1o orders, Twenty-two monthe
sfter I entered the army, that is in December 1943, I was commlesioned a !
second lieutensnt. In larch 1944, I wee sttached to the Intelligence Section

of the 14th Division Headquarters and in April T ceme to the Faleu Islends. |

L. MAfter we errived on Faleau, we did not receive eny food supplies
or enything else from Jepan, Shortly efter landing, Peliliu end Angesur were
occupied by the American forces and the demage eaused by the American forces
and stervetion caused by the shortege of provislons became very serious.
Veny men died on account of malmutrition and our eondition became mieerable,
We lower renking officers and enlisted men, obeying all the orders of our
superiors, bore these herdships and suffered greatly.

After the end of the wer, our divieion wes commended as an exenplary
undit end elso received a letter of praise from the American forces. I be-
1ieve this wee becsuse imnlicit obedience to orcers hed been strietly en-

forced.

In the Japenese military forces, g1l officers particularly the lower
renking officers were not nermitted to eriticize the orders of their super=-
ijors. In particular, the orders which ceme from the highest headquarters
were absolute, end we lower ranking officers gcould not doubt or hesitste to
perform them. It is perhaps d1fficult to understend whet wes meant by Jape-
nese obedience to orders and how it worked in the Japanece army.

"gR (1)®
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In this incident for which I am charged with rurder, I received orders
fror. Iieutenant Colonel Yajime to escort Second Iieutenent Kaufmen to Foror.
1 never thought whether the duty T wes mssigned wee unlawful or not, I could
not think of thet., I could only think that T hed to cerry ocut the order then
end there, Decsuse of the militery treining T hed received, it beceme & hebl
to ect like this, On the other hend, elthough I had received educetion 28 an

engineer, 1 wes never teught anything ebout lew, T wes atteched to the in-
tellipence section but I did not have opportunity to receive any ecducetlon

concerning internstionel law. Therefore, I never thought thet the duty I ,

| was sspigned by Division Comrander Inoue Wes &N get indietelhle under the

name of marder, I still do not think whet I did was murder,

"hen T was surmoned to Genmeral Heedquerters, Tokyo, in October of this

yeer, I was told theil I wer to go to Guenm ne & witners end to rrepere oe suchi

Therefore, I wes sstonished when I was served with charges end specifica-
tions for murder on the tenth of November,

I respected Second Iieutenant Yeufran c& a brave officer of the Ameri-
cen Torces end trested him se kindly cs T could, He ¥new of my kindness end
vae glad for it, Then I recell the execution of Second Iieutenent Keufmen
I syrpethize with hir from the botton of my heart end feal deeply sorry for

-

|l 14¢ femily. You say this ign't enough, Jut I, e gecon® lieutenant, could

not heve stopped the execution ordered by Genere) Inoue.

However, a8 to the fect thet T eacorted Second Lieutenant Kaufmen to
Koror, there sre the following reasons thet show thet I did not do it of my
own eccord snd thet I did not do it knowling it vcs vrong.

(1) This duty wes asccldently essigned to me 1o was one of the three
low renking officers of the Intelligence Section, It was ry prrticuler mis-
fortune thet I was selected Ly my superior Lieutenent Colonel Yajima.

(2) As e tredition of the Jepanese military forces, Te vere taught to
carry out orders of the superiors promptly and without judging vhether they
were wrong. This beceme our habit.

(3) The battle econditione in Foleuw et thet time were not favorshle to
ue end we suffered fror cerious demage hy sttecks of the allied forces.
Provisione were ghort, senitery cenditions were bed end our health was
ruined, I was perslyzed both physicelly end mentelly.

(L) I received en educetion only es an enfineer end knew 1ittle sbout

lew,

(5) Ly femily consists of my wife, my aged parents, end three brothers,

Iy beby is expected to be born in the very near future.

After being demobilized, I worked as e laboror in & slate Mamufscturing
Fectory in Iito, Then I got 2 becker, so 1 ocame %o manage E gmell slete
menufacturing factory of my own et the end of 1946. Yost of ry femlly are

- gupported by my work, If I do not return, my factory will be ruined end my

femily will be unsble to meintain their 1living, Even we 1ittle people heve

| our families to think of .
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i
' But you say why didn't you think of Faufmen's family? He too had a
femily end yet you ¥illed him,

| mat T didn't kill Kaufman, Deceuse 1 escorted him to Foror am I to be
found guilty of murder:

I You say the evidence shows thet T ehowed Yatsuyema how to gtand. The
:eviﬂence also shows thet the enmlisted rhotogrepher from Division Herdquerters)
in order to get a plcture of the execution, hed Keufren moved eround so his
1 l fece was toward the sun., This also meent that the executioner mist change |
| his position. You heve heerd the testimony thet it was beceuse of this I

‘:cid something to the executioner.

Ts 1t rateriel fact thet I eaid something to the executioner in order
that the vhotogrepher might get & better picture? T only know thet I had no
intent to commit rurder thet day.

I'y orders were to escort == to bring baclk evidence of the execution.
v nicture wes, it seems, necessery. T beg you to upderstend what I did that
day was only becaure ol orders and thet I hed no intent to cormit rurder.

T do not know the lew with regerd to ~urder beceuse never hrve I killed

| enothier person or ever before have I been cherged with murder or eny crime.
| Put it is impossible for me to think thet I should be charged with murder -
| and found puilty of wurder in this connectlon.

' On the evidence #nd your felr judgment T apperl to you for en esequittel.

L
Respectfully, .

01083, Ichiro.
T hereby certify the sbove, consisting of two end one-half (2%) type-

written nrepes, to he s true end corrlete trensletion of the oripinel state-
ment vritten in Jepenese to the hest of my sbility.

. o - ~
Cn P \ \j-..k,h. L_l-/mk
EUGEXE E. YERRICEK, J&, f
14 eutenant, USHR.

Interpreter.
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STATEVENT
of
TSUCHIYA, Nechiko, former Sergeant l'ajor, IJA.
1. Although I took the stend as & witness In my own behelf, T would

like to melke this rersonel declerstion =t this time. I went to sey again
thet I am not guilty of rurder.

Flerse l1isten to me agein es I plead with you tc believe me when I say i
I did not participete in the execution end when I sey to you epain thet I
hed no intention to commlt rmurder that day.

2. I mwes born in a rural farming femily. After pgradusting from middle
echool, I helped in my femily's businese, end then, was conscripted in Janu-
ery 1939. Then I volunteered to be & non-commissioned officer and wes
appointed sergeant major in December 1943, Until the terminetion of the war
J had served in the prrmy for slx yeers end eight months.

3. When I was serving in the army, the mein pert of my duties wes
clericel. So I heve never telen jert in ectual) hettle nor heve I shot with
g rifle even once during thet neriod,

In September 1944, I errived on Palsu end wes essigned and engeged in
clerice) wor) 28 & non-commissioned officer stteched to the Intelligence

Section of the lith Divieion Heedquarters, In September 1944, the American |

Torces lended on Teleliu, end 14th Division Headcuarters moved into the
jungle of Bebelthusp Islend, It wes after thic tire thet my health was
greduelly ruined., Unheslthy conditione because of living in the jungle, ex-
cessive work ceused by the constent sgeverity of bettle and the shortare of
food mede my heelth poorer 'til et lest I wes effected by malnutrition in
lerch 1945 end had to heve my duties lightened. The incident with which I
have bheen cherged took nlece when I -ms in such a poor physicel end mentel
condition and suffering from malnutrition.

L., After the end of the wer I was demobilized. Then T determined to
work ee & farrer thinking thet I was Best fitted for thic in thet T would be
doing my job to seperste Japen from ite militsrism in order to make it be-
come £ new reaceful country end in order to rlleviete the miserable food
conditions of my comratricts and rid them of their insincere humenity. In
ley 1546, en egricultural training school which teught methode of lenc de-
velopment selected students, and I beceme e student with delight. Then I
finished the course st thet school I wes vraised es 2 most ercellent stu-
dent, Vhen I received treining in thet school, I decided to bring land unde
cultivetion with ry three friende efter we finished the course, Ve left our
hore villege en® begen cultivrting & field vhich wes formerly en army train-
ing ground which I bought. We declded not to drink or smoke until we suc-
ceeded in its development and exerted ourcelves., Our efforts came to be
recognized by people end our work wes reported in the Asehi Shimbun (one of
the leeding newspepers in Japen) in lNarch of this yeer. Ieter in July the
heed of the Cultivetion Buresu of the Agriculturs] Depertment came to inspec
our wor’ snd encouraged us., Althougt we were noor, esch of us could contri-
bute 15,000 yen, end with thet money we bought e horse, end such tools as &
cultivetor, rlough and herrow which were not often used in Japen. Te also
built ouwr house an’ exerted great effort.

"D (1)
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Our work became a good model for other people., We worked harder and
rerder. We intended to buy e amell farm tractor in order to mechenize our
work further. I locked forwerd to the day vhen T would male money by selling
crops end get merried.

Just at thet time, on the sixth of October, T wee ordered to go the the
Legel Section of GHQ where T was told to go to Guam as & witnese ebout half
a month leter, Since only & fev dey: rereined for me before my departure,
T hurriedly harvested the corn and worked in the farm in rreparing to seed
wheat. Then I wes thus working on the ferm on the Fifteenth of October, two
policemen ceme to me suddenly end tock me to the police stetion without tel-
1ling me the reason. T hoped to contect with my femily., I ves taking charge
of the money for our co-operative farming. So T begged them to let me go
home once. DPut they did not allow me to do so, end I wes teken Lo Sugamo
Prison on the next day. Since I was told that I wa: to go to Guam es @ wit-
nese ond since I wee convinced thet I wee innocent tn vhet T hed done, I was
very suprised when I learned that I was being cherged. It 1s sti1l more un=-
believable for me thet I was sccused under the charge of murder. I did not
commit murder, I did nothing that day except give Izufmen his belongings as
T hed been ordered to do. \

As I steted before, the reason why T hed eny connection with this case
{e thet it heppened to be ry turn to go to Feror on & trip. This was really
an eccldents) event. Even ry poor gtete of health did not prevent me from
taking my reguler turn end I went on & trip which s now turning out to hea
the cause of ry present misforiune, 288 T em mccused of murder. I only
obeyed whet I was told without understending the nature of my job. If my
old parente heer thet I am sccused of the crime of murder they will grieve
very much. I carmot understand why I am even gsccused of murder hecause I diq
| nothing.

Fate nlays strenge tricks on people, I who hed nothing to do with this
| rurder end Koichi, Ketsuysma, end Onose who were forced to cerry ou the

| orders of their superiors in spite of the fect that they themselves did not
| neve the will, are all charged with murder, I heve slreedy testified that I
hed nothing to do with murder. Kolchi has testified how he could not evold
even what he did, As T said on the witness stand, Shimojo wanted a plcture
so Kaufmen's posltion waE changed. Ideutenant Onoce only happened to speek
up end tell Ketsuyame as to his poeition of his feet. I pray thet jyou i |
understand me end these other three sccused, Truly we are ell poor people
who have euffered much.

I should not even think of the monéy ond the hard work I did on the
emell farm I bought in order thet T might ecrn a livelihood. I should only
be thinking ebout the dey when I em acquitted of this charge of murder.
Iife is also very herd for me,

I esnnot help but consider that perhepe I have even now lost £1l ma-
terisl thinge 1 possessed when I was told I wae going to Guam 88 & witness
at & war crimes trial.

But T must not think of euch things, I must only hope end pray for an
lﬁqui t-t-al .




5, T would like to express my deepest sympathy for Second Lieutanant
Kaufmen who fought hravely for his country end was executed by the Japanese
forces. However, my connection with this inecident ie very nominal., I had '
no evil motive. Believe me when I say I em not guilty of any wrong dolng in
this matter and above all I am not guilty of murder.

I pray that you will acquit me,
December 1947.
Respectfully,

TSUCHIYA, Naohiko |
Former serpeant rajor, TJA

T hereby certify the ebove, consisting of two and cne=half (2%) type- ]
| vritten pages, to bhe & true anc complete translation of the origlinal s=tate~

[nant written in Japenese to the best of ry ability.
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' Liewténent, USHR.
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OPENING ARGUMENT FOR THS PROSECUTION
BY
Lieutenant Jamee P, KENNY, USH.
If it please the commission:

In the specification under Charge I these four acoused are charg
with the murder of ons Second Lieutenant Tallace F., Ksufman, an smericgu

prisoner of war.

Naval Courts and Boards, Section 53, defines -mrdsr as "The unla
killing of a human being with malice aforethought." Unlanful means wi
out logal justification or excuse, The defense has at no time olaimed
that thers was any legal justification or excuse for the killing of
Lioutenant Kaufnan, It, thorefore, follows that the killing was
The term "malice aforothought" means only that at tho time of the ki
there existed the intention to kill. Two of the accused, Kolchi and
Teuchiya, took the stand in their owm dofense and admitted that Lieut
ant Kaufman was taken to the Japaneso liavael Cemetery on Koror on that
day in May 1945 for the purpose of execcuting him. The legalistic
age found in the wording of thie specification, vis, "wilfully, felon-
iously, with premeditation and malice aforethought" exprosses the same
meaning of "intentional"™ and nothing more.

Now lot us consider each of the accused with relation to this chapge
The prosecution proved beyond any roasonable doubt that the eccused
Koichi was nreesent at the beheading of Lieutenant Kaufman and gave the
order for hies beheading., Koichi took the stand in his own defenso and
admitted the truth of thie. His only plea was that he hud acted on
superior orders. This is no defemse. Koichi is guilty of the murder 6f
Lieuteonant Kaufman,

Tho proscoution has proved beyond any reasonsble doubt that the
acousad Katsuyoma was ordered by Koichi to bohead the prisoner and that
Katsuyama on a morning in Yay 1945 did behead Licutenant Kesufman on Koi .
Island. He had the intantion to kill and he did kill. He is guilty of
murder as charged,

Next, let us consider the accused Onose. The prosecution has pro
that Onose msccompanied the vietim to tho scene of the execution for th:
purpose of making certain that he was, in fact, cxecuted. On thie aloge
he is guilty of murder as charged. Bouvier's Law Dictionary, Vol 2,
gtates, "All who are present, sither actually or constructively, at thq
place of a crime, end are either aiding, abetting, assieting, or advisir
ite commiesion, or are present for such ourpose, arc principals in the
erime." (Citing U.8. v Boyd, 45 Fed. 851) Onosc was nroecnt for the
purpose of making cortain that Lisutenant Kaufman wne executed. The i
dence shows that the night before he took nart in tho discussion and
planning of thc execution. However, Onose further involvod himself at
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the scene of the exeeution by showing Katsuyamn how to bohead Liouteu| .U
Beufman, American Jurisprvdonce, Vol. 14, Criminel Lew, Scc. 87, staf. s,
"To constitute onc a principal im a arime, ho muet be prosent aiding By
acts, words or gostures and consenting to thc commlesion of the crime{®
Onosc was proscnt and did aid by worde and gosturce., He is guilty of
marder,

Now wo turn to a coneifferstion of tho accusod Teuchiya, eone
whose acte therc has beon much testimony, The proeccution zstablish
that Tsuchiya accompanied the mcoused Koichi and Onde> from Bebel
to Koror for tho vurpose of (1) guarding the prisonor and (2) aseiet
Onoes in hie dutice in connoction with the axocution. The prosecu Ta
ovidenco shoi's that nne of Onose's main duties was to make sure or oofj-
firm that Liocutonant Kaufman wos exocuted. It is truc that the nrosequ-
tion has not proved that Teushiya cither took part in the nlanning of
tho axecution or performed amy act at the scenc of the behoading. How-
ever, thore ie no donial of tho faet that Tsuchiya was present and ovdn
though he might not have performed any act at the seonc, if he was
prosoat along with Onose "for such purpose,® then he would become a
principal and be guilty of murdor as charged, Teuchiyz took tho stand
in his own dofonse and testifiod that the only roason for his prosence
at the scone was the roturn of Licutonant Kaufman's porsonal belonginge
to hie body orior to the axocution,

The commission is theraofore facod with a quustion of fact as to ff ~
rongson for tho proscnce of Teushiya at the scenc, If you beliove thatl
Tsuchiya is tolling the truth and that tho sol: purpose of hie oresend
was as ho claimod, thon you should acquit him, Howover, if you belicw.
that the ovideneco ostablishes, beyond any rceascnablo doubt, that Tsu-
chiya wep a nombor of an axoeution narty chargoed with the delivary of
the vietin to tho seccne of his oxccution and scoing to it that ho wae
exccuted, then he is guilty of murder. Tha fact that he was a subordi
nato of Onosc and only a non-commissioned officer ie not rolovant.
American Jurisprudonce, Vol. 14, Criminal Law, Sce., 73, states, "Tho
fact that onc of soveral persone knowingly promoting end participating
in carrying out a eriminal schomo acte in subordination to the othore...
doces not ronder him lese a principal.®

In Spocification 1 of Chargo II tho acowesod Koichi is chargod witi
a violation of the law and customs of war because of hie fallure, e 4
com-anding officer, to control the mombers of his command, and porsons|
subjoct to his control, vis, Katsuyama, Onosc and Teuchiya, in that he
pormittod them to kill Licutepant Keufman, Spocification 2 of Charge [
chargos Kolehi with a2 wiclation of his duty, as commanding officer, teo
protect Licutenant Kaufman, a prisoner of war, in that ho permittod b
killing. 7o have ostablished that Koichi was the commanding officer,
that Katsuyama was undor his command and, bocause he was tho sonior
officor prosont, Onose and Teue:iya ‘roro subject to bis control, Th
Suprome Court of the Unitod Statos recoguisod tho duty which Intore
national Law placos upon commandors to comtrol tho oporations of thoir
subordimatos vhon in tho caso of the lato Gonoral Yamoshita it etatod,
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"It is ovidont that tho conduot of nilitary oporations by troops
vhoso oxcosscs are unroetraincd by tho orders of thoir comnandors woul
elmoet cortainly rceult in violations which it is tho ourpoee of th: 1w '
to provent. Ite -urposc to protoct clvilian populations and priscncre
of war from brutality would largcly bo dxfcatod if tho commandor of an
invading army could with impunity nogloct to take roasonablo mcasurce !
for thoir protietion. Hemeo tha law of war prosupposce that its violat |
tlon is to bo avoidod through tho contreol of thc opcretions of 'ar by
commandors who aro to some oxtont rosponsible for their subordinatce.®
(Mattor of Yamashita, 14 USL 7ockly 414, Fobruory 4, 1946.) Tho law
nlaced an obligation upon Koichi beeausc of hie poeition of command. The
cvidonee nrovog he did not fulfill that obligation., He ie guilty as
charged in the two epceifientions under Charge II.

Gontlomon, thie completos oy roview and commont upon the ovidence
and applicablc law in tho prosent caso, Before cloeing I cannot but
romark that again wo havc heard that nonc of thoso accused intonded to
or montod to kill the unfertunate Lisutonant Kaufman - all wero moet rf-
luctant, But, oneco again, w2 have hoard how thoy were eble to overcom
that roluctance and commit murder. Tho accurad Koichi, vho testified
that ho "wne just likc a child" whon he roceived the ordor from Liocuton-
and Gonoral Inouc to exzeute Kaufman, lost all that tirddity and child
ishnees whon ho changnd roles from subordinatc to commandor and chief
axecutionor. But, gantlemen, the truth or faleity of such testimony h |
no morc boaring on the guilt of thoee acoused than the dofense of supex-
ior orders. "hat docs matter is that 'nllace Kaufrman wae unlawfully
killcd., ‘e do not ask for revenge - and sympathy for his boroaved family
71l not suffice. Justico demande that the oxceutioners of Wallace Kemif-

non be punished.

Respectfully,
Yemus e
James P, Kenny),
Lieutenant, USH,

"=R (3)"
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ARGUIENT FOR THI DIF ST
BY

¥r, Takaml Korasarm

Your Honor, the Prosidont, and Members of thoe Commiesion: |

I would like to doliver this argument in behalf of all tho ascusdd
in thie enso. As tho judze advoeate doelared in hie oponing statemon
this ecoeo ie a very sinmple eno. Thorefore, I hope you will underst
that we Japancse coulscl.mill avodd the complieatod oraetice of each
moking an argumont, by having this argumont revroscnt all Japansse da-
fense counsol.

In Ghnrge I the Jud7e idvoocte allogos that the acoused Keolehd
l the othor three acoused committed rmurder, and in Charre II he allegas
! that tho ncoused Kolchl violated the law and custome of war hy disregagrd-
ing and feiling to diechargc hie duty. I shall discuee in ry mein dig-
couree in bchalf of ocach of the acouscd as to “hothor thay heve any
eriminnl rceponsibility and what the scopo of their oriminal reesponsihi
ity 4s. First, boforo exnamining tho detail of thie canec, I would likd Lo
outlin: this ineidont,

In thie cnso, the facts which both the prosccution and the dafende
tried to prove arc aporoxinately the came. "o ecta only find eomo 4if4 |
ferancos in their substance. Thareforo it ie the agrucd asscrtion of |
both partios that this ineident ceourrcd nceording to the orders of Cam-
manding Officor Inouc = tho moet important faector in thir ineident.

Let us t-ko o cursory glance at ths courez of this ineldent. S
Lieutenant Kesufman, tho arisonar of war in this cnee, was a member of [t
orew of & B=24 which bombed Koror in tho buginning of !'ay 1945; but the
plane was shot down by a Japanose anti-cireraft unit, namely the Kat
yama Unit. He parachutoed fron tho plan: and wae captured by the J
Armod Forcos,

The Doi Unit, which wms thon in chargo of guarding and dofonding
Koror, took Socond Lisutenant Kaufman into custody. After making somg ,
investigations, ho was eent to the l4th Division Hoadquarters which {
ordered the Konpoitai oa the islend to confine the prisoner. On the nc .
day, Licutonant Coloncl Yajima, an intolligence staff officer of the .
hoadquarters, investigated tho prisoner and roportod the rosult of hing
investigation by doouments to Division Commandor Inouc and Chiof of St °
Tada, Chiof of Staff Tada,hovever, discovered some faults in the in-
vestigation, so he orderod Staff Officer Yajima to re-inwoetigate the
prisonor., Staff Officer Yajima investignted him egain and remorted to
Licutonant Gonaral Inoue,

T T




= e |

Cs * 3

It is not clear under what eircumstances Liocutenant General Iumul
had coms to think of an oxecution of the vrisoner. But, at any rato, |ho
thought of an execution and intended to have the anti-aireraft unit
form it. Then ho rovealod his iatention to Staff Officer Yajima. 'ale
not guess how Staff Officor Yajima thought about ths exocution of the
prisoner, but ho passod thie intention of Division Commander Imoue on [to
Lieutenant Colonel Doi, tl.s commanding officor of the guard unit, by
telephone and asked hie opinion, Licutenant Colonol Doi objected to
execution and ansvored that he wonted Yajima to tell Division Commandgr
Inoue about his o»position.

After than, how much time olopsod is nmot clear, but Lieutenant Cqlo-
nel Dol informed the accused Kolchi of the intontion of the comnmand '
officer to execute this prisoner and that he himself objected to that
execution, Then he asked the acoused Koichi what he thought of it.
course the acoused Koichl was of the sape opinion as Doi, and he esk
Doi to tell headquartere that he objected to the execution, Thus h
guarters vas informed of the opinion of the accused Koichi. Toward
next day, Doi happened to go near the Koiehi Unit when he met Kolehd
again and had the same kind of conversation,

Days passed. It seems that something was plannod and decided at
headquarters during that time. Licutenant General Inoue intended to
Firet Lieutenant Katsuyama, a subordinate of Kolehi, execute Second L
tenant Kaufman to promote the morale of the Katsuyara Unit, end order
Staff Officer Yajima to escort Sccond Licutenant Kaufmon to Koror. H
also gove Yajima dotailed instructions about the execution.

Staff Officer Yajima roported this to Lieutenaont Colonel Doi, th
direct superior of tho Koichi Unit, who then relayed it to Kodchi, J
at that time, Kolohl was ordered te go to hoadquarters to report the d
age caused by air raide of tho imerican air forces to Operation Staff
Officer Lieutenant Colonel Nakagawa and to talk with hin about their
future operations. Before going to headquarters to express his opinioj,
he told First lLieutenant Katsuyama that headquarters was intonding to pr-
scute the prisoner and called for Katsuyama's opinion about that,

Katsuyama also objected to the execution like Koichi. Thus Kolehl
resolved to make his last effort to refuse tho execution of tho prison
if he had a chance to do po vhen he went to the headquarters that eve

Koichi arrived at the headquarters. He waited until tho noxt
ing and had a talk with SBtaff Officer Nakagawa sbout tho operation,
May 1945, tho battle cqnditions on Palau wore not favorablo for Japan.
On accotnt of daily air ralde, damage incrcased day by day, llany men
wore woundod or killed, Equipment, ermmunjtion and proviesions foll
The Japanese fordos were facing hard battle conditions. Throughout
mornlog the acoused Kolchi telked with Staff Officor Hakagawa about o
termeasures undor theso hard conditions, end had lunch togothoer.
lungh they went togothor to see Commanding Officor Inouo, Of courso
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2alp business was to talk about battloe at Koror and to report the copdi-

tiops of damage. Koichi himself reportod his dutice in dotail, Sine
he wap cautioned by Colonel Nakagawa not to stand up against the ¢
ing officar's intention concerning the operation, he only made a f
report about it, During that conversation, Cormanding Officer Inouo
solemnly gave the accused Koichi the order of cxecuting tho prisonor
which he had already decided.

The accused Koichi who was nothing but an army captain could not |r

elst the strict order of Lioutonant General Inoue who was the supraome
army commander of the South Sea Area. 8o long as the striot order wag
once given aftor tho ropeated refusal of Koichi, he could not say any-
thing about tho order, Geontlemon of the Commiesion, you are military
personnal, I think you will fully understand these circumstances,

Then the accused Kolchl left headquarters and mont toward his unit
On the othor hand, at headquarters, Commanding Officer Inoue told Stafif
Officer Yajima again that he gave the order of execution to Koichi and
that Yajina had to escort Senond Lieutenant Kaufman to Horor at onca.
Staff Officer Yajina inmediatoly nared the aceuscd Onosa, one of his
subordinates. He relayed him tho ordor of the commanding officor and
also gave minute instructions concerning tho eescorting of the prisoner.
Sinco the nccused Tsuchiya was in turn to go on a trip, Onosoe selected
him as his apeietant. He further decided to teke Gunszolku Shimojo, a
member of the photography section, with him. They, the cscorting party
laf't hoadquarters at once, received Sccond Lieutenant Kaufman at the

EKempeital which was in charge of the custody of the prieoncr and arriwvpd

at the harbor to go to Korer,

They met the accused Koichi at the harbor and they wont together
that night to Keror. It was past nmidnight when they arrived at the
Koichi Unit on Koror, They took thoir night meal and made speciffic

decisions about the execution vwhich vms to be performod on tho next day.

Then Koichi televhonod to the aceused Katsuyama and oxplained the eir-
cunstances under which he eould not rcfuse the orders of Commanding Off
cer Inoue and told hi=m to assemble with his men at the naval cematery
at 7 o'clock next morning.

At seven o'clock nmext morning, the accuscd Koichi told his nmen, W
assonbled at the scene of tho execution by his order, the orders of
sompanding mencral. He also told them that they had to boost thedr

morale in order to follow thoe intention of the commanding officer, Set-

-

ond Licutenant Kaufman wae told by Second Lieutcnant Onose that he was |1,

be executed by the ordors of the cormanding goneral and his belongings
were roturned to hin by the accused Tsuchiya. Then he was behoaded by
the accused Katsuyama,

Aocording to Japanoso custom, the doad boyd of Sccond Lieutenant
Kaufman was car:fully buried and a grave post was croctoed on his grave
By tho command of Koiehi, all asscmbled porsons prayod for the bliss
tho dead Keufman. That uvening, Onose and Tsuchiya roturnod to the
headquartors and reported to Staff Officer Yajima that the execution -
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comploted and Shimojo roturned the next ovening.
This is the outline of this incident. From those facts, we can

fully understand that this incident 1p ontiroly differmmt from the othe

ineldent of killing prisonore of war and that the accusod in this cno
did the bost thoy could. This incident is not purdqr of a prisoner
whatsoover., I think we can even say that the accuscd in this casc goye
tho prisoner Sccond Lisutenant Kaufman what syrpathy and bunevolance
they could.

In my main discourse, I shall argue first in bechalf of aach of the
accused who are charged with murder in Charge I and then in bohalf of

the accusod Koichi who ie alleged to havs violated tho law and custong
of war in Charge II.

HAIN DISCOURSE
Charge I - Murder.
1. In bghalf of the accused Koichi:
The Judge Advocate alleges the accused Kolchl in Specification 1

of Charge I committed -urder, and, in order to prove the allegation, in-

troduced in this court the touetimony of Titnceses Shimojo, Yajima and
Dei, affidavite of cach of tho accusod and the investigation roport of

the American Occupation Forces of Polau concerning the excavation of th.

cenotery. This ovidence discloscd the facts that the accused Koichi,
in accordance with the orders of Lieutenant General Inoue, ordered hi
co-dofendant Katsuyama to execute a prisonsr, Seooond Lieutenant

I do not at all intend to dispute the foecte whieh the Judge Advoda

tired to prove, However, I think it is the most important issue for
judging tho eriminal rosponeibility of the accused XKoichi to find with
vhat attitudo the accused Koiohi participated in the execution of the

prisoner in this case and how he received the orders of Lioutenant Genc

ral Inoue., DExanining the evidence, I would like to continuo iy argunc

In the firet place, the esccused Kolchi opposed the execution of
priscner from the time he firet heard of it., He stated his oppositi
to Lisutenant Colonel Doi, his superior officer, and asked hi= to pas
his opoosition on to headquarters. Headquarters was informed of this
opinion of Koichd.

Let us roview these facte according to evidence imtroduced in thip
court. #hen the acoused Koiohi knew of the plan of exeoution of the
prisonor for the first time, by tho first telephono cell from Liouto
Colonel Doi, he firnly exproessed his opposition, This point was made
clear by the tostimony of the acousod Koiehi, himeelf, and also by "is
statement. Besidos the prosocution's witness, Lieutenant Coloncl Dei,
corroborated thie in hie tcetimony when ho etated, "I said to Koiehi,
*Headguartors told ne to sond a prisoncr to Horor to be exocuted in
to boletor the morale of the anti-aircraft unit. But I think that
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morale is high ae you shot down a plane. So I think ﬁiaunnmmanrj
to do such a thing. What do you think of it?' Xoichi answered that Ho
was of the same opinion."

accused Koichi lmew for the first time the plan to oxecute the priso
in this caeo. Even after that, Dol and Koichi talked soveral timcs,
evory time they had a convorsation, Koichi maintained his opposition %o
that exocutdon.

Through the above eited convorsation betwoen Dol and Koichi, th:t

This opinion of Koichi wns made known to headquarters before the
axocution. This fact is clear by the following cvidonce:

"Q, Did you tell tho cormanding goncral that Koichi aleo oppoeod 1t?
A, hs tho cormanding genmeral intonded to give tho order to Kedchi, ip
wae ny duty to tell it to the eormanding gonoral. I do not rarmnF;r

whether I sald the Koichi Unit or Captein Koichi, but I told him
Koichi'e oppoeition.

Q. Then vhat did Cormanding Genaral Inoue say about it?
A, I do not renenmber,

Q. 'Then you telephoned to Doi, did Doi say that Koichi opposed the oxe-
eution too?

A, I am not cortain whether it wae in Doi's tclephone conversation
Nakagamwa's words, but I clearly r.call the words that Koiehi oppI <
the exccution." :

However, whon this witness was recxanminod by the Judge Advoeate
stated that he did not romember cxactly if ho rolayed Koichi's opoos
to the comnanding general and vhother it wae bofore or after the oxe
tion thet he know that Kolehi opposcd tho execution., Thus his teet
was very uncertain, so the accused rccrogg=cxarined him, and he stat
that ho know Koichi's oprosition berausec he heard it from Doi. Then [tho
accused asked further whother it was before the execution that he he
of Koichi's opnosition from Doi, and he ansvered affirmatively that it
mas bofore tho exocution, PFurthermore, witncss for the defense Nakagowa
tostificd that the first time ho heard about tho intention of the e
manding goncral concerning the cxecution fron Staff Officer Yajime
two or throe days prior to the time whon the Conmanding Cenecral Inou
ordored Koichi to earry out the oxocution. The sanme witness Nakagw
then tostificd that ho heard about Koichi's opinion from staff offic
fnjima two or three days before the exccution,

Through the sbove imterrogatorics, I beliove 1t is made clear thot
Koichi'e opvosition was made kiown to hoadguartors before tho exeoution

Let us consider next whether Koichi's opinion was made kiown to
Inoue's headquarters before Inoue gave him tho striet ordor of the exo-
cution. This point is not absolutoly clear,
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But I believe that the testimony of Yajima that when he first relayed
intention of the commending general to Lieutensnt Colonel Doi, Id
Colonel Doi opposed the execution, that he then remorted Doi's opposi
to Cormanding GCenersl Inoue but thet the commanding genersl hed sl
given orders to Keichi is falee in a good meny respects. After the s
ond investigetion of the prisoner, wtiness Yajime reported its result
to Lieutensnt Geners] Inoue., At that time he wes told Inoue's iptent
of executing the prisoner, and he passed it on to Dol by telephehe.
jima Xnew through thet telephone csll thet Dol opposed the exeoytion,
he reported it to lIivutenant Genersl Imoue., Then Iieutenant Gemerml
Inous tr1¢ him that he had alreedy ordered Koichi to execute the pris
..Thie 1e Yajime's testimony. In other words, sccording to Yajima'e
timony, Yajima was told by Commending General Inoue thet he intended
execute the prisoner, this intention wes passed on to Doi, Dod's
tion was reported to Inoue by him and he was told by Inoue thet he h
directly ordered Koichi to do the execution -- this series of events.
place on the day when Keichi went to headquarters, beceuse witness Ya
testified it wes several hours or half & dey from the time he firet t
phoned to Doi 'till the comrmanding pemeral directly ordered Koichi to
the execution. He later withdrew this testimony and steted that the
was considerable time between them, but, snywey, I think it is corr
that these events took place on the same day, because it is neither s
serted nor proved thest there wes a conversation between Kelchi end I
by telephone or other mesns before he went to the hesdquarters end di
1y received the order of executing the prisoner from Commanding Gene
Tnoue in hie very presence, In short, the accused Kolehi vent to hea
quarters and received the order to execute the prisomer from the e
ing genersl on the day when Commanding Gemeral Tnoue first told Staff
Officer Yajime that he had the intention of executing the prisoner.
Huwruenuﬂm‘u witnees, Doi, testified when he was crosst
examined by the sccused:
"Q., How long wes it (the second telephome cell) after the first phone
cell?
A, I think it was two or three deys efter that, but this is ny imagipe-
tion. It wer after I telked(to him)face to face."

He also tostified to the direct examimetion of the Judge Pdvocate as fol-
lors:

"3, What is the relation of time betwecen the time you talked by telephor
and the time you talked fece to fece?
A, I think there was about a dey between them,"

Thesc two witnesscs for the prosecution, namely Yajime end Doi,
between Kolchi and Commanding Gencral Tmoue end pleyed the pert of
mediery ih the exccution of the prisomer in this cese. For the acous
Koiohi, they ere most importsnt witnesscs end ere his superiors, fow
ever, their testimony wes entirely irresponsible. In particuler Ya)
wee a most importent and responsible person in this case in that he

sttonding the Gommending Genersl Inoue and thet he kept liaisom betw




the commanding genera]l and Iiecutemant Colomel Dol concerning the exeoud
tion of the prisomer in this case., It is he who should have known the
truth of this incident. I can not guess whether he tried to evade his
responsibllity or if he wae afraid to involve lieutcnant General Tnouc |in |
this cese, but he gave very inconsistont testimony. From the tcstimony - :
of the above witness, it is not ee yot clear when Kolchi's opinion wee |ro- |
layed to the commanding gemersl, but it may be rcadily inferred that |
there was ample time for Kolchi's oplnion to heve beon relayed to the |
general prior to his direet ordering of Koichi to perform the execution.

I Even if there should be doubt about this inference, this point ma
| not be so important to Folchi himsclf, becsuse it would be sufficiont 4f
Koichi beliceved that his opinion had been relayed to the commending gem-
ersl end also beceuse there are ressons to believe so,

Even when Koichi wes relsyed from licutenant Colonel Doi the gen-
eral's order to have First Iicutenmant Katsuyema exccute the prisoner
before Folehi left to report to Staff Officer Nekagewa et the divieion
hosdquarters, Kelchl intended to refusc the excoution of the prisoner 1f
therc wee a chence to do so when he eppcared before the generel, Ther¢-
fore, Kolchi called co-defendant Ketsuyame and made sure of his opini
concerning the metter, This point is accounted for in deteil in the tge-
timony of Koichi and the stetements of Foichi end Ketsuyema, T beliew
that the members of the Commission hrve fully understood thet Koichi's
opinion wer throughout in opposition to the execution.

At this point I find it noceesory to explain why Folchi acceded t%
the orders of the geners] end had Katusyama cerry out the execution deg- ‘
pite bis being agrinst it from the beginning. |

Ae regerds this point let us sec what Foichi tostificd, He statcd, '
"I reported to the division commender the condition of battle end demrge, |
Just when I got to explein the demage sustained by the Fatusyomm unit,|I
was oksed by the division commender, "How is the morsle of the Ketsuya
Undt?' I replied, *'It is excollent,' It seemed thet thc commender wa
| stil]l worricd about the morele of the Ketsuyama Unit end he sald, '"The =
prisoner shot down by the Katsuyema Unit will be delivered to you, so
have Katsuysma exccute him in order to bolster the merale.' He furthep
edded, '"You will have the exceution performed et the Fotsuyyame Unit when
enomy plancs arc lemst numecrous, Assemble as many mcn as you can rnd
return the prisoner's belongings when you exceute him,'®™ Then to the
question by defensc counsel, "Did you say enything to this?", Koichi re¢-
plied, "My intention was to oppose it to the cnd, But when I wes dir
ly ordered by lieutensnt Genmeral Incue, the Supreme Commander of Felen
Group Force, I who wee recently nromoted a ceptein end who wee regerd
es & mere child by the genersl, could not oppose the order, VMorecover,
es I had known before this time that Commonding General Inoue wos m mn
who would hardly change his decision once he hnd decided upon it, and
gince be had given the order knowing thet ve were opposed to it, I th
it wes of no rvell to oppose it, so I did not sey nnything.," The semc
socount is givom in Fis stetement,
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This evidence is sufficient to prove the eircumstances under whi
the accused Foichi wes compelled to rccede to the orders of the commn
ing gencrel, end I believe no further cxplonation is nocessery to the
bers of the conmission who ere ell officers,

Lastly, I shnll diecuss how the sccuscd Foichi trertod the pris
Kaufmon, I sholl eite the testimony of Tencke, Messo, witnces for th
defense. Tenrke wee with the accused Koichi on the dny of the exe
end he wes the vitness thet tostified most eleerly cbout the cirecums
gurrounding the scene of the execution. He teetificd, "When Commendi
Officer Foichi came to the scene with the prisomer, 21l the men vho w
there, seluted him by the commend of First Lieutensnt Frtusyems, Th
the commanding officer mede a speech to ell of the men, I do not
the exact words but the spoech was to the effect thet the prisoner wa
be executed by orders of the division commender, end thot )1 of the
should bolster their morele because of 1t." Tennke further testified,
*Then commander Koichi said that it would be o pitiful thing to have

soner exccuted without letting him know, so he told Second Licutena

ose to tell the nrisoner that he was to be executed by orders of the
commanding general, So Second Iieutenant Onosc rced some writtem thi
to the prisoner."

As regards the burial of the nrisocner, witners Tanakn testified o
follora, "The burial was conducted according to the ceremony held in
Japan, Vrrious offerings were mede end then by the commend of Folchi
offered ¢ silent nrayer end prayed for the repose of Kaufmen's soul "
Then Tenekr testified that he wae ordered by Koiehl to erect & grave
marker, so Tenske hed his subordinetes vho hed experience os corpenter
meke a cross on vhich he bed the words "The greve of an American officpr
flyer® inscribed, end erected it.

Moreover, Koichi ordered vitness Trneke to plant some lewn grass pn
the grave end to clean it; end Koichi himself froquently wisited thie
grave, after the execution, Koichi rlso ndivesed Tepake and Kstsuyame to
vieit the greve.

The ebove points, besides being corroborated by the tcetimony of ghe
accused Koichi end by his stotement, heve been elso mede cleer from the
report of the Americen occupetion forces of Paleu which was introduged
into evidence in this court by the Judge ‘dvocete, The accused Foichi
did as best he could for the prisoner Keufwmen,

In my foregoing argument, I heve demonstrated and proved that the
eccused Kolchi cdespite his being opposed to the execution had e
it sgeinst rie will unable to resist the stern order of the commanding
general, end that when performing the execution he dealt with the Tﬂ‘ll
warsheartedly throughout and put forth the best poseible effort,

The foregoing argument showe that the accused Koichi despite the
fect that he had opposed the execution throughout was unable to resist|ti
stern orders of the commending and hed the acoused Katsuyama :“
out the execution end that K had no opportunity to exercise eny
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will in the metter nor d4id he exercise any vhatsocver, Therefore, e

firmly believe that the sccused Koichi is not responeible for murder,
But, if he should be found guilty, we ask you spocinl considersrtion wifth
regard to his situation and attitude end request your lenient judgmenty,

2. In behalf of the sccused Fatsuyema,

In specification 1 of Charge I the prosccution charged the nmuaeﬂh

Katsuyeme with murder and to prove this the prosecution submitted to thie
court the srme cvidence eas they did in the cese of his co=defendant,
Koichi, The fact that wes mede cleer by these evidences wee that tho
sccused Ketsuysre behended & prisoner, Second Iieutensnt Feufmen, by or-
der of his direct superior co-defendrnt, Kolchi.

As the pccused Ketsuyama hos olrcedy stated this feet, in his nf1tr-
ment, I will not try to ergue on this point, The points which I will|e -
desvor to btring out in my ergument for the ascoused Ketsuyema will be
sbout the seme as those for the amccused Kolchi. The eceused Kotsuyn
ceived the orders of lieutemant Gencrol ITnoue to execute the prisomcr
through Koichi., As I heve alrecdy stated in my ergument in bechalf of
the accused Folchi, the order of Comranding Gencrel Inmoue wrs #n i
eble order comrending First Liecutenrnt Kotsuyame to oxccute the pris
Therefore, the resson Ketsuyems could not have refused the orders of
commending genmerel is for tho seme reason Koichl could not heve refu
the orders of the commonding gemerel, Just beforc Koichi left for

hesdquarters, he enlled the sccused Kotsuyama by phone to come to hi
There he mee aked by Koiehi, "Commending General Inoue is saying, 'hepe
First lieutenant Kntsuyema oxecute the prisoner to bolster the spirit of
the Katsuyema Unit.' I em opposed to it, but what is your opinion?"®
To this Ketsuyeme replicd that it should be definitely opposed. But,| the
ncoused Ketsuyeme reccived e phgne crll egein from Foichi during mids
night of the next dey end was told thc reeson why the orders of the
wroding generel gould not be refused, end wes further ordered to ca
out the execution the next morming et 0700 et the Favel Cemetory.

The accused Katsuyome wes ordercd by his direct superior, Foichi, tn
do the execution, for it wes an absolute order of Commending Gomerel |Ino
therefore, no longer could he have disobeyed the orders, The rbove frots
were mede very cleer by the testimoney of co-defendent Koichi end by the
statoments of Kntsuyame end Koichd.

The sccused Katsuyame behcrded priscmer Sccond Lieutensnt Ke
by order of Keichi snd thus carried out the execution, He, with the
aBoused Koichi, wae only en instrument of Commending General Inoue r .
did only as ordered and cerried out the execution. the prosecytis |
witnesses there is one witness who mede wany statemonts/Which ve sh
teke notice, This is Shimojo, Mitsuheru,

The vitness, Shimojo testified thet vhen he escorted the prisonpr

the Kolchi Unit, Keteuyomo wos thore end thet he ordered two or thre
non-commissioncd officers to put the prisomcr in the rireredd sheltep nni
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guerd him elosely, DPut the sccused Betsuyeme d1d not go to Foichi's
headqunrters the might the priscner wos breught there, Ho only reced
en order to execute by telephone from Foichi. Witness Shimojo could

even identify the sccused Koichi end differentintc him from the recus
Krtsuyome in thie court. I think it is not Jogicrl to heve such vl
testify in regerd to Krtsuysmwe. Therefore, the testimony of the wi
Shimojo, ns hc himself hed to recognise in the eross-exeminrtion, wre
purely his ovn imeginetion. The part ployed by the ncoused Kntsuyeme
in the exccution of prisoner Second Ideutensnt Keufwen ie only the fe
thet he beheeded Sccond Lieutenant Keufwan, Furthermore, Katsuyamo

did the behending becruse he wes told by Koichi thet it wrs on absol
order of Commending Genersl Tnoue, The feet that this execution wes
ried out in the best way poseible end the fact thet they foced it wi
sympothy end benevolance towerd the priscner is as I have rlreedy ste
in the srgument in behelf of Folehi. I sincerely hope that the membe
of the commission grent e judgment of mcouittal apainst the sccused ¥
| suyame who acted mechenically under the rbsolute orders of the corme
| general, '

3. In behelf of the accused Omose.

Pointing out that the sccused Onose took cherge of escorting the

: soner end stoved hie co-defendant Ketsuyema how to beherd rt the scen
| t the execution, the Judge Advocote allegos him to hove committed murde
| Cherge I, Even if he motually did suc* ects, I belicve it is utterly |im
perndesible to allege he hos & grove criminal responsibility of murde
Fith reference to the evidence, I shell comstitute my orgument,

' I The accused Onose wes on officer atteched to the Intelligence Seq-
: ! tion of tho lith Division Heodquarters, and the chief of the section wrr
Staff Officer Yajime, Onose wes ordered by Yajima to escort the priurwr
to Koror snd confirm the execution. This point is cleer from the tes
mony of witness Yajimes and Fatanabe.

Staff Officer Yajima besides giving this order grve minute ins
tions to Onose, namely: (1) To obtein Second Lieutenont Keufwan et th
Kempeitai and cscort him to Koror without feil. (2) To confirm the
cution of Second lieutenont Kaufman, (3) Return Second Tieutenent Ha
pis belonginge ond let him have them ot the time of execution. Then
Staff Officer Yajime handed the belongings of Second Lieutenant Ke
which he wes then keeping to Onose. Yojime sleo telephomed the F
to deliver Second lieutensnt Keufman to Onose.

Then Onose received this order from Ynjime, he eppointed Tsuchiyd,
whose turn it was to go on & trip, os his assistont. He alsc nomed ET;-
zoku £himojo, a photographer, es ﬁin assistent, to teke pictures rs d
ce to confirm the execution, It is not cleer whether the eppointment |of
Tsuchiya and Shimojo wes mede in eccordance with Onose's intontion or
Yajime's neming, re witness Yojime testified, "I am not sure whethor
directly ordered them to go or I pamed them by Onose's advice, but I qr-
dered Sergeent Major Tsuchiyr end Gunsoku thimojo te go in order to -
firm the execution.” Though it is not certrin vhether Yrjime himee)f
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namod Tsuchiye end fhimojo, it cen easily be imegined from ris testimqny
that he at least ordered Unose to teke s non-commlssioncd officer and |o

photogrepher.

Then vhy did Yajims select Onose to go? He testified that he did
this beceure he wee ordered by Commanding General Inoue to bave an
cer in the escort party, He enswered on cross-examination by the ac
that ho thought Onoee wes an appropriate officer to do this among his
officers. He further testified thet this duty did not necesrarily
quire the mccusod Onose but that any officer would hrve done in his
place. The witneses Tatenebe in reply to the question why Onose was
selected testifled, "Onose wne sclected beceuse the nature of his du
permitted him to bc away two or threc days.,® From this testimony, we
know that the accused Onosc's duty of cecorting the rrisoner wes given to
him by the ordcr of Steff Officer Yajima end that it wee resl’y by ecqi-
centel chence that he was chosen, Therefore, it is cleer thet the eqd-
cused Onoge did not volunteer to toke charge of escorting the prisoneg.

I would 1iko to ergue next about the second peint which the J
Advocate meinteins-that is that tho accused Onosc shored Ketsuyrma hot to
behead at the scene of the axecution.

As to this point, the mecused Onose stetes in hie offiecevit thet |he
ceutioned First Lieutenant Krteuyeme beceusc Eatsuyame hed essumed on(ine
correct stence. Tsuchiye testified es follovws: "Just before the rm:;z-
tion, vhen First Lieutenant Ketsuyama held up his sword, Gunsoku Shimgjo
tricd to take a nicture. But Fatsuyems wes at = wrong plecc for the
direction of light to take a pleture., Katesuyams chrnged bis position| rn
he crme to stend on the wrong footing. £o Onosc told him that he ves |op
the wrong footing." Therefore the Judge Advocete's so-celled statement i
which he meintains thet Onosc showed Krtsuyara "how to cut™ meens nothing
but the fect thet Onose geve edvice about Kotsuyrme's footing in sccond-
ance th the chenge of Ketsuyema's position csused in ordor thet ¢ pic-
ture sight be taken, Prosecution's witness Shimojo testificd thet Ongecn
showod Keatsuyrma where to step ond hor to held r sword aloft end how fo
strike with ¢ svord., But is it poseible thot & man who crn use & sw
should be taught hew to hold it sloft end hov to strike with 1t? I edn -
not believe that the lsst part of thie Shimojo's téetimony is true,

But the judge ndvocate might maintein thet it makes no differenc
thet Onocsc showed him howr to behecd, or vhether he ceutioned. Fatas ‘e
footing or taught him Fow to use a sword.

In the cese of the 4Llst Nevel Cuards, vhich were tricd in this co
before, to show how to behead wos e motter in question, But I wonder |h
such an ect should ceuse e man's death, So for re r smword is uscd to|l.
n person, the skill in using thc sword will heve little influence t
result ni derth of the vigtim, still] less when the victim hoe no meand -
reeistence, I hrve more then little doubt ebout the nssertion of the
Judge Advocotc thet even such r slight smet should be chorged as surden,
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The rceused Onoso geve Second Iieutenernt Faufmen whet little f
end water to drink he hed when he left Babclthusp, He spoke to him
poor Fnglish and tried to cssuage his lonesomeness. Thus he hed e t
deel of considerstion for Faufmen. Just before the exccution he t
Kaufmen why he hed to be executed. These kindnesscs of Onose shown
the prisoner ere described in detnil 4dn his own affidrvit,

Probebly Sccond Lieutenant Eaufmen would hove had no hetred toor
the ncoused Onose when he wes going to be executed. -I should rether
imegine thet Kaufmon wos thankful for tho kindness of the recused vhe
he mas told by Onosc the resson for hie exceution, for he would know t
the strings of his frte were pulled et suct » high place rs the sccus
could not reach,

I conclude that the mccused Onose's ecots, nemcly escorting the
prisoner and shoring Ketsuyama how to behad, heve no ceusal relation
with the death of Second Licutenant Keufmen, I request thrt he shoulq !
found not guilty.

4. In behalf of the accused Tsuchiya.

The prosccution cherged Tsuchiya with murder bedeuse of the singl
fect thet he escorted the priscner Second Licutenent Keufmen from Brbel-
thuep to the Koichi Unit on Forer Islend. It is obvious thet the fao
that he escorted the nrisoner, if considered independently, does not got-
stitute murder, It is believed, hovever, the sccused Tsuchiyre, who vis
nssigned to cscort the prisoner, is rlso indicted from the view thet o
hrd contributed to somo extont to the constitution of murder ns wrs e
tended by the Judge /dvoeste et the conclusion of his opening stoteme

Let us, by reflceting upon the verious pleces of evidence, mrke
brief review of the mctions of the mccused Tsuchiye in the present ingle
dent,

I shall, first of all, begin by discussing the circumstences undgr
which the sccused Tsuchiye was selected ns the essistent of co-defendfnt >
Onose.

At the time of the incident, there were three non-commissioned o
cers including Tsuchiye, rttached to the inte)ligence scction. It we
the only confort and rclief for these men living in the jungle hed to|go
out for e trip, Then the execution of the nrisoner wes decided upon ¢t
the division herdquerters end he wes to be escorted te Foror, it so
pened that it wes the rccused Tsuchiye's turn to go on & trip, Vhen po-
defendant Onose ves instyucted by Staff Officer Yo jime to trke one -
commissioncd officer emong the three stteched to the intelligence sect!
the person thet come to Onose's mind wos Sergeant ke jor Tsuchiye vhos
turn it wre to go. /t this time the scoused Tsuchiys wer in poor her]t'.
suffering from malnutrition. But ns Teuchiye hoped to meke some recoye
in health by oveiling himself of this opportunity ond es this trip rer
quired merely socompemying Onose, Teuchiye sccopted this duty without
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!-' giving much thought to it. The above frots ere evident from the testi
mony of the sceused Tsuchiye end vwitners Fetansbe end alse from the
statoments of the sccused Tsuchiye and Onose. Then Teuctiyn mccepted
this trip, he did not know why the nrisoner wes going to be escorted tp
Koror. Then, rith Onose end Shimojo, he went to report to Steff Offic
Yajima, Representing the three, Onose reported, /nd here for the
time, the accused Tsuchiye leerned that the trip to Koror wes for the

of escorting e prisoner who wes to be executed, This wos e
he hed been issued the order to go to Koror,

To the question, "Did you =till vant to go to Koror after you he
learned that the prisoncr wes going to be exccuted:" his ansver wos,
got a very unplessent feeling, but since it wre after the order hed
I obeyed," end he explained his etate of mind st that time, Cem ve
nize eny crimipal intent to commit murder on the port of the accused
Tsuchiya? The duty of the sccused Tsuchiya wes only to escort the
ner, Second Iicutonant Keufmen, to Koror.

[ Moroover, the person in charge of cscorting the prisoner wes Sce

Lieutenant Onose rnd not the noccused Tsuchiyn. The duty of the accus
Teuchiyn wae merely to sssist fecond Tieutonant Onose, "itnces for
prosecution Yajime inm reply to the question, "Whet wos Tsuchiya?" tesyl-
fied, "He wos the person to sssist Onose in his work."

In the outset of this section, T stoted that thc rceson for rn e¢t

of escorting to be chargesble under the guise of murder, vas because 1t
' - could be thought thet the act contributed more or less to the derth o
’ person, In the present cese, since Onose wne in charge of escorting
prisoner, the charge ageinst Onesc alone should be sufficient if the
charge of criminel responsibility is intended ageinst this act on the
thot this act of escroting contfibbted to the crime of murder,

To cxtend this rosponsibility to the accused Tsuchiya who was only an
assistent is obviously going too far,

———————— =

: So long o8 you judge Tsuchiya by tho evidence produced in this

I believe it is impossible to place on Tsuchiye such grave criminol
sponsibility rs murder for his act., Aceording to thc esscrtion of th
Judge Advoeate, a man who did rn oct in relation to the execution in pog-
nigence thet & verson is going to be cxeeuted would be condemned for
murder no metter how trifle the got mey be, Then ve consider this 1
dent in the nbove 1light, I believe there rre mony persons who did ec
equal or greoter then those of Tsuchiyn.

Obviously, we must say thet in indicting Tsuchiyn all frirmess hps
been loet. :

It has beon definitely proved thet the nresent incident occurred be-
ceuse of the oppressive orders of the higher authorities,

We who esk of you & feir and impartiel trial, cennot in eomy wey [yle’

to the prectice of imposing such & grevce 14nbility as murder uua::rm
such es the sccused Teuchiyo, an unimportant non-commi ssioned offi for
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such ¢ minor act. Even the Judge Advoocete in bis oponing ergument codld
not muintrin thet he proved beyond recsoncble doubt thet tho eccused
Tesuchiya wne guilty.

In order thet Tsuchiyr be given the same strtus rs persons who hed |
done ncte fqual or greerter in degree than Tsuchiys, but heve not been |
indicted, * rak that a judgment of not guilty be grantod Tsuchiya.

Chorge II - Ciolrtion of thc law rnd customs of wer,

The Judge /cveoente chorgos the accused Foichi with violetion of the
lew end customs of wer. In Specificrtion 1 of Cherge II, he ellegos thet
the pecused Koichi disregerded end feiled to discharge his duty to conkrol
the operrtions of rembers under his commend nemely, Tetsuyeme, Onosc ahd
Tsuchiya end others unknovm, permitting them to behced e prisomer, Secpnd
Licutencnt Kerufmen, end, in Specificrtion 2 of Charge II, thet he die-
regnrded rnd failed to discharge hie duty to nrotect thc rrisomer then
held ceptive.

In behelf of the eccused ¥oichi, I would like to rrgue as to whethor
he bed e duty to comtrol rnd supervisc Ketsuyemo énd other two mersons|enc
whether he hod a duty to protect the prisoner of war,

The reletion between the eccused Koichi rnd Ketsuyeme in regerd to
ordcrs i8 too cleer to orgue sbout. However, it is disputeble rs to
whether the rcccused Kodechi hed 2 duty to control his subordinste Xo
yama in connection with the execution of the prisomer. The sceused Koic!:
received en order from Ideutenant Gencrel Inoue concerning the prisone
this esse, "Have First Lieutensnt Krtsuyems mmmv;ﬁ oner."” Thér:
fore, that the eccused Koichi hed lst Iieutcnent e te the
ner only menns that hc relayed Lieutenont General Inoue's intentions
Ketsuyame, ©So tho execution of the prisoner performed by First Licu-
tenant Ketsuyors is not Koichi's disregerding and friling to dischergo [his
duty to control Fetsuyame, The responsibility to control the exeeution of -
the nrisoner in this cese should be pressod egeinst Iicutenant Gencrel
Inoue, who should be rade en rcoused, but there ie no ground on which
acoused Foichi should be cherged with that,

Next, thc accuscd Onose rnd Tsuchiyr were not under control end
vision of the nccused Foiehi. They were nttached to the Intelligence
Section of the 74th Division Heedquarters and were under control and
vision of Staff Officer Yajima, To control Onose ond Tsuchiys, who
not under the lu?:nillon of the scoused Koichi, is outside the scope
Foichi's duty, It wes Steff Officer Yrjime who grve orders to Onose, rpd
sccording to orders of Yojime, Onose geve orders to Teuchiye, Theose fopt
hrd no relertion whetsoover vith the intant of tho accused Yodehd., Th
only were prcscnt et tho scene of oxecution with Kodchd.

On the rbovc mentioned grounds, I am convinced that the scoused Kojc
is of Specifiortion 1 of Charge II not guilty. ;
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tion and ¥11ling are contrery conceptions. In fine we oan net find smy
| legal duty en the vert of the sccused Kolehi to proteet the priscmer in
r‘tlhj-'.ﬁﬂ‘lﬂw

Koichi wes not told to pretect the prisenmer, It is entirely mesningless
to demand that the accused Xeiehi shonld have protected the priscner. It

have been comsidersble grounds on which to cherge Kodchi's disregerding
mmuwuumamw-mm. In this

ease, however, Koichi reccived o prisemer who it hed alreedy been decided
un:ob-.mutnd. hmmwmumﬁamw

Iuthiluuitnsumf}ﬂlrﬂlmﬁnm“dumlﬂ
have protected the prisomer, Second Iieutemant Kaufmen, and the sceused
mnhinmldmtmmttimmthuqhhaﬂuirﬂtudnm
This point cen essily be understeod from the fects that the aceused Kodehd
mmmm-m-uammamlmwm.m

prisencr theugh he agein and again opposed the exesution.

Hiti:u,mmunmmmn{wﬁnﬂuﬂﬁlam
Kodchi who could not protect evem theugh he desired te pretect. This 1s
to request the utterly impessible of Koichi, and it is needless to say
that the scoused Folehi is not guilty.

The Judg: 'dvocate cbserves the killing eof ® prisoner from its posi-
tive side in the first charge end charges Kodchi with murder, vhile be
side in these specifications, amd




CLOSING AROUMENT FOR THE DEFENSE
. of ;
KOICHI, Hiroce, et sl
Delivered bty Commender Mertin E. Cerlson, USHR, December 5, 1947.

The defense of Koichi, Eiroe end three others sceused of the murder
of Sesond Ideutensnt Wallmce F, Kaufwan, U. S, /rmy, should not be the
case of Vodehi, et el but sccording to the evidence imtroduced by the
prosecution snd corroboreted by the defense this case should be the case
of lieutenant Cemersl Inoue,

These four who are here accused of bhe murder sheuld not be the
-mﬂ.l They should all be rrosecution witnesses aguingt Iieuvtensnt
Ceperal Inous, =

Section 360, Navel Courts and Boerds sets forth exserpts frem the
Canons of Ethies of the Amerdcan Bar fssoeistion for infermstion and

guidenee.

Te guote from this section: "The primery duty of a lawyer engeged
in publie prosecution is not to conviet but to see that justice is deme,"

The wmmmnh-umtdmum. They
have by own witnesses that it wes [ieutemant Oeneral Inocue
who ordered the execution, eutemant General Inoue personelly ordered
Ceaptain Folchi to heve Eatsuyeme exscute the prischer as soon ss he wap
umvmtmunmm. Licutemant Gemeral Imoue, the
Commanding of the 1ith Divisien, Imperiel Japamese Army, furthes
stated that he was having the pripensr sent from Division Headquarters
under eseort of an officer whese duty it wes to sce thet the prisemer
srrived st Koror safely end elive. licutenant Gemeral Ipous ewen gave
such detailed instructions and orders that Ksufmen must Beve ell his peypr
sonal belongings such s# ring, watch, money and identifisstion card,

A11 this the prosecution has proved by thedr own witnesses,

Our question then is and it should be the only guesticn of the
Commd ssdon: t of Licutenant General Inous? Why isa't he on trial in-
stoad of these four accused?

In view of a1l the evidence presented in this case, thet is the

-mtmmmumm-mmmmn
in issuo by their omm prosecution witnesses and whioh we have -
ted,

This Commission is not euthorised
Jwige adyogates to withdraw the charges
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> Shace cos

Or are these four "little men" to be found
This is imerics and the lews of Ameriea ore enforced as
persons be thoy riech or poer, powerful or weak. The

big men, the real criminal, sscepe punishwment?
genersl rnd ancther for ealisted men and junior officers?

an sceused person epply to eny persen who is acoused-of a

Federal Covermment.
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evidenoce ss confessions,

All four of these accused were regulerly demebilised and efter 11
rs civilians for two years they were each, ome by one, seized without
rant & srrest end thrown into Sugemo Prison. Them without extraditien
pepers they ere sent by the U, &, Arny on demend of the U, 8. Navy to
Guam, Here these four persons sre o1l pleced in solitary confinement,
No charges hevo rs yot been preferred ageinst any of them.

One day they ere eslled before e commender, U, S. Navy, and asked
sign erd swear to e stotement which in effect resds that the statements
whieh these persons were required to meke while in cusbody of the U, 8,
Aray at Tokyo ore true, The administretion of this ocath by Commepnder
Ogden in-olved a complusion, Still no charges ore preferred ageinst then
although they ere held in solitary confinement,

Then on November 10, 1947, each of thesc persons is for the first
time madc ewsre of whet and why he was brought to Guam,

In 1833 in the case of Rox v Davis, 6C & P. 178, Gurney, B. it wes
held thet "(examination as witness before megistrate; excluded; 'if after
having been a witness you mcke her & prisoner, nothing of whet was then
gaid oen be admitted es evidence")" cited in footnote 1 to Sec. B30 on
p. 304 of Volume IIT of Figmore on Evidence "Testimonisl Communicetion,"”

The investigrtor of war crimes, Commander Ogden, required thet thees
four oceused sweer that their stetements written in Tokyo were true.
There wes no free choice on the part of amy of these sceused. They cll
eigned the oath Commender Ogden hed nrepared for them,

In footnote 4, Section 849 Confessions: During Legel Proceodings th
rule is ladd down: "1824, Strrkie, Bvid, II, 38 "The prisoner is not to
be exemined upon oath, for this would be a species of duraess, end & vio-
1ntion of the maxim that no ome is bound to criminete himself."

T maintoin that all Japenese when suspected wrongly of erime and
questioned ebout it ere apt, perticulerly when the circumstences ore
strongly inoulpetory end demend explapation, to make the first explanatiy
that ocours to them. The judge advocates proved this when they introduet
mmn-mﬂmﬂms.wnww-nrthaumﬂ
the death of Ksufmen, Felse stories, of how Ksufman met his deeth, ﬁmﬂ
invented by eertein persons etteched to the 14ith Division Heedquarters

nmnuuu.-mdﬂnmumndmmdmdnm Bvi~
dently these imvestigetors were not soquainted with Selden's Prineiple
of Memtal Agitationm, Imnmmrmmn'ﬂarmﬂmp.ﬂ
section 845, Testimonis] Comsunication, Cenfessicns: During Legel Pro=
coedings, Veol. 3, igmore on Dvidence: "1854, Selden, J,, dissenting in
Hendrieksen v, FPoople, 10 N, Y, 33 *Tho mente] disturbence produced by 4
w-m.wnmluMdmmﬂ##:
is elways greot, and in many ceses imeeleusdle. The foundrtion of all




| arrest, snd no ceution given, though s ceution had been given by enother

roliance upon hemen testimeny is thrt merel sentiment which universelly
lesds men, when not under some strong counterecting influence, to tell
the truth, This sentiment is sufficiently powerful to resist a trifling
motive, but will not withetend the feer of convietion for erim.c Hence,
the moment thet ferr seisos the mind, the basis of all relisnce upon its
mand festation is gone...The mind, confused and egitated by the epprehen-
sion of danger, connot reeson with coolness, and it resorts to felsehood
when truth would be sefor, and is hurried into scknowlodgments which the
facts do net warrant, Neither felse stotements nor confessions, there-
fore, afford eny certain evidense of guilt when mede under the excitement
of an impending prosecution for erime."

In the 1ast helf of 1800 the English rule wes that statements are
deemod n  voluntary and therofore insdmissible vhen they hove been mede
in enswer to questions put while in custedy. In Sectiom 844 of Vel, III,
Figmore on Bvidence, the case of Rex v, Gevin, 15 Cox Ci.C. 656 1s eited:
"When e priscner ie in custody, the police have mo right to ssk him ques-
tions, ..} prisoner's mouth is closed after he is once given in charge, and

he ought not to be asked amything."

"In section BL7 of Vel, III, W on Evidence we reed: "But about
the seme tige es R v, Johnsten {im the second form of rule made its
appearabce in England; 1.e., eny enswers obtained by questions put by an
officer to a verson in custody were excludcd; this rule was by most jud-
ros enforced in Englend, and (purhlﬂz} in Cepeda from thet time onwerds.®
Citing footnote 10, 1905, R v, Enight & Thayre, 20 Cox Ci. 711 "When a
police officer has taken snyone nto custedy,----he ought not to qucstion
the prisoner,..l am not awere of any distinct rulc of evidence that ir
such improper questiono sre ssked the answers to them erec imedmissible, ba
cessin my oninion thet is the right eoursc to pursue."

1913, U.5. v, Yrenn, N.Sc,, 10 D.L.R, 45 (the nreetice of detectives
interrogeting & priscner whem in jeil, end when no cne else is present ot
the interview, should be dinunu'r.god.s'

Now Brunswick: 1924, R V., Goodwin (1924) 2 D.L.R, 362 (enswers of a boy
mede at the police stetion; "the cxmminetion virtuslly perteck of the
naturc of a eross~cxamination"; held insdmissible, efter an elaborete
argument by Powell, K.C. in o semsible opinion by ¥eFeown, C.J.)"

1931, R v. Price, 3 D.L.R, 755 (stetements to s polico officer, when under

of ficer at & prior interview, excluded)"

1933 Queboe: Chepdeleine v. The Fing, (1935) 1. D.L.R, 805 (murder; the
scoused v ~an wes daily interviewed by the police for ninc deys, when under
arrest, without counsel; excluded,)"

A1l four of these persons were osked on Guam to swear to thelr state~
ments mede im Tokyo while held in custedy. The thecry as to comfessions .
upon ceth is thet the oath noceseerily invelves e complusion, This theory,
"{gnores the oholcc vhich the vitness hes to use his privilege and decline
hmu.bm-mnq,m-mhﬁdﬁ-mmﬂ#mﬂ;
umhﬂ_mnwdrum.mu-mm.-ms
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to Section 8950, 'Mnﬂtnhﬂunuﬂminﬁ-ﬂud.n!nnldﬁ;
Mﬂﬂt Smih's ( the doctrine), Mercerom's, Tucker v.
Berrow, .y end perheps Owens be Gurney, B.; see its theory fully

statod in the quotetion from Jackson v, State, rnte rersgreph 843."

Figmore on Dvidenco, Vol. 3, Scetion 850, Tostimenial Communication:
Confessions: During lLogel Froscodings.

' Pe oltc the ruling leid down in Jeckson v. Stetc, 59 Miss, 312 £ ound
in Scotion 843, Tostimomial Commnicetion, Vol, III, Figmore on Bvidehce,
| p. 285: "1879, Chelmors J., in Jecksen v, Stete, 59 Mlss 312, rejocting

| an oxaminrtion £s witness after e oceution: The prineiplc is that no stater
. ment made upon orth in & Jjudielal investigation of a erime can ever be
usod against tho party making it, in a prosecution of higself for the semy
erime; bocause the fact that he is under cath of itself oparates ms a cole
pulsion upon him to w1l the truth snd the whole $rth, and his statemant,
therefor: , cennot be regerded s free and voluntery,”

The I1lincis cese deeided in 1905, Hock v, Feople, 219 I1V 265, 76
¥N.E. 356; end leople v. Buckmunster (1916) 274 I11, A35 113 N.E. 713, botl
held (con®ession mrde to the State's Attornmey, excluded without pointing
out eny speeific defect) footnote 1 Sec. 851 v . 111, Tigmore on Bvideno(
page 312: Ve cito these further ceses:

| "Federal: 1916 U.E. y. Rivcra, 8 P.R. Fed. 401 (stetemonts to postel
superior without wrrning, but not undor arrest excluded.)"

#1924, Zinng Seng en v, U.S, 266 U.5, 1, 69 L. Ed, 131, 45 Sup. 1 (murdc:
during 12 days of detemtion, the eceusod, vho ves 1)1 wves constabtly in-
torrogeted; fimally, ho made o full confossion; exeluded, on tho ground
thet there wae compulsion in feet."

- "1927, Cherley Hee v, U.S. 1lst C.C.A, 19 Fed. 24 935 (intorrogetion of a
¢ Chincse immigrant); "

"1929, Devis v. U.S, 9th C.C.A,, 32 Fed, 24 860 (eonfession after being
taken ot ridnight teo tho morgue to view the body; T want you to give mo
e complete confossion, " excluded;"

"Celifornia: 1910, People v, Loper, 159 Calif, 6 112 Per 720 (the “swent~
| 4ng process”; confession excluded.”

"191) Peeple v. Borelle, 1€1 Celif, 367, 119 Per 500 (An ordinery cob~
fession obtained by inhrrmuunns.mlirr only in the emount of profen-

Goloredo; 1923, Turner v People 73 Colo. 184, 214 Par 390 (Confession ob~
tained by police interrogation, not edmissible,”

(Dist.): 1924, Perrygo v U.E. 55 D.C.A, 80, 2 Fed. 24 181 (mar=
der; -wxﬂ,mumuw.wumummmm,
for on hour opd ¢ holf, by four or five officers; confession excludod,
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Illineds, 1920, People v Vinmed, 295 I1), 419 129 K.B, 193 (enswers made
in response to contimuous questioning in the State's Attorney's office
| excluded on the facts.)"

L1

Towa: 1922 State v Thomes, 193 Towa 1004, 188 N.T, 689 (rape; confession
to the sherrif under a "four-hour grilling," excluded."

1937, &t te v Hemry, 223 Ia. 1241, 275 ¥.¥, 10, 18 (questioning by the
sheriff irom 11 p.m. "till noon next dey.)

Micrigen: 1917 People v Brockett, 195 Michigen 169, 161 F.'. 991 (con=-
fession 1 “de ofter lengthy interrogetion rnd while deteined two nights in
a cal] without e bed, exeluded) ;

1929, People v Ceveneugh, 246 Mich. 680, 225 N.¥. 501 (repe)"

Tenn: 1937, Rounds v State, 171 Tenn. 511, 106 S.V. 2d 212 (murder; con=
fession mede after four deys semi-continuous interrogation by e reley
of police officers, excluded)"

Wisconsin: 1922, lang v Stete, 178 Vise 114, 189 N,F, 558 (confossion exe
ﬂl‘lﬂd.“ ﬂﬂt-

1943, Burns v District of Columbie, D.C. Mun. App. 34 Att. 24 TI4 (vag-
rency; holding edmireione mede to officers irproperly received, following
Melebb v U.E.

Texme: 1944, Summers v State, 147 Tox. Ci. 519, 182 8.V, 24 720, T2
(Krueger, J. + "We think the fects ere sufficlent to have crested the im-
pression on the mind of the appellent that he was under arrcat. Hence th
evidence should heve been cxceluded.®)

Federal: 1940 Chanboers v Stete of Flmridl. 309 U.5. M| 60 Bw- *ﬁl &
'L, ®a. 716 (confossion obteined by protracted questioning, held 117egal,
in the light of surrounding dircumstences, citing Brown v State of Mise,

1943: Anc :rson v U,S., 318 U.8, 350, 63 Sup. 599, €7 L. Ed, 829 (incrimi-
neting gt.ut-mtu procured as the result of rrolonged interrogetion ex-
eluded.

1943, Gros v U.f. 9th C,C.A., 136 Fed, 24 878 (agent of German Government
and feiling to registor as sush en egent, 40 Stat, 226, 22 U,8.C.A, See.
233; legnth of time dofondent questioned considered in conjunction with
othor circumstenees rendered confession, {nndwissible, )

Im mi‘ ¥ U.‘Et 9& c.C.A. m Fed. 24 m {m‘ri Idﬂlll.bhl. pro=
oured by reperted questionings for a peried of 17 deys, excluded; ! clabb
v “-'E- fd Mﬂﬂﬂn v u.tE. .’-m-] ‘

1944 Ashoroft v State of Tenn., 322 U.E,. 143, &4 Sup, 921 88 L Ed. 1192
(confession in form of unsigned stetement obteined after 36 hours of
questioning without sleep or rest by relsye of efficers, experienced in-




vestigrtars, and highly treined lewyers, excluded;®)
1946 Asheroft v U.5. 90 U.E, 576, 66 Sup, 544, 90 L B4, 576.)

lm Uiﬁi 7; m' D'c'nl r'hﬁ- '55 F.ﬂ- smli &1 {mtﬂhiu v U-s. m I
followod.)

1945, Melinaki v People of State of N.Y, 324 U.8, 401, 89 L, Ed, 1029,
€5 Sup. 781 (murder; defendrnt wees stripped and kept Baked for several
hours; he wea not nllowed to interview e lewyer, though he had 2sked to
see one; use of confrssion obteincd under these circumstances,rmong ..
others, held denial of due process cleuse of lith Amendment.)

Columbie (District): 1943, Mitchell v U,S, 78 D.C, &ppl 171, 138 Fed, 24
426 (housebreeking rnd lerceny; confession obteined efter arrest snd
about # : 1ek before arraignment ves held inrdmissible; MeNebb v U.E,, °

i Hete 2, cipra relied upon; roversed U.S, v Mitchell 32 U,S, 65, &4 Sup.
agél- 86 I. Ed. m. sl.'lnr!'!
|

|

Floride: 1945 ™il'irms v State of Fla., 22 Eo. 24 821 (murder; coutimucus
quectioning, ete., involuntery,)

North Crroline: 1944 State v Biggs, 224 N.C. 23, 29 £.E, 24 121 (Furder:
umi'u;lim obteined efter prolonged questioning of defendsnte by offie
cers.

The Me Nebb Cese mot only oxcluded the confecsion but Mr, Justice
Fronkfurter eriticized the investipeting rnd erresting officers., I cite
the crse es it is set forth under section 851, pege 54, Supplement to
Wigmore on Bvidense, Vol. 3.,

. "Poderal: 1943 Me Nabb v U,S,, 318 0.5, 382, 63 Sup. 608, 87 L. Ed.
- 819 (Murder of sn officer of the Alcohol Tax Unit of the Prueeu of Inter -
nal Reverme engrgod in the performence of his officinl duties, 18 U.5,
C.A, 253; efter errest of defendrnts but prior to their being brought be-
| fore a committing officer, they were put in r cell for fourteen hours;

|  nfter which they were subjected to unremitting questioning for twe deys
end denled ald of friends or bencfit of counsel; inerimineting statements,
excluded; Frepkfurter, J., (Sup.) €13: Quite epart from the Constitution,
therefore, we are constrained te hold thrt the evidence elicited from the
petitioners in the circumstences discloscd here must be excluded. For in
their trertment of tho petitioners the rrresting officers assumed fun~
ctions which Congress hes explicitly denied them., They subjected the
nccused to the pressurces of a procedure which ie wholly incompetible vith
the vita) but very restricted duties of the investigeting and arresting
officers  f the Governmant and which tends teo undermine the integrity of
the erimins] proceeding., Congress has explicitly commended thrt 'It shell
be the duty of the wershel, his deputy, or other offider, vho mpy arrest
8 person ch ‘with any crime or offense, to trke tho defendent before
the necrest ted Strtes ssioner or the peerept judicial officer
heving jurisdiotion undex lewe for « herring, commitment, or
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taking bedl for triel...."' 1B U,8,C.2, 305, Simlrrly, the det of June
m, 19'”, - ™ ”5' u Eht. m-' 'TITT | s U.B.C.l. "m'. m ‘ﬂ-"_y
ecars of the Federcl Burceu of Investigetion to mnke zrrests, requires
thet 'the person srrcsted shrll bo immediectely trken before a committing
officer.' Comprre rlse the fet of Merch 1, 1879, C, 125, 20 Stat, 327,
31, ...18 U,8,C.2, 593, which provides that when arrests rre medo of
persons in the act of operrting en illicit distillery, the arrested por-
sone ghel]l be token forthwith before some judicinl officer residing in
the County where the srrests were made, or if none, in the Ceumty nerrest
to the plece of eprrest. Similer legislation, requiring thet arrested pere
sons be promptly token before a committing suthority, epperrs en the sta-
tute books of nerriy ¢]1 the states.”

Thie opinion wrz intorpreted by meny courts to mern thet in oesce
origineting in Federe) Courts a confession obteined from the secused prior
to being brought before o committing officer wes 1llogel. Moreover, meny
Stete Courte by erorlogy employed the rule thus laid down rs o eriterien
in determining the legelity of r confession under Stete prectice.”

Yet in spite of our objoctions snd the meny citations we geve in eup-
port of our objcetion to the introduetion of thesc statements, the stete-
ments verc admittoed in cvidence end will undoubtedly be considered by the
Commission in crriving nt its findings.

Fe o. jeet specificolly to certain stetements which if ndt expleined
are demeging to erch of the acoused., The strtements were prepered at the
commvynd of prosegution investigertors with the ides thet these stetements
would be c:meging to the efffnts and rould convict the effient,

S0 in the statement srid to be the stetement of Onose, we find the
following sentence: "The footing of lieutenant Erteuyrme was bed so I
eautioned hir sbout it."

This onc scntence in Onose's statement is the resson Ne is charged
with murder. The judge advcerted have stated thet this 4s all that ia
nocessery to convict Onocse of the charge of murder, De they try teo
intent? No, only thst Onoso crutioned Ketsuyams sbout his footing a
soene of the executiorn,

%

1
g

The judge sdvoentzs know thet even if they hrve beem 2ble to
evidence a coerced statement thrt they must corroborete this
they vill eonveniently forget about intent.,

So thaiyr star witness, Shimejo the gunsoku, is brought to the witness
stand, It is Shimojo who vas ordered to go elong from Division Heedquaré
hﬁlnm toke nlctures of the execution end he did- take plotures, five in
alls

:
;
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if you will remembor tried to coseh him by telling him Aif he couldn't
see he should step down from the witness stand end go aloser, There was
nothing rrong with Shimojo's eyesight; it wns his hearing that was de-
fective ae he testified, Shimojo just didn't know either Kstouyame ov
Koichi., His testimony thet afterncon befere and efter the recess is
very intercsting.

Shirmojo wes & poor witness for the prosecution becsuse he didmn't
even ¥now whether Koichi rnd Katsuyame were st the scene of the execution
before or after he errived. OShimojo ssid: "hen I first came to the
pocpne I didn't nctice them.”

The judpc rdvocate must get Koichi and Kotsuyama identified by thie
witness, horcvor, 5o he reks him: After you noticed thet Kuteuyeme and
Koichi were nt the seene, whet hoppened?

igein Shimujo is confused because he answers: "Katsuyame and Onose
spoke to each &ther and Onose seid to Katsuyams,®

1 He still hro Krtsuyame ordering things to be dome,

Romombering only tho name Ketsuyrma, he testifies next regerding the
position of Fetsuyema with & sword, He further stated, "t this time
Onose showed him hov to cut.”

Shimojo in enswer to question 71 said: "Onose did hot have & sword,
but Onose was instructing him hew to place his foot and how to swing hie
sword ur - od hor to gwing it down,"

The court thep rdjourned for the day,

On c:oss+cxamdpnrtion, Shimojo couldn't testify that Cgptain Kedehi
wag the officer st the Kodchi hemdquarters the evening beféere the exebu~
tien. I refor you to Q. 123 - 127 put to Shimojo on cross-exeminetion
| pertioulsrly Q. 126: "This cfficer thet you cen't identdfy. Did yod ever
see hin rgain’™

Inewerp: "P I heven't secn him since." Q. 127. "You didn't see him
et the exceutien?™ [ngpwer: "No, I hoven't, To this I rn not very nl-u,
But I teptified thet T did not see him et the sceme, Bt when I sew him
at the berpreks of the Fodehi unit I felt s though he wes Katsuyome,"

But Shimojo never did identify Koishi snd Ketsuyame beseuse

not recall clerrly if Kolehi wore glesses and he knew IIT
|| hove glesses on the dey of tho exeoution, 169 snd m

To Q. 181 he snswored: "I don't repall sceing Ceptain Kolchi there"
when the prisomor wes out,

: Fe tricd to question Ehimojo as
csked hin Q, 184: "Whrt do you recrll soeing

to t Onpse 4id et the soene ond
hin do there?, but this

quostion wes objeeted to by the advocate em tho ground thet 4t wes
vEE (9)"
— e —eeil———————




fepetitious, /fter his objection hsd been withdrewn Shimojo's onswer wap
ropetitious beeruse he only reponted, "I mw Onese shoring Keteuyema ;
how to ert with the svord.” Onese hovever wes not in the plcture E‘Iﬂ.-nﬂ
toock of ithe eutting. He didn't show hor to cut, He showed how to stend !
in the ploture. Mﬂﬁilﬂiﬂmrﬁ&nﬂﬂlﬂ?hmwﬂﬂj“’ :
advocates eek the Cormission to find Onese guilty of murder.

But me rek, what of the eriminel intent without whiech there can
never be a erime end in the ease of murder we cnll it "maliec sfeore-

thought . "

There ere certein othor allagrtions in the specification of the _
cherge rgainst Onose. The judge advocerte must prove them rll: ®wil ’
foloniowsly, with premeditation, end maliee aforethought and without ’
Justifiable ceuse.® It ip necessery that the judge edveeatos rrove 2ll
these allegrtions against Onose as woll rs against Kolehi end Fatsuyema,

Does he dere to sey that he has rroved all these necesrery ellega-
tions and all ere necossery before Onose cern be somviected of murder,

We know that the judge adveocate failed to prove the speeifiocrtion of
rurder sgainst Onosc oven bofore Teuchiys testified.

Phen Teushiye got through testifying therc wasn't any doubt but they
the judge advoerte had friled to prove his cese ageinst Onose.

Remembor the burden of proof is elveys with the prosecution. QOposg .
ig presed lppogept until proved guilty.

The nresesution based his guilt on one slender bit of cvidence: thet
Opnose said somethimg to Estsuymme about how to stend. Doos the judge ad=
vooate still meintain thet Onose sided and sbetted Krtewymme, that he
diredtly perticipated fn the exscution? Docs he etill try to convihce
the Conmission thet Onose 18 a principal?

Let us look elosely ot Section 332 of the U, S, Criminal Code: "Whe-
ever direct)y ¢oemits eny sot constituting an offense defined in any lew
of the United States or sids, abets, counsels, commends, induces or pro-
cures its commiseion is e prineipel,”

That 4id Tsushiys testify to? I shall
the point vhere Onosc teught how

on and so ,
made to eit down et the spot of the sxecution vith his back
Bsun,
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80 it turns cut that the aot which Onose 4id wes direetly aiding Shi-
mojo in taking tho nleture. The advosates vill serrch in vain in
the Hagno Convention of 1907 or the Geneve Prisomers of Wer Comvention of
1929 for eny clause or even #n implicetion vhich says it is en inter=
netional erime end offense cgainst the levw and customs of war to take pige
turcos of »n execution., Nor will thay find it is en international erime
to eid another persen in teking & nieture of an exsoution,

After Teuchiye hnd tebtified as he did, the following entry cppecrs
in the record: "Neither the scowised, the judpe sdvoeete, nor the com-
mirslon desired further to exmmine this witnesa.®

Ve were srtisfied of the imnmocence of Onose. The judpe alveoecate
41dn't heve snything to sey then. By now he should be reconciled thet
there wes only en intent on the pert of Onose to see that Shimojo get the
kind of r pleture he mented. The prosecution feiled to prove any intemt
vhetsoevr~ for the set of Onose end Tsuchiye testified it wes only o ques~
tion of ¢ “Meture and not a question of helping Katewyama execute the pris
oner,

Ve ere sure thet the Commission 4 firmly convinged that Onose is
’..h.ﬂﬂ.‘mllt-

The evidenece proves Onose innocent; the Commisesion nov nced only
formelly acquit Onocee¢ of the charge of murder finding the cherge not
proved end Onoee not guilty ae eharged eccording to the evidence the Com-
mission does therefore requit Onose of the charge of murder.

Fhy Tesuchiyn was ever charged with murder or with any offense we
would like to know,

The presceution offered no evidenece to prove Tsuchiya guilty im any
way. The stetement whieh weas put into evidence ms » confession of Tesu-
chiya is not & eonfession. Wigmore on Evidence, Vel, IIJ, Sec. 821, pege
238, defines a confession: "i confession is eny scknowledgment in express
words, by the accused in r criminel crse, of the truth of the gulilty fact
pharged or of some essential part of it," .

Nowhere in his stetement does Tsuchiya eckmowledge he did eny of acts
charged in the specification of Cherge 1.

We object to the trsnslstion of & certain sentence in Tsuchiya's
statement snd he definitely clesred thet up whem Tsuchiye took the witness
stand on the sixth day of the trial,

Teucl'ys testified: "The next morning when I went to the lNevel Ceme-
tery I saw Kaufman aitting down."

And why &id he go to this Navel Cemetery?

Let him answer himself: "The dey before the ewecution I was told by
Onose to return Esufwan's belongings et the last minute, so I cerried his
orders out aceordingly."

i ()"
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he was fifteen meters awey when EKaufman was executed.

Teuchiya wae close enough, however, to see that Shimojo was taking
pletures of the execution, Tsuchiye, however, tock no plctures himself:
or did he rarticipete in eny way in the mqu;ion.

Tesuchiys should never have been indieted ar charged with the ecrime,
He ghould never have been joined with the three other sccused.

This misjoinder of Tsuchiys hovever was e boomereng this time becaus¢
it was Tsuchiys who remembered that Shimejo wented Kaufman fecing the swy
80 he could get & good picture., As Onose wae responsible and cherged
with bringing back proof of the executiom, he aided fhimojo in getting
a pleture, This &s we have sald is no crime even eccording to inter-
national law,

"

Not n single witness has testified that Teuchiya partidipated in any
wey in this execution. "e are most anxious to heer upon what the judge

advogrte is to beee his argument and justify bringing Teuchiys to trisl
for murder.

There is no justificetion for charging Teuchiys with murder. He
should be found not guilty and scquitted,

As to mltiplieity of cherges we have objected to this, Now that
all the evidence is in it is clesr that Cherge II is besed on the same
act end only dpewn end charged to provide for the exigencies of proof,

Kolchi, if found guilty of Charge I, shovld then be found not guilty
of Charge IT and vige versa.

We refer the Commiseion te C,M,0, 2, 1932, p. 13, CMO-1-193 p. 12
Cwo-4, 1925, p. 22.

Ve partieularly call your attention to CMO=1, 139, p. 14 wherein th
J.A,G, of the Nevy set forth the policy of the Nevy Deportment in the
cese of mltiplicity of charges.

The policy wes set forth in CMD 10-1926, p. 8, and in CMD-8, 1927,

¥We heve not seen the review by the J.,A.G. Navy of the Techibans war
erimes trial beld here et Ouam, but whatever the ruling we=~ on that case
ﬁ-ﬁcﬂ.lﬂmlhmldumlldwit!mh![&l.dndhtlll-ﬂlrnl‘pﬂ-

iey,
As ‘o have #oid this should have been the trial of Inoue and not of
Koighi ond Ketsuyenme,

ruEnd fﬂrth.{lnluuuﬂﬂnnl
waumwuﬁ mmml Thare is this Genere
¥hy do not the prosecution st lesst explain te the Commission th




| present whereabouts of Generel Inocus and if he is dead say so0.

Their own prosecution witnessee testified thet Genersl Incue ordered !
the exeoution but the big question is where is Inoue? ¢ :

Even the hareh Mosaic law demanded no more than en eye for gn aye,
Do the judge advocates also insist upen their peund of flesh. are
| wer erimes triels amd it cen well be seid they are without precedent.

i Vet we should hearken to the principles of punishment,

"het Bhell be Done with the War Criminals?™ is the meme of e little |
bocklet prepered for The United Statees Armed Forces Institute by the |
Americen Historical Association August 1944. On page 38 there is o [
chapter "How Shall The Guilty Be Punished?": |

"Mary people belidve thet the United Natdans elther individunlly eor
k| , should dispose of all Axis war eriminals by shooting or handing
A 1itt e reflection, however shows thet thie solution of the problem,
though simple, might be contrary to the best interests of the peoples
who heve suffered from the Axis' cruelties. Apart from this the questic
has been reised whether cepitel punishment for mest of the guilty is im
hermony with seientific crimimology and pemclogy.

In the United Stetes we regard every offender as an individuel, His
assete apd 1isbilities sre studied and a progrem is plamned to make the
‘ most of his abilitfos, develop new ones, curb his bed habits, end gredw-
' ally restore him to & useful and law-abiding plrce in society.”

Ve balieve this peliey should be followed for the wer oriminals,

So whet about these two little men who were forced to participete L
the execution of Kaufmen because Iisutenamt General Inoue wanted to
boost the morsle of the ntsm- Unit which had been practieslly wiped
" out by the imericen bombers!




for the orders that superiors issue, We see it every day in our own
Americen irmy amd Nevy, It 18 so fundemental it needs mo expositiom:
Rank and stetion onrry with the position grave responsibilities. There
is no roalogy to this in civilien 1ife,

Koichi end Krtsuyeme did not rerticipate in this execution because
they wanted to. Nor hes it been proved that anyone wop at the scene
becruse they wanted to be, They were ordered to be there so they were
there, ot us be reelistic rbout it. Bvery Japanese didn't went war,
Many wez : conseripted end meny heted wer.

Yon .rust believe these four when they say they were ordered to the
the thii ;s they sdmitted doing thet dey.

Let us reclize thet a militery orgenizatien demands obedience, If
the orders nre illegsl punish the person who geve the orders, who though’
up the dirboliesrl iden, rnd nlanned it all down to such details as tokin
pletures,

No, pantlemen, these sare not the real criminals in this cese.

The prosecution would megnify the position of Keiehi end hold that
beenuse Geners] Yemeshite, Commanding Genersl of the Fourteenth Army
Group of the Imperiel Japenese irmy in the Thilippine Islends wes tried
for failure to discharge his duty ee commrnder te control the operations
of the members of his commend, then Koichi should elso be tried. Put
Yamoshite wes the Commending Generel in the Philippines end ILieutenent
General Inoue wes the Commending Gemeral in the Palaus. There the enel=
ogy stops for many ressons.

But we do not hald that the Yamashite cose is good lew. Mr, Justice
Rutledge snd Mr, Justice Murphy both discented. Mr, Justice Murphy seid
"The recorded sannals of warfore end the established primgiples of inter-
netionsl law rfford not the slightest precedemt for such e cherge. This
indictment in effect permitted the Militery Commissiom to meke the crime
vhatever it willed, dependent upon its birsed view rs to petitioners
duties ~nd his Aisregerd thereof, # precticéreminisecent of that pursued
in cert-in less respected natioms in recent Yeers."

Mr. Justice Murphy further stated:

"er breeds atrocities, From the errliest conflicts of recorded his
tory to the globnl struggles of modern times {phumanities, lust end pil-
lage have been inevitable by-products of men's resort to foree and arms,
Unfortunstely, such despicable sets have # dangerous tendency to cell
forth primitive impulees of vengeance and retnliation among victimized
peoples, The satisfecti such impulses in turn breeds resentment end
fresh tension, Thus does The spiral of cruelty end hetred grow.

If we ere ever to develop an orderly internations]l community based
upbn & recognition of human digmity, 1tilnfﬂllmwnlﬂlt




cary punishwment of those guilyy of atroeities be o free se
pnui u-wmawmm-um. Justice
must be tempered by eompessiom rather than by vengeomee,®

ra
So in this present cese we sey thet justice demands mn explamation
from the jwige advooates as to "Fhat of Genersl Inoue?"

Justice for both Kolchi and Fatsuyame must be tempered with com=
pession.

The judge sdvocrte has gedd that superier orders are no defense.
How then fees he explain peregraph 347 of the Rules of land "rrfare:

"Individusls of the armed forces will not be punished for these
offenses (violations of the custems snd lawe of wer) in esse they ere
committed under the erders or srnctien of their government or commrn~
ders."

The judge advoente knows of this rule, a rule still in effect in the
imericen /rmy. He keeps seying the rule should be éhomged emd that
therefore this Cosmission should igmore the rule. But the rule is still
in effect. It did not enter the Lmerican rules until 1914.

I8 s not enough thet the judge advoeate says the law should be
chenged. He says these two acoused knew the order was illegel rnd there
fore should be punished. But whet ltw must be applied in order to de-
termine 11legrlity. "Normrlly the law to be applied in order to deter-
mine thr 11legelity of the order that resulted in etreeities would heve
te be the law of the mecused sen's country. He could not be expected
to know the lew of the ememy nction thet nroseoutes him," ~Frem "Whet
$hrll be Done with ¥ar Criminels?", EM 11 pege 31, Tre promecution
friled to preve this peint but this is beside the point beecruse the
Lmericen rule is stil) in effeot that superier orders rre r defense,

Rules of Lend Trrfrre Basic Field Mamusl, FM 27-10, section 345.1
of chepter 11, Penalties for Vielstions of the Lawe of Wer, "Individusls
end organisetions who violate accepted lowe and customs of wrr may be
punished therefor. However, the fret thet the sctes complained of were
done pursusnt t6 order of » superior or governmont sonction may be teken
into considerrtion in determining culpability, edither by woy of defense
or in mitigetion of punishwent, The person giving such orders mey clso
be punished," =-- By Order of tho Secretery ¥ar, G, C. Morsha)l, Chief
of Steff. HNevember 15, 1944.

Enhut.hlﬂuuudlam under the Lmerican rule are protected
by resson of superior erders,

Surely in this crse Justice must be tempered by compassion,

L wre ﬁtéﬂnamhmm-lummm
the stotement
ll'ﬂ!l..lﬂllll.l'l.

This stetement shows who the reesl




Genern] Inoue and his heedquarters staff were not satisfied that
they hed ordered Kstsuyama to exrcute an Americen prisoner. Now they
order him to commit sulcide as part of their scheme to hide from the
Americans the real facte in the case.

Ir asible! No, The word of the gensral was law even if the war
was ove epd Japan had been beaten. 5o Ketsuyema reports to the gen-
eral in full combet dress uniform, Staff Officer Yajima leads Katsu-
yama to a dgpserted hut in the jungle and there he tells him thet since '
he haed ~xecuted 8 prisoner by orders of the general, “as long es you eps |
i glive 1. will jeoperdize the rosition of the Commanding Generel, Inoue,"
| The genersl felt his responsibility now t.hnt the Americans were demands
ing an accounting for the priscner, ‘

So the orders are thet you, Ketsuyama, ere to commit suicide in
| order to protect the Genersl, Poor Krtsuyame] Hadn't he been through
' enough,

It is herd for en American to believe but Katsuyeme wae so disci-
plined that he prepared to commit sulcide because he wos ordered to do
8o,

But Yajime stopped him, saying, "fou are elready dead!" Ketsuysma
wee stripped of mll hie clothes, He wee given other elothes end told,

"From new you ere Koyams, Mikio,"

Then thie new man, Koyeme, was kept hidden eway in the jungle living
like en amimal,

Katsuyame 's elothes were put on & corpse and the corpse sllowed to
rot in the sun until it wos beyond recognition., Then it is discovered
thet it 18 the corpse of Ketsuyama who had murdered the American flyer
Kaufwen, That wes the trumped-up story told to the Americens and they

- ' belleved it. They made en official report as to this and Keufman's next
| of kdn vere nttified, The judge sdvocate even introduced all this into
evidenc:, .

Now the problem wes to get Katsuysma beck to Jspan under his sssumed
name, Yejime took care of ell this end tock hir back ss his orderly.
|  The records of Katsuyame were gade to show his desrth by sulcide end new
records started for Eatsuyeme under the neme of Koyema, and under that
neme he wee demobilized.

Viords cannot desoribe whet Ketsuyeme went through hiding out ns hn

was foreed to do under an assumed name, DByt there was n-w-nl
r Eatsuysme hed to teke a chance on being identified snd he went to Tﬁro
to find work in order to liwe, He found work but his was ope of |
constant feer snd dreed.
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It must have been & heppy dey when discovered
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efter tw

bridled nower end cruelty. He teld his steory
tter re-

yetrs of living in solitude, in drerd and in I
morse for whet he had done,

Although he teold his story he was without without the
aid of counsel so his story only brought him more trouble.

He wes thrown into Sugamo Prisen, Takyo, and then sent to Guam,
Here he wes put in solitary confinement and charged with murder.

:
L

2
:
2

He hes been on trial in this courtreom for the murder of on Ameries;
prisoner,

You may say why didn't he take the stand snd tell his story? The
miracle is that he can still talk end thet hie mind is not gome el-
together. Since thet day in May ef 1945 Ketsuyams hasn't known what it
is to be r humen being, The high commend et Feleu never rccorded him
any recognition of humen digndty.

Fe agree there is the question, "Vhat of Keufmen?® but there is
elso the question, "Fhet of FKatsuyeme?" When you answer thot questioa,
you members of the Cemmission, we pray thet your justice mey be tempere
by compassion rether than by vengeence.

8o in this ceee of both Koichi snd Katsuyema we ask that you apply
the highest stenderds of justice. Stark retribution should not mes-
quersde under the cloak of felse legelism,

You cen be megnanimous ee to these four "little® men who are here
charged with snother man's erire.

L pectfully

Commender, U. 8. Navel Reserve.




CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THE FROSECUTION
In re: KOICHI, Hiree, et el

By
.Aeutennnt Commender Joseph 4, Regon, USH,

The judge mdvochte hes no intention of re-erguing the admissibility
of the confessions which erre slrendy in evidence, Lt the time of the
introduction of these confessions therc wes lengthy argument by Com-
mender Cerlson, but the Commission did eccept the confessions.

The judge advoecate does not intend to enewer the defense nrguments
of improper seisure of these mccused, for thet question was settled et
the time the defense counsel objected to the jurisdiction of this Com=
mission,

For the informetion of the defense counsel end the Commission, the
judge advocete sdvises thet Lieutenant Genmerrl Inoue is precently con-
fined to Sugamo Prison, Tokyo, Japen, end licutenant General Inocue will
be brought to triml for his crimes at e time set by the Directer Fer
Crimes, Pocific Flest.

Ae wes brought out by the ppening stetement of Iieutenant Kenny,
a1l of the stetements made by the judge advocate in his opening address
heve been proved,

There is no point in repesting these focts and leboring the point.
The Commiseion hee heerd the evidence and the evidence spells out guilt,

The mein feets preven by the prosccution heve not been rebutted by
the def~nse, There nover Wes nny guestion but thrt Generrl Inoue hrd hy
himself letermined upom the denth of the unfortunste Faufwen., The pro-
secution ndmitted this et the stort of the crse =nd the proseeution wit-
nesses 8o testified. But merely becruse the ider wae germinrted by the
generel = Koufmen did not irmedirtely die. While the generrl decided
thrt Knufmen should die = these pceused pursurmt to his illegrl order
brought rbout the sctunl decth of the imericen nriscner of war,

Inoue's words slone could not kill but the sword of Krtsuysma did
nlmost sever Xeufmon's herd from his bound body.

The defense hns not denied this but hrve contented themselves by
insisting thnt becouse of the relntive renks all were helrlese before
the implresble gencral.

Once agoin in ¢ ¥or Crimes trial the essentinl feets of rurder and
mtm:ﬂm;mmrhdmmm-uﬂdutmﬂwaﬂm
hee been roised by the mccused == end this shield should not be pere
mitied to shelter them,




This defense of or Orders hra been raised many timee in pre-
ceding tricrla, Not before this Commisesion but before other com-
missions in Jepan end Eruope, It was not sccepted
Tribunrl; it hes not been aceepted by other commissions end it should
not be mecepted by this commission,

Kod hi himself hos sdmitted frem the stand thrnt he knew it was im=
proper w Keufman to be exeouted, That he knew even the purpose given
for the xecution would not be etteined by it. Yet he also sdmitted
that he wos afreid to refuse or even remonstrete with the gemersl when
they were free to foce, Koichi wes afrrid so Keufmen died « ond now he
desires to be exocused from the consequences of his eringing obedience.

g
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Without the efforts of Koichi the rurder would not have come about,
He wrs told by Inoue to meke the arrangements and the Commission kmows
from his own testimony cnd the testimonmy of Shimojo rnd Tennkn how well
he parrled out his inetructions.

Koichi hre testified thet Inoue himself nemed Krtsuyrma to be the
sword wielder, It ie » little difficult to believe this, Yojime's
testimony does mot beer it out- for Yajime says the order thrt Inoue
geve wee for the Koichi inti-eirereft Unit to execute the prisomer, It
is slso ¢ 1ittle difficult to believe that s Lieutenant Generrl with e
commrnd of many thousrnds of personnsl would be frmilirr with the nrmea
of men pecond licutenents under his command, FKoichi not only rrronged
the detrils of the execution but nlso designrted the executioner.

There is no point in srguing the guilt of Ketsuyome, He hes con=
fospod Me port, His wrs the actuel hrnd thet earried out Inoue's order

8 relayed through Coptain Kodichi.

Onose is guilty of murder not only becruse he wos 2 member of the
execution ~arty but more prrtieulsrly becruse he participrted in the
murder by counselihg Entsuyamen in the correct method of using the sword
end the menner in which he wes to nlnce his feet, The Commiseion mey
well bo'ieve Tsuchiyr when he says thnt Onose erutioned Ketouyume con-
carming the taking of a pleture, We do not qurrrel with this statement
for it does not contrediet Shimojo's testimony thrt Onose showed Eatsu-
yeme how to stond end how to best use his sword. Onose's confession is
also suthority for the fret thet he counselled Ertsuyume just prior to
tho execution rpnd is for this rerson thet the orosecution »sks for his
conwietion,

The guilt or leck of gullt of Tsuchiye 1s & question of fact for the
Commission., It is for the Commission to decide whether or not his bedng
a member of the execution deteil was such an sct ss to render him legal-
1y responsible as e prineipal, In the cese of Kedchi, Onose and Ketsu-
yoma - they were much more than mere members of the exscution detail and

they roted directly egainst the priscner,

L™
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The fmots of the crse rre undisputed. The lew of the cese 1s
simple, Murder bre been compdtted and the nccused responsible should bg
mm-

Thrt they rcted under orders does not prevent their being found
guilty. Fhile their stertoments were moving rnd the erguments of their
couneel long, their guilt hee not been denled, Their only defense ig
nothing but » plee to the merey of the Commission rnd might better heve
been mnde nfter the finding,

Let the Commission be merciful when it ecomes to the time of sem=
tence but let the Commission be just at this time ond by the findings
rgein notify ell interested peoples thrt murder under the guise of wor
will not go wnpunished.

wospectlully,

- a g én.
11 ol Gt B s ‘f‘;§7
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Titler,
Carporal Irving TOPP

T rmeoa o mE e ——

Synopsis of facts:

On 4 May 1945 Corporel Irvins Topp, ASY 12177268, becape
Missing In jotion over Eoror Ieland, Falan. Wallace ¥,
EAUFMAN, 3nd L., snother crew meanber who escapod the eresh,
was nardercd oo Koror Ieland by Lt, KATSUYAMA, a Japanese
0fficer, Whcreabouts and fate of TOPP havo not been
deternined. "

e
DETAILS:
At ro&a: ; G
This case 1s predicated om a chock sheet dated 13 Dec 46 which .

has been received from® th 40-FE requesting information concerning the
fate of Corporal Irving Topp. This check sheet reads as fnllowst

GEVERAL FELDS
UNITED STATES AEMY FORCES, PACIFIC

CFECE SHEET
(Do not remave from atteched sheets) -

Jﬁ?'-

[ 3
File Wo.: 4G 2'1-Topp, Irving Sudbject: Corporel Irving Topp
"
Hote ~ Tromi u-rl Tot Imntmbt-, M: uMmMT
ﬁ- f wi 3.'., m.. wk ' ._-

F

:.ntl' wkmm“mm"“"* S




2. Request any informetion available in your effice e

uprn which to base roply, rttention beins invited to the LAt
attached copy of reply to Mr. Topp. © IS
2 Incle: J i

1, Lir fr My A Topp t. Gen MecArthur : ehih

:_-_ L“p ﬂm AFPAC, to Mr ’m
/s/E, C, U,

L] L] -

17r1 Bastern Perlway !
Bronklyn, New York o
Decenter 4, 19046 ; '

Generrl Deupless MeoArthor ; ;

AF.0, BFC il
e¢/o Poptoaster :
8an Frencisco,
California

Honorablo Gene-a. Machr*huar:

My scn Corporel living Topp, 1217736&, 1s miesiug-in-ection eince May
4, 1546, Ee was shot down while on & bembing miseinn cver Koror Island,
Palay, in a B-24 and wre the tep turreter, A eguadron of plencs left
Anguar tc bomb koror laland and while hombinz the enti -aircreft
installation on Horor the plane was hit by anti-dircreft aftor "Bombs
Away®, When the rmat or the planes iviurned, the eye witnosses re—
ported that the winz of the pleno wos seen to come off and ome
perachato open. .

When the war weae rver and our Col., Fike mesotieted the surronder of

Pelan Islands with the Japanese Col, Tede, it wes leerned that the
Parechutist wes picked ap by the Jepenese, taken tn the enti-eiroreft '
garrison end aftor bein: kept e priscnor for twonty deys wes shot

there by & Japaness Officer, Lt. Eetmoyema, This parechutist wes

lator identified as L%, Wellage Keafren, the navirator of my

son's plene,

I went several tices %o the Wer Dep'v. in Washington D.C. for an g, |14
inguiry obtout ry son and up to the present time Woshinston does. AR
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men thet were in the plane? 1 also went to expledn that this wad the ﬁ‘?

only plens lost over Koror throughout the entire wer, so the vlene 3 1‘“"
It, Eateuyame viewed was without a doubt the plens my son was on, In R
as nach as, there »te onptared records of the viewinr of the scene ERER Y 0
of the grashed pleme, whore are reporis of the men of the plene? I AT

foel that 1f tho Jepenese Military Officiale who wore in cherge of h" et
Eoror Ialend at the time this sccildent rocurred would be questioned - ¢ o

fegarding what heppened %o the plems and ite crew, 1t ory leed to.a - ' %
dafinite clus as %o what happonod to “hese unfortuncte con, one of
vhon is =y sen.

I en enclosing a copy of the lettor tha Nr. Looie Keofmen yeteivod ' ke
from yoa end I Lope thet you will ineist cpon en immedirte intortrose- .
$ion of the Jepunese Hilitery pen who were In charzo of the anbi~ . A
airoreft garrison and who were in cherze of Koror Ielaals et the 2
time this plene was sho’ down apd doring the time Lt, Eaufnan was : |
::::l a prisoror at tho irstellation, at which time the plane wes !

1 srust this will bheve your imuedietc mitontion and that I m!' have
youar reply regardln: k) outcoms of the Javenoras Military men's
intertozetion., Thank jyon,

Vory raspecifnlly jynars,

A, Topp

g0 X
223 March 1546
Deer Mr, Kbafpan:

The Commander-in-~Chief hes rekec me tn scknowlodre yrar letter
of Februnry 6, 1546, nly recently roceived, conenrainz certaln
matters onnnected with the death of your sen, Lt, Wellece ¥, Ergfpan,

¥ith the aseistance dorived from official Jevencse Drcamonts, 1% g4
bes Boon possibdle ta losete the greve of your son and to have his body
trensforred $o the United States Arey Forces Cometery. 14 hes aleo e -
been possible to confirm the fect thet he was killed Yty Lt. Katsuyams Jintal
in u it of rage whilo they were viewin: the scene of thé plane orash,
qq-hp L, Isteuyama later codnmitted suicide, ¢ e
" Up %o the present $ins mo ovidenco has beom umcovered which
voul any other Jepanese in the of your eon. Bhould a7 e
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~ The Compendor-in-Chief has askod oo $o reitorate his condolonce ;o e
to you on ybur ~sroat loss, pu! )

N | & :1r_

Yours very truly,

8, J, Chenberlin
Mejor Gonerel, Generrl Staff Corus
Acting Chief of Strff

" Mr, Louie Xeufmen
146 Madleon avenae
How York 16, Now Tork

AFOD BT oo

14 Dacenber 1546 ‘ﬂ

| M. A, Topp !

‘1rC) Eeetorn Par'mmy vk

' Brooklyn, New York e
! Dear Mr, Topp! :
| Your lettor of 4 Decenber 1046 to Uonerel MecArthor re:arding ; .4
.* further efforts to detcrmine the fatc of your son, Corporal ‘lrving 4

Topp, 12177265, has beor. coferred to no for reply. ' 4
i The mettor is roceivin: ettentiron, and you will de given =
further reply rs sarly as preéticable, 1
Yrurs sinesrely,
JOHN B. COOLEY N
mml‘ m " -FI-.
Adjutant Generrl . -

cate that $ho follewing information EX
is 2% bhand congerning the marder of KAUFMAY another crew member, B
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AB:6-2:TMP~cal
i FEADQUARTERS, ISLAX. COMMAND PELELIU
" ¢/o TLEET POST OFFICE, H:¥ FRAWOISCO, CALIF,
[ ' 21 November 1545
{ HESTRICTED _
Tront - Cymmandinz Ganeral, Isleond Cormand Pelelic, :
To ¢+ 4719 COordanding “rficer, B67ih Bomber Squadron, 494th \ ;
Boroer ﬂwy, ¥
Subject: Cesa of Wallace . Eeaioen. 2nd TLt. e
Bnclosarest (4A) Riv: .5 of 1emmine fowmn. ¥allaze, osxhumed R
&% Kuror, 14 Noverler 1945, 3
(R) Rapor: of Gravee Jegistraticn Officer, !
, (U) Walle’ and comtenie thereof belongins to Kaufpan, Wi
. '..ul“ r..-.. m L‘u e
Ty From the —eport by Oernarel Sadac Inous, Comsanding
General, Jepaneee Forces K Falau Area on U,S, Priscanars of War, the
following information ies presented for your information: ond L%, % 1

* KEaufovan was ocaptured ni Yoror, first interned at Babelthuap, bt on

his own request wes retarmed to Koror. While at Koror he becane P

) " d enzaged in & comversation with let L%, Kateuyama, an English Spenking S
*® Japanese Officer., 2nd Lt, Ksafren recussted permiesion to sese the =

place where he was shot down., Onm arriving at the locatioa, Lt,
Katsuyana became 8o angered at the evens of destruction that he tock ,
8nd Lt, Ieafman to a neighboring umurr and killed hinm, v
2, 4. Katesuyama is reported by Gemeral Inoue to have :j‘t'll-'
comnitted suicide mbout August 34, 1943. Due to the absence of ’
witnesses, athr'bhuﬁ)mu. it hrs not been voseible to verifyds AE
Ls. hthrl- s death, A : " B J
HARF No tﬁuth:' u‘: avaliable n ‘Illil command for G ;_1-,' 4 "'i,;
. m‘“ “ m m - , -'.1
.. J wﬁn‘hlﬁn Mmim SRR
ey <o
ot v Ve
Rl l . Rogeze R -
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U.S., KAVAL BASE KOSPITAL ¥O. 20 39
¢/o TLERT PoST OFTIOCR e
SAN TRANOISCO, CALIF. by

: 16 Hoverber 1245
BEESTRICTED

From: Leonafd Heking, Lt., (k0), USHR, P
Tor Med cal uftfizer in &mnﬂ.. ;
Sab ject: Hevart on renatine of KAUTMAY, Wallace, exhamed at

Eoxrur, 14 Yuvember 1545, _
Bnclosure: _ {A) - Deutal lrpurt. u

1, Lt, Wriga . Lt, Pelgea, two other .fficers and 1 departed )
lirth li-uh at "7.5. 14 Vovember 1945, arrivinz Xoror approximately L
11ee, Le, Wright errangcd to have the party driven to tho site of

barial.

2. The grave of the deceasel was found in e small Japanese 5 :
cemetery, marked by a post having Japsnese characters. i
At aboat four (4) feot, the akull wes f1irut oncountered, ;

This was face down and it proper relailiohehip with the rast of the
body as noted on farthe: sxposition of the remains, The skull and
monditle were intact, but separate. Yive (B) of the cervical verte-
bras found were also intact and reveclod no ovidence of violomce. All
the other bones were found except thcee of one hand and wriet and
most of the bonss of the other hand end wrist, The shoes were intact

and contained ‘all of the bones of the ankles and feet, Contral nervons R
systen tissue was not yet completely docomposed, ) Ak XS
From the remaine exhumed. it was determined t.hlli T et
- body wae that of en adnlt male of sbort stature, Wit
(DC), UBNE, revealed #'s 6,7,8,9,1",21,22,23,34,26,26 ciesing but e
sockets present ns would e‘b‘hu h extragtione of fow daye post— A ;,, il
“‘m. 4 ra- l .
- As Aigging continoned and shreds of clothes were brought _L;-:'
mmrtmlnl type leathes wallet in ome umnpemed =~
m which four (4) Ameriosn nu.-u. end muuﬂmp- 2
vepers belanging to lhﬂ—. F e Er"-il‘:ﬁ'-l
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EEFORT OF BURIAL - 041 .5 bulh— 3
NAVMED-6/1 (3—48)
Bhip or Statioh Date repcrt 1546
Attached at Time of Death Prisorer of War filled out 15 Novenber,
Copy of ldentification Tag Nare
KAUFMAY, VWallace 7T,
File or Sv No. Rank or Rate Branch of Service j
Yonse 129686 ¥jo Army AMr Corpe
Cause of desth Prace of Death -
Xilled on Koror by Japensee, 24 May, il
19456 (Taken from intelligense report) Eoror Island, Falao Islunds.
Name of mext of xin (4f kiown) Address of Nex* of Kin, ;
h'. I!. Eauforn ‘5‘ Hﬂh‘m".‘lﬂw m.‘ m
ia N7 "
Date of Death Date ot barial
, 3% Mey 1945 \Takep i Intel Heport) 15 Nuvezber 1345 (Reinterred)
Nape of Cenmetery Location of Ceuetery
U.B.4.F, Cecevery Peliliu ¢ 1 Pelelln, Psiau Islands
Orave Marker Type Flot No, Bow ¥o. Orave ¥o.
S8tar of David [ 11 168 4
Type of Relizlous Ceremony Religion of Deceased .
Jewiah Jewlsh,

: Means used tn “‘dentify Yody:
List of Fersonal effecte found on.body An Identificatinn card was L
and disposition of sane found with remeins of boly,. 1
(Bee etchd sheet for v.rsonal effects) Fersonel effects sent to CO,
' B67th Bonmber Bgusdron, 454%h
Brobhar Groun.

Identification date buried with body. -
Report of burial buried with bedy (printed in pencil) enclosed in & i
mehal container,

Bodies barisd on Either Side
Body on left Dapk or Eate ¥ile or Service No,
HOLDER, Emersld W, Corp. S77354
=1y - . Grave ¥No, re s

R T 167 g

‘Pereon reporting Surial  Ramk or Rate  Person Conducting Barial Rites =
Joseph DAIGNEAULT o B,R, HOWARD, Chaplain, Lt.Comdr.,

“ep ’ .
l' *'.:ﬁ-‘?'lzf‘? II|' 7 . & ' - . d : : .-'1- -. ..‘. - r. s

;.'-;‘?_: ORE. 5, LL%' ¢ Mi#*-&f*" '
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In Beburial, Oive Location of Previous Burial Verified and forwarded:
Grave was previoualy lécated on Koror,

Palaa Islande, removed 14 November 1948 [e/ Jin 8, Wright
- from Jap, Cemetery on Koror to U.B8.A.F. [t/ JIM S, WRIGHT,
Cometery Pelelin No. 1 on 15 Nov 13486, let Lt, USMCR,

Trisiel

AT A
3G T T
16 Y¥ovember 1945,
EEPOET OF BURIAL NN: KAUFMAN, Wallace ., F/0 123656, Army Air Corps.
Liet of Personal Tffects:

111 Fsl2 (deteriorated) - mipper,
% pecsanal stationery.
ne [lg.d.ulur bille.
ive (5) doller bill.
wenty (2C) dollar bill.
ar Dept. 1.0, Card,
1 Officer Zay data card.
1 Immonigaiion Hegloter record,
4 Money ®vder receipte - los, 37673, 37674, 33810,
1 pocket calendar,
1 address; Vici Frye.
1l airmail postage stamp
1 deteriorated picture nf man and woman.

By 1o i e

Inspeation of PACUSA records indicate that the manifest of the
crev is not available; however, it hos been pointed out that only one
. of the mem has escaped and that that sarviving member was murdered.

88
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It has further besn pointed out thet She plane in question was the
nﬂrmhhnm“u‘lmrlﬂntummﬂ.




UFDEVELOFED LEADS:

The Tokyo Office — at Tokyo — will pleace a demand on the
Japanese Government for a list of the addressess of the Jananese
Personnel who wers cornected with the nandling of Priscners of War
on Koror Island during 1546.

The Tokye Office — at Tokyo will place a demand on the Japanese
Government for the present address o1 Generel Sadao INOUE, former
comnanding General of Eoror leland, Falaa, s

The Tokyo Office — at Tolgro —— will request thru Cox Mariennas
that an investigation on the T(eland be conlucted to deterzine the
whereabouts of tae planc wreckagze ani he dispositinn of the remainder
of the bodies,

The Tokyo Cflice -- a®n Tokyo — ¥ill interrogate General Inouse,
Sadan to determine thc yez2te conceralns tne recorde vn. iaining te this
incident.

PEYD1RG,

.




| sald before and told him to relay as follows: "My unit is absolutely against|

STATEMENT

Ap it was over two and a half years ago, there are points which I do
not recall clearly,

Details of the date, time, action, and conversation, I have forgottan.
I would like your understanding rerarding this.

After the great American Task Force raid on the Palaus in August 1944
until the end of the war, eight to twelve American planes contimusd to bomb
our posltions and establishments night and day. Around the beginning of May,
1945, we were bombed by about 200 planes in all for sbout ten days., By thise
bombing our anti-aireraft positions were almost completely destreyed. The
KATSUYAMA Unit (let company) was severely damaged leaving only one gun at
the end of the raid. At the very end of thies raid one large bomber was shet
down, I later heard that one American prisoner was captured, (Heard he was
captured by the natives).

In order to rebuild the damage done by the bombing, I had all the men
work on rebullding the position and on the other hand made nlans fer eper-
ations. Around the middle of May, this work was finished. It was when I was
preparing to leave for the division to talk over the method of operation (I
recall I was called by the divieion). Suddenly I received a direet telephone
call from Commanding Officer DOI (At all times, except during time of battle,
the anti-aircraft unit was”Gde® his domand. I was relayed by the Commanding
Officer DOI the telephone call from the divieionm).

Contents of call by DOI as follows:

"The division is going to send the orisoner who was captured from the
American plane shot down by the KATSUYAMA Unit the other day and they want hip
exeouted, o I told them that the anti-aireraft unit was in high spirit and
that there was no necessity for it here, but they called back again.," As 1
absolutely did not have this will and did not see any necessity of it and
furthermore, I had no time and was againet it, I clearly and definitely re-
plied againat it as follows:

"I am absolutely against it. The spirit of the men canm not be increased
by executing & prisoner. It haes mothing to do with the spirit of the mem.
It is pitiful to execute an unresisting person and there are cases where the
opposite phenomena occurs, and furthermore, there is not time."

Commanding Officer DOI was also against this execution; so our opinions
matched. In a little while Commanding Officer DOI called again and said, "I
relayed your oppositien to the divieion headquarter, but they called agaim
and want ue to carry out the exscution,® Therefore, I again sajd what I

it; so please refuse." After this I was called again, but refused clear
and definitely. Agaim I received a phone call from Commanding Officer n
as: "The division called and said that they will have him executed by Lt.
KATSUYAMA at the KATSUYAMA Unit; eo relsy this to KATSUYAMA.® Therefore, I |
ealled KATSUYAMA over by phone and told him the contents of the phone call.
At this time I told EATSUTAMA to refuse it, and as he was not in the mood teo
do it, he imdicated his reluctance, but becsuse the contents of the division
phone call was commanding and forceful, KATSUTAMA said, "If it is an

order I can not help it."
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I At this time I also relayed if it was possible to refuse, I would like

it to be refused.

Thus at my departure I said, "When I go to the division, if the situati
ie refusable, I will do my best to raefuse, " and left,

KATSUYAMA Jnmows about the above alse.

After I arrived at the division, right away I talked with the head |
operation etaff officer, Lt. Col. NAKAGAWA on the plan of the operation and '
this took all morning. Furthermore, from the rumors of the officers and men
of the headquarter after my arrival and from the words relayed by the non-
commissioned officers that everything was ready to escort the prisocmer, I
knew the absoluteness and decisivenese of the order. After the operation
|| conference with the head staff officer, NAKAGAMA, and after chow, I went with
him to the Commanding Officer of the division to report the battle situation
and the plans for future operation. At which time, after lietening to what
we had to say, he said, "I will send the prieonar by escort company, so have |
EATSUYAMA execute him."

! Once an order had been decided on and relayed down the line, there was
nothing I could say. In other worde, after we had stated cur opinion clearly
in the beginning and then as it was relayed down the line as a definite order| i
I absolutely could not further state my opinion when I thouzht of the strong
and absolute orders of the ordinary day, (Ref.: condition of that time, my
poeition, and status).

I rested a while and planning to leave on the boat going to Koror that
night, I departed. About 3 hours after I had reached the pler, the escort
company with the prisoner with ONOSE in command arrived at the pler to get
on the pame boat. About one hour later, with officlal courlers of other umitp,
the boat departed toward Koror during the night, In regard to the condition
of the prieoner at that time as the prisomer was in the center of the escort I
) group and as it was dark, I do not know what his condition was. Right after |
I arrived at the plateau of our headquarters around 12 o'ecloeck at night. I
had the adjutant, TANAEA, take care of the quarters for the escort company
and relayed the contents of the division headquarter's order. to Commanding
Officer DOI and Lt., KATSUYAMA, By talking it over with the escort company
leader, adjutant TANAKA and Lt. KATSUYAMA, we decided the execution would
take place at the cemetary early next morning when the enemy planes came
over the least, so that we could utilize the time when we were not fighting.

The next morning when I arrived at the cemetery, everyone was gathered
there. The escort company leader, 2nd Lt. ONOSE, told the prisomer in Engli
that he was to be executed by orders of the division and I relayed that he
was to be executed by Lt. FKATSUYAMA by orders of the division. T handed ov
my own personal towel to be used as a blindfold for the prisomer and had 2nd
Lt., ONOSE give a cigarette to the prisoner, and while I was in & hase, the
l prisoner was executed by KATSUYAMA,

Paying respect to the man who died in action, Lt., KATSUYAMA and the
adjutant, TANAKA, placed a grave mark and some fhowers and the men were dis-
missed to carry on the days duty. Already in the sky there were 4 to B
small planes attacking the establishments and poeitions, The escort company
completed” their duty and with the report of the execution went back that
night, I had the adjutaat report this to the Commanding Officer DOI,
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| we did it, he firmly believed that we wite not guilty. When I think about th¢
| condition of that time, I firmly believe that we were not asble to take any
1nt.her action and believe in fair play.

The above was carried out by etrict orders and was not of our own accord
Before the order was decided on under the condition of that time I did all I
could do and furthermore, after the execution was decided, I did what humane
thing I was able to do as far as my position permitted,

After the war in regard to this the Commanding OfTicer DOI, said that

we did the besst we could do and that we tried our best to stop it. But as
it wae a strict order of our superior, and as it was against our will that

17 Oot. 1947

Fﬂrﬂar ﬂlpt-- I-Jol‘ll
KOICHI, Hiroe.
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I _Hd.mnﬁmﬂl peing duly sworn on oath, state
that I have hod read to ne and understand the translation of the fore-
golng transcription of ry st~tenent dated the 17th _ day of
1947 _ and consist of pages, and that it is the truth to
the hest of ny knowledge and of .

Jr.\u L--t. ¢ .F:L I Lot
| ; a8

Hiroe KOICHI

Suheeribed and sworn to before me this the E% day of Noyepbeg,
1947 .

Guan, M.I,

-

I, Frederick A, Savory, civilinQ interpreter, being duly sworan on
oath, state that I truly translated the above statenemt and oath to
the witness and that the witness thersupon in my Hresence affixed his
pignature thereto.

o ARV |
/.:I LA XT E v, 1'1.. (v
Interoreter, y

Subseried and sworn to before me this the _/ . _ Aday of Jovamker,
1947 .
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In the latter part of October, 1944, I was sent as required duty personnel
the EKoror Anti-aircraft Unit which was under the command of Captain KOICHI
d was appointed eompany commander of the Koror Anti-aircraft Unit.

4 PM.
- About eix o'clock,one day in the middle of May, 1945, I received a 'phone
Iiil from battalion headquarters requesting me to come to see Captain KOICHI, i

battaldon commander.

i
I reported immediately to the battalion commander's office. Captain '
ICHI was alone in the room. |

Thereupon I was informed as follows by Captain KOICHI: an order was
received by telephone from the army group commander to decapitate one prisoner.

I replied to Captain ECUICHI that we should refuse.
Captain KOICHI also concurred.

This was before Captain KUICHI left for army group headquarters that
ight comcerning battle operations. I left Captain KUICHI and returmed to the

it.

The following day late at night I received orders from battalion head-
rters by telephone that I was to be at the entrance of the hospital by EHYHT
'elock the following morning and await further orders. At seven o'clock the
xt morning I was walting at the hospital entrance. Presently both Captain
OICHI and First Lieutenant ONUSE came there bringing one prisoner with them.

At that time EKCICHI ordered me, "Decapitate the prisoner in accordance
ith the orders of the army group commander." Unable to oppose the order I
uapitatad_AEH. the priannaf?k

f When it was over I reported to Captain KUICHI, the battalion commander,
t it had been carried out.
|

Funeral prayers were offered at the grave of ‘the prisoner and I returned
the uwnit.

One night after the war was over, in about the middle of August, I
ceived orders by telephone from Lieutenant Colonel YAJIMA at army group headr
rs that First Lieutenant KATSUYAMA was to pack his military gear and
port to him., I departed immediately thst night, arrived at Lisutemant Col

DiA's place sbout six o'clock the next morning and went in tc see him,

Lieutenant Colomel YAJIMA took me to a shack in the middle of a dense
orest where there were no people and gave me the following orders. From this
ime on I acted according to the instructions of this same lieutenant colonel.

"In accordance with the orders of the commanding officer you decapitated
American prisomer. While you are alive the commanding officer is in a

rous position. You will die for thé sake of the commanding officer. Be-

ore that you will write and leave behind two notes (one addressed to the com-

ding officér”and one to the higher authorities.”

o
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I thought this was an unlawful act but if it was for the =ake of the comd
manding officer there was no room for dispute, so I wrote the two notes to be
left behind and handed them to Lleutenant Colonel YAJIMA. Then Lieutenant
Colonel YAJIMA continued further saying that Firet Lieutenant KATSUYAMA was [
thereby dead. Then he paid, "You are to strip yourself of your military equi J

ment, take off your uniform, put on your summer work clothes and from now
on you will be called KUYAMA, Mikio."

Then I was inatructed, "Henceforth, you must call yourself KOYAMA, Mikio,®
and I lived in seclusion in one room of the shack. Here my freedom was com=- |
pletely restricted. From that time on, I spent five and a half months of we :
safd days hearing nothing of the affairs of the outside world. {

On 15 February 1946, I was put on a Japanese coast defense vessel togethdr
iﬂth Lieutenant Colonel YAJIMA for evacuation from Palau. e reached the o
of UHAGA by the end of February. Them the first part of karch I went to stay
with an acquaintance of the lisutenant colonel in Gumma=ken, Gumma=gun, HagunT

mura; Yokoborl and was engaged in farming in the same home.

During this period Lieutenant Colonel YAJIMA went to Tokyo many timea, |
met @hief of 8taff, TADA, and requested the fund for concealment of KUYAMA,
Mikio, which was promised immediately after the war. However, I was told -
that they bandied words mnd being in very dire straights economically, they
gave only a little money. This was the first time I learnmed of the plans for
ny ccncealment made just after the war by the commanding officer and the chi
of staff.

I heard the story and thereby l:armed that when Lieutenant Colonel YAJ
went to Tokyc on an officisl business trip, according to information from the
companding officer, as the registered domicile of KATSUYALA had been erased.
he had been registered at Tokyo-to, Kojimachi-ku, 1 Chome, No. 6.

About twice Lieutenant Colonel YAJIMA mentioned quite strongly the fol-
lowing matters. Even though the commanding officer and the chief of staff
were fine men, at present they were quite cdlmly and shamelessly acting un=-
ethically in their owm behalf.

——

When I heard this I thought it was very unlikely and not to be believed.
However, on the other hand I came to have a strong feeling that there was
for doubt.

In order to reduce the economic burden of Lisutenant Colonel YAJIMA some
what, I obtained his permission and resolved to go to Tokyo, engage in manual
labor and support myself.

(]
In the middle of September, 194K, wearing ragged clothes, I departed rrml
Gumma=ken alone and arrived one morning at Ueno Station. I got off the trian
¥« fland just at the time when everycne was going to 1 toward ASAKUSA
to look for a job. On the way I got off the m'ﬁht‘?mmx was engaged
in oonversation by a man who seemed to be a contractor. Then when I told him
my state of affairs he said very kindly, "My name is UMEMOTO. Wouldn't you

& flike to try working at my place, Iﬂﬂﬂﬁ_ i1'.9 do so and went with Mr. UMEMOTC
K.1 ‘t.a a small building in FUKAGAWA=ku, s 1 Chome, No. 7, which was

-2-
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the premises of the UMEMCTO Contracting Company. From that day on I was
engaged in cleaning up the remains of the wartime fires. I entered the small
house of my employer which was on the premlises and lived there until I
entered Sugamo. I am truly grateful for the kindness I received from people
and the trus freedom I had as a member of community life.

There are no mistakes in the abova.
5 September 1947.

KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji [
Former First Lieutenant, IJA.

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and complete translation,
to the best of ny abil ty, of the original document in Japanese.

EDERICK F. TREMA

| Lieutenant (jg) USHR
il Interpreter 4

"EXHIBIT 4 (3)"

|| . x f e ——




I __Teteull EALSUTANA . being duly sworn on oath, state
that I have had read to ne and understand the translation of the fore-
doing tremporiptionl of ry stoteneat dated the _S5th _ day of
1947 _ and consisting of pages, and that it is the truth to

the heet of ny knowledge and balief.
| }lg\ . ] ﬁ]

Tetsujl KATSUYAMA !

Subscribed and sworn to before me this the Zé day of Joyepbar

1947 .

Guas, M.I, ]

I, Frederiok A, Savory, civilinQ interpreter, being duly eworan on
oath, state that I truly translated the ahove atatenent and oath to
the witness and that the witnees thereupon in ny sresence affixed his
b signature thereta,

ntetoreter.

" Subseribed and swora to before me this the ZE day of Jioxambar
1940 .

EXHIBIT 4 (4)*













PR Ny
N ~e WRE R W B i i
,,,:._R,‘_%c: w AT 2D %%\-%w\h %’ﬁ\-
PR LR S f&%m’uﬂ-u
Erh S s W o SOAHES - he BN T
B0 S el ﬂﬂlw\‘ﬁ%ﬁm‘fwwmrgﬁm
Jg.—mg., G R =N AP < ae-yg..nn\ ‘
w @S h%ﬂﬁﬂh%%«ﬁﬂ-ﬂ’r‘- ﬁ-t*w ':

—

,f"




| ~| ‘¢ ® * 9

Statement concerning the escorting and execution of Second Lieutenant
Esufman and the surrounding circumstances. {

, ONOSE, Ichiro /seal/

| Former Intelligence 0fficer

.i Staff Section, 14th Division
Headquarters,

Circumstances up to the departure from Babelthuap upon orders to escort
(Becond Lieutenant Kaufman from Babelthuap to Koreor.

v One afternoon while Captain Hoichi was talking with Staff Officer Yajima
alone in Staff Officer Yajima's room I was told by Staff Officer Yajima to
take with me Sergeant Mejor Tsughiya and Shimojo, a gunzoku, who was in
charge of photography, escort Second Liesutenant Kaufman to Koror Island and
confirm the exeocution, At this time Staff Officer Yajima advised me to carry
'a plstol and shoot to kill if Second Lisutenant Kaufman should run eway and
to go and report to INOUE, the Commanding Officer.

I As Chief of Staff TADA was sick at that time I reported only to INOUE,
(the Commanding Officer, The Commanding Officer gave orders to me, "If the
3 lofficer of the antiaircraft unit fails to decapitate the prisoner in front
of a large group of his subordinates, and if it seems that he is backing
down because he has lost his dignity, you will decapitate /TN - The priscmer/.M

I took Sergeant Major TSUCHIYA and SHIMOJO, the gunsolu, with me, had
Sergeant Najor TSUCHIYA carry the pistol and a service sword and went to the
kempeital where Second Lieutenant Ksufman was belng detained. Second Lisuten-
ant Kaufman was being detained in a room with other criminals. As Ceptain
NAKAMURA of the Kempeital said he would give me one man from the Kempels, I
- accepted his proposal, had the kempel take the end of the rope /TN which was
tied/ to Second Lieutenant Kaufman and started off for the pler.

| While we were walking he asked me if I could speak English, When I
{replied that I could speak a little he became very elated and told me that
while he had been detained at the kempeital he had compared the simple
Japanese vocabulary which he had learned, "te,® and "ashi," "kuteu," "me,"
"hand," /TN - "hand," and "foot," "shoes," "eyes,® "nose,"/ ete with English,

Since at that time Americen planes were contimually cireling over
Sabelthuap during the day, avoiding observation by them, we proceeded with
|great caution. Om the way we stopped off at the Gasupan field storehouse,
\got some dry bread to give to 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman, gave him some dry
bread and water and took & short rest, It was evening when we arrived at the
wharf, but I recall that it was about an hour's time before the beat departed,

When we reached the wharf Caeptain Koichi and his orderly had already
arrived.

At that time, fearing the air raids of the American forces, the wharf
was built at Garamado Bay on the west side of Babelthusp and the boat went
back and forth to Koeror periodically in the evening. Captain Koiechi, our- :
selves and other passengers boarded this boat, 14309

The boat arrived at the wharf on Korer Island without mishap on the ways|

L
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Circumstances of the execution of 2nd Lisutenant Keufman,

It was growing dark when we arrived at the wharf on Koror, Guided by the
non-commissioned officers and enlisted men from the Koichi unit who had just
joome out to meet Captain Koichi we etarted toward the barracke of the Koichi
Enn.. Although 2nd Lieutenant Keufman complained on the way that his feet

urt on account of sores from his shoes, naturally, as there was no means of
lconveyance, we contimied to walk as we were., The Koichi unit was located at
spot about a thirty minmute walk from the wharf, After we arrived at the Koich
' t we turned 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman over to the guarde of the Kolehl unit

v the Kempeis returned to the kempeitai detachment on Koror. At the Koichi
L | t we had puards escort 8nd Lieutenant Kaufman and he was detained in the
house,

I stayed in the unit commander's room, Early the next morning while I
was eating breakfast with Captain Koichi, a report was made to Captain Koichi
to the effect that preparations had been made, Therefore, after eating, the
unit commander and I went together to the scene of execution., 2nd Lieutenant

(Kaufman had already been teken out by the guardes and had arrived at the scene
of execution,

| I approached 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman and read to him the English which I
had received from our ecolleague, 2nd Lieutenant Hamano, before we started out
«(words which meant, "We are sorry but according to the order of the commanding
officer you have been sentenced to be executed.") As 2nd Lieutenant Keufman
sked in return, "Why," I pointed out the antiaireraft positions and said in

poor English, (I don't know whether or not he understood what I meant),
"The American forces have bombed those positions and many Japanese soldiers
ave died. Therefore, the Commanding Officer has given orders to kill you."
e said, "is war?™* As I thought he sald it to mean, "That is war isn't 1t7"

said, "You will be kill...is war,"# intending to express the meaning, "That
you will be killed is also part of the war." lie made a gesture as if to say
there was nothing else to say.

| I gave him a cigarette., While he was enjoying the smoke, a non-commis-
ploned officer from near the hole was ordered to escort 2nd Lieutenant
Keufman and he was taken to the hole,

The execution was fixed for and uﬂrriadi::r],y in the morning when |
American airplane patrols were not very active, however, as news msy have |
/TN - gotten out/ from the unit beforehand, a crowd of enlisted men had gath-

ered to see the execution, After 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman sat down by the hole,
Captain Koichi said to ask him if he wanted to be blindfolded or not., When I
tried to ascertain this by gesticulation he nodded as if to say please put
on a blindfold, With that I informed the guard to that effect and a blind-
feld wae put on.

As the position of lst Lieutenant Katsuyama's feet was bad I cautioned
him about it and lst Lisutenant Katsuyama once again measurad the distance
and took his position,

lst Lisutenant Katsuyama made 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman put his head for-
ward with the back of his sword end when he /TN = Katsuyama/ measured his
breathing 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman took one deep breath, When lst Lisutenant
tsuyama swung his sword down the body of 2nd Lisutenant Kaufmen, it fell
into the hole. As the neck was cut sbout in half he died instantly, Shimojo,
the eivilian, took a few pictures of these circumstances.
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hen the execution was over the hole was covered over immediately,
flowers were presented and the unit as a whole saluted this grave.

I am sure it was lst Lieutenant Tanaka who sald "Let us put a cross on
this grave later,"

| I told Captain Koichi that my duties were completed, bade him farewell,
|called on Colonel Doi with lst Lieutenant Katsuyame and reported the nature
|Iof my duties and their completion. lst Lieutenant EKatsuyama also reported
((that the execution had been completed.

Then Colonel Doi asked lst Lieutenant Katsuyama sarcastically, "Well,
did you raise the morale?"

i In the evening of the day the execution of 2nd Lieutenant Ksufman was
completed, I again returned to headquarters on Bebelthuap Ieland., I made
a report to Staff Officer Yajima and to the commanding officer concerning the

|

| Circumstances followlng the execution of 2nd Lieutenant Kaufman,

|

!

|

|| eircumstances of the execution and reported the completion of my duties.
|
|

If The pictures taken by Shimojo, the eivilian, were finished later and
|1 remember it seemed like they were shown to the commanding officer by Staff
| 0fficer Yajima.

I Immediately after the war was over these picturees were burned up by
| Captein Watanabe.

! 4 August 1947.
|

|

The End,

I hereby certify the above to be a true and complete translation of the
original statement written in Japanese to the best of my ability.

Lieutenant (jg), U. E: Naval Reserve,
= Int-ﬂ'[ﬂ etar,

# Appears in English in the original,

"EXHIEIT 6 (3)"
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I W being duly sworn on oath, state
th~t I have had r to ne and understand the translation of the fore-
going transeription of ry stotenent dated the __ATH _ day of _August,
19_ 47, and consieting of _thprea pages, and that it is the truth to

the hest of oy knowledge and Selief.
Oneade Jokiro
LM 3

Suhscribed and sworn to before me this the 74  day of Aaused
1927 .,

%.']' “--I-

I, Frederiock A, Savory, civilingQ interpreter, being duly sworm on
oath, state that I truly translated the above statement and oath to
the witnese and that the uit.nua thereupon in my -resence affixed hie

signature thereto,
aﬁ/ /6&#”-/

Intarpratur.

Subscribed and eworn to before me thie the Er_’i day of ,{EEE‘J’IAF

19_4?7-
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| opened the picture of

-1- : .
|i“;\b-«~.5(‘ u.t\)wx e:J'J“v‘é A \ni{% !
KAVEFMAN wis faleo~ o the. |

£ 5§ Aot ) |
7 vInR WEXHIBIT 55&1,:

One dey in June, 1945, orders came fro: Staff Officer YAJIA to escort
Kaufman to Koror. Three of us, Second Lieutenant ONUSE in charge, SHILLJO,
and myself, reported to YAJIKA and went to the kempeitai. At the kempeitail
we received Kaufman from Captain NAKANUTA and one auxiliary kempei (name
unkniown) took the rope with wiich e was bound. We went over the mountain
roads to Gasupan and walted at the Gasupan wharf unti’ it grew dark. During
this time we received dry bread from the Gasupan field storshouse and gave
it to Haufman. At this time Captain XWICHI, commander of the antiaireraft
unit was at the wharf, ¥We waited umtil donrk, boarded a landing craft togother

| and went to l.arakaru pler. That night was a moonlit night and we walked along

| the road about three kilﬂmatarE géﬁgtnin KOICaI, MIOSE, myself and SHILUJO, s !

went east together on the end arrived at the headguarters of
the antiaireraft unit of the Koror battery about eleven o'elock. During this
time I think that Kaufmsn was e=ww tired. Two or three times he complained
that his legs hurt. Howevey, it was nipght and morecver as there was a moon,
the American planes were constantly overhead. o automobiles were in use

so, comforting Kaufman, we went on. At the headquarters of the antiaireraft |
unit we handed Kaufman over to enlisted men of the antiaireraft unit. SHIKOJD
and I rested in an underground shelter about half = kilometer away.

Apbout eight o'clock the next morning we took Heufman and went to the .
vieinity of the graveyerd. That morning no vplanes flew over which was a rare
occasion. 'le were sble to proceed without interruption until the execution |
WS OVEer. '

It seems that the news of Kaufmen's executi-n was spread throughout the
anitaireraft units and to the nmavy dusl purcose battery and & large group of
men came to wateh.

CHOSE let NAUM.AN rest, pave him a cigarette and told him, "You will
meet yur fate." nen Kaufman in a pitiful voice asked, Mihy?" CIGE ex- _
plained the reason to him. I returned to Kaufmen a Waltham watch and a i
picture of his motier (the articles left at the intelligence section when
Kaufman was eaptured and interrogated). Imufman put on the wrist watch, '

iis mother and locked =t it inteAtly. At that time
SHILUWJO, the eivilian, took pictures.
|

Next he was blindfolded and made to sit down facing the east in front Gf?

|a hole w ich had been prepared. First Lieutenant KATSUYALA drew his service

sword, swung the sword mbout twice to get the fesl of it, toock his position
and finally cut off the head of Kaufman., The head was not completely severed
but was still =ttached to the body b~ the skin of the throat. The corpse
fell into the hole in this condition. The enlisted men from the antiaircraft
unit undid the rope, buried the corpse as it was and placed flowers on top

il of the hole. |

|
After that OHUSE, myself and SHILOJO separated ourselves from the men

of the antiaircraft unit and the suxiliary kempeis and went to Colonel DUI's

place and revorted the coumpletion of our duties. . hen we finished supper

b= {u.ws‘mjf'ig\ Gg '

*MQ\T alte
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we went to LARAITARU wharf, walted for night to come, boarded the landing
craft and returned to our unit.

8 September 1947.
. TSUCHIYA, Haohiko.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete translation,
to the bestof my ability, of the originsl document in Japanece.

WDER IGK F.‘%“-l&;;ﬁ,

Lieutenant (jg) USIP
Interpreter,.

—
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I Heghdko TSUCHIYA being duly sworn on oath, state
th=t I have had read to r1e and understand the translation of the fore=
going transeription of riy st~tement dated the 8TH day of _Bgptember,

19_47 _ and consisting of _two pages, and that it is the truth to
the hest of ny knowledge and belief.

\':*_-{‘5,4{.. SR . ﬂlﬂ?‘pm
L % & *

L

Suhscribed an’ sworn to before me this the k‘zﬁé dey of _November,
1947,

i % ngé,u Gl Y

Guan, M.I.

I, Frederiok A. Savory, civilin) interpreter, being duly sworn on
oath, state that I truly translated the ahove statenent and oath to
the witnees and that the witness thereupon in my Jresence affixed hie

gignature thereto.

ntersreter,/ / /

Subscrided and sworn to Sefore:nme this the _/ 7/  day of _ligvembes,
1947 .

WEXHIBIT 8 (3)"
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AFFIDAVIT FOR THE CHARACTER OF KOICHI, Hiroe, FURMER GAPTAIN, IMPEATAL
JAPANTSE ARNY,

/8/ HAKAGATA, Kiyoshi,
Former Colonel,
Staff Officer of the 1l4th Divisionm,
Imperial Japanese Army.

1, How I came to know Captain KOICHI,

On 26 July 1944, when Koror was bombed by the Amerlican Forces, and Major [
Yamagami, commanding officer of the anti=aircraft unit died in action, I
‘tried to find his successor., Just at that time, I learned that Captain
'Koichi who was then in the hoespital on account of his wounds was an expert
lof antieaircraft, and I appointed him in place of Major Yamagami, I have
knovn him since then,

| 2. The period of time that I have known Captain KOICHI:
i:ﬂince the end of July 1944.

3, Hia character.

(1) He had a firm sense of responsibility. He had a firm sense of respon-

sibility eo that the aim of the anti-aircraft fire was to shoot down planes,
He was always opposed to the opinion of division headquarters that a reduct- |
ion in our damare should be considered above all things, He had a strong .
will and he had to carry out anything ebout which he was convinced, |

(2) He love his men and his men obeyed him well, In spite of difficult bﬂttli
conditions and poor equipment and umtrained members of his unit, he conducted
operations with great merit, I think this was because he loved his men
affectionately and obeyed his superiors sincerely. On 3 April 1945, Lieut-
enant General Inoue, the commanding gemeral of the division, praised his
merit and gave him a letter of commendation.

(3) He was righteous, He firmly opposed the execution of Second Lieutenant
Kaufman from a humane point of view, but he could not resist an absolute
order and was obliged to relay the orders to Katsuyama, I think it could not
be helped because of the customs of the Japanese Forces.

I certify the above to be & true and complete translation of the
original petition to the best of my !h}litr. / ™,

- e | AN T \}%\
EUGENE ¥, KERKICK, Jr., {/
Lieut t, U, 8. Naval Reserve,”
Interpreter,

EXHIBIT 10 (a)




zs ¢ 1

| sk g REE wwered o agd !

[0 2 o e g ) b 3 g ) W oo
T Y APt et aE
' :\t#ﬁ@*\w&ﬁ:/ku"¥h iﬁﬂﬁz\gﬁ'q{(,ﬁy—x |
':f*'-"”.é. g_g,ﬁ%\nbmﬂ}
R t

St ¢4 off 12K gl 1 0> e § g 47 W o lE o
%&Eutﬁ%;lﬁ@%ﬂlh} |
g Bz 3 |
¢ i R ¢ < o o A A RN
ﬁihiﬁ'ﬁ-lﬁ*n g‘@u #l‘-f‘-ﬁmm\‘:a " ﬁgﬂ@%ﬂ
e Cuw= BN P e v BRI
w#& +--:*‘-}I.H\JE L O 5 = ,.Ll;g ;‘E‘ﬁhw ,ﬂ‘é\g( |
Ew 2T 2 oA BB gl

BT o B S D MR

= o |

PPN PR TIPSR TN
P R A LU SR R RN 4
T A Y T

i




G < > o M A et oo s T
o e A he o G ) CnE Y Ty NAR A

Fyswal el g~ R O E el
| il A VT ol y Sos Rl (s B
gl PRPPEYLE L et A& LEER 1g
3*@5@2*&‘@'-‘)5»& ".Kg.n.ah-@#h\r-\w
| e~ dan Ak~ el A G & > el
| .i '}Z‘;’ﬂ}xi'm:ﬂ%[_ﬁ-i;-jlh?-*ﬁ#’!‘/ﬂ\
| b loid > B v BT NE>NLu~ i
| + Y W

s e Wl o e W i




/s/ DOI, Akio,
Former Colonel, IJA.

1, He was the commanding officer of the privisional anti-aireraft
battalion from November 1944 to the end of the war, and I met him more tham
tem times during that period. As he was mot my direct subordinate, I a1d not
see his service record or other documents so I have no reference, but I kmow
the following from the talks I had with him and from his reputation among his
subordinates.

2. His nature was mild and sincere, and he was full of semse of res=-
ponsibility, so he was always loved by his subordinates.

3, Examples which show his good character,

(1) Originally, the privisional anti-aircraft nattalion was organized by mem
picked from various umits, As the umit suffered from great damage, it had to
inolude those who were conscripted om Falau for emergency purposes, so the
quality of soldiers became poorer. The unit was poorly equipped. Im spite
of these unfarorable circumstances, he trained his men day and night and his
unit fought most bravely. I thimk this was because he was & man of respom-
gibility as a commanding officer and his men relied upon him very muech.

(2) I would like to state im connection with this case that he was such a mild
man that he agreed with my opinion as to the execution of Second Lisutenant
Kaufmen on Koror and was opposed to the executlonm. I heard that he often
told his men that he had opposed to the execution,

(3) Although he was obliged to execute Second Lieutenant Kaufman according to
the orders of Commanding Gemeral Imous, he sympathiged with Kaufman very much
because he was of such a good character. I heard that he cleaned his grave
and prayed before it several times.

(4) He was very respomsible in mature, Therefore, although he was very much
opposed to the execution im his heart, he could mot resist the strict orders
as & mere captain when he received them directly from Commanding General ,
Ipoue. I believe the he cried out against doing this in his heart when he -
had to obey the orders and ordered his mem to do the execution,

Imtd.tythtn‘buntnb-utmnﬂmluhtmhtionnfth- -
original petition to be best of my ability. m i
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When Captain KOICHI was appointed commending officer of the anti-
aireraft company, I learned that he was in the 55th class at the Academy, one
year semior to me., When I visited him at the amti-aircraft umit om Arkabesan
Island after the great task foree attack, I came to kmow him well and after
that we became intimate firemds as we were both academy graduates.

2. His character.

a., He was a person with a great sense of responsibility.
During the raid im March 1945, he was wounded but he did not emter th
hospital but stayed at his position commanding operations amnd bolstering the
morale.

bs He was a man with a strong sense of obedlience,
He always obeyed orders and cast aside his oprositiom.

c. He was kind,
He taught me many thinge always with kindness and care and guided me
as his junior, He was a man with a sympathetic heart and was always gentle
to others.

d, He was an cutstanding officer.
Though his unit was a provisionally assembled one with insufficient
squipment, he commanded it in a masterful mannmer and fought umtil the last.

All his men had great confidence in him,

/8/ WATANAEE, Toshio,
Former Captain, IJA,
14th Division Headquarters.

I certify the above to be a trus and complets tramslatiom of the
original petition to the best of my ability.
g r ()
3 / W /
» KERRICK, Jr., /
14 t, U. 8, Naval Reserve,
Inte ter,
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/s/ HAISHI, Nobuo,
Former First Lieutemant, IJA.

l, How I came to kmow him,

I was detached to the anmti-aircraft umit as the First company commander
on September 15, 1944, and Captain KOICHI became the battalion commander.
From this time I came to know him,

2, His character.

He was a gentle person and very kind. Even when the battle situationm
became severe, he always judged impartielly and never lost his semse of
benevolence and went the wrong way.

I shall explain this by some examples. In the present Kaufman incidemt
he considered it and found that it was not the right thing so he opposed it
by telephone many times, His character is evident from this fact. Even
though he carried out the execution by orders of headquarters I belleve he
regretted it very much, I say this because, I have heard that after the
execution he went to visit the grave many times and ordered it to be cleaned,

After a fierce battle, he would phone or come to my company and ask abouf
the damage and casualties and the food conditions., He would alwaysgive hie
share of tobacco to the men, so apart from the military set-up he was deeply
respected by all of his men. This was & great factor in our being united as
one. Since I learmed about the present case, I have felt the greatest
sympathy for him, I testify to his character and pray for your lenient

judgment,

3. I further wish to add that he is the eldest im the family. He lost
his father and his family is im a pitisble situation, I pray that he will be
released soon,

I certify the above to be & trus and complete translation of the
original petition to the best of my ability,

t, U, 8. Naval Reserve,

tar,
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J8/ TANAKA, Masao
Former C.0. of 3rd Company, Koichi Umit.

l, How I came to know him,

When I was the commanding officer of the 3rd compamy of the provisiomal
anti-aircraft unit, our battalion commander, Major Yamaguchi, was killed in
action on July 26, 1944; and as his successor Captaim KOICHI took over the
battalion and from that time I came to know him,

2., His character.

Captain KOICHI was & particularly quiet and gentle man., In the service
for six years I never met a kinder and gentler man than he, Here are some

examples.,

(a) The anti-aircraft unit was a provisional unit consisting of men from
all units. Until the end of the war 150 memn, about half of the umnit, were
killed, but in spite of this the reason that the umit was able to fight om
courageously was because of the kind and gentle character of Captain Koichi,
A1l the men were glad to die for him,

(b) When & soldier made & mistake he would never use violence against
him but would quietly reason with him,

(¢) He had his meals with his orderly and ate what the men did. This
practice may sound natural and proper to the person im the American forces,
but in the Japanese army this is seen only seldom., Despite the fact that
Palau was short of food, the differemce between the officers and men was
great, But Captain Koichi did as his men did, and this was one of the great-
est factors that umnited this umit.

(d) The supply of tobacco from headquarters was meager so Captainm Koichi
refrained from smoking and gave it to his men.

(e) He was definitely opposed to executing the prisoner when he was
relayed the message of headquarters from Dol Unit.

(£) After the exscution and after I became his adjutant I was ordered to
clean the grave mamy times,

(g) Captain Koichi himself went to wisit the grave of the prisomer and
offered flowers.

Taking into conmsideration the above points, I believe there is not a
as kind and gentle as Captain Koichi. I was comseripted into the
am about 13 years older tham Captaim Koichi but I respected him
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/s/ DOI, Akio,
Former Colomel, IJA.

1. From about November 1944 until the end of the war while First
Lieutenant KATSUYAMA served as company commander of the Provisiomal Anti-
aircraft Battalion, I met and talked with him more than tem times, so I do
not komw him thoroughly, but what I kmow him is as follows:

2. Character., He was of a gentle and bright nature and was wery
dutiful and was loocked up to by his subordinates.

3, Examples which shows his character,

a, The Koror Provisional Anti-aireraft Battalion contimued fighting day|a
and night until the end of the war. Among these anti-aireraft companies,
Katsuyama's company was the best, His umit shot down the most planes and at
the same time received the most damage, but he always had control of his men
and furthermore his subordinates trusted their company commander, and they
worked as one; so they were able to obtain such victories. In spite of the
fact that he was seriously burmed and was not able to walk, he tried to hide
' his wounds and took command, He fought bravely until the end of the war. He
' was able to do this from his strong sense of duty and the trust which his
subordinates upt upon him.

4. In regard to the incident of this case I think the reason why he had
to carry out the execution of Second Lieutenant Kaufman was that he was
obliged to take the position of an executiomer by orders of his supreme
commander and by his dutiful nature, He had to obey the orders absolutely as
a Japanese soldier.

I certify the above to be a true and complete translation of the

original petition to the best of my a.b:ll}%y. S / O

AP :
Jﬁ@ E. KERRICK, Jr., J\ i

¥

Lieutenant, U, 8., Naval Reserve, .
Interpreter. |
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/8/ NAKAGATA
Former Colonel, IJA,
Former lith Division Staff Officer.

1. How I came ‘to know First Lieutenant KATSUYAMA,

On October 1944 when the anti-aircraft umit on Koror was strengthened,
it became necessary to select an excellemt officer with good character. I
came to kmow him when he was thus selected to take up duty at the anti-aireraft
unit motwithstanding the requests of the commanding officer of the 59th
Infantry Regiment.

2. The period I have known EATSUYAMA.
Since the latter part of October 1944.

3, In regard to his character, etec.

(1) He had a strong sense of responsibility. At the beginning of 1945
the Americans dropped oil bombs on the Katsuyama position and in spite of
the fact that he was wounded he stayed on and continued to command the firing

of the guns.

(2) He was very humane, He suffered under the poor food situation with
his men, and he took the sole responsibility whem he let his men get food by ysing |
scarce hand grenades to fish, His subordinates all served him as though he
were their father.

(3) He had a strong sense of obedience., Because he was very excellent
while an NCO, he entered the Army Academy and he took positive mctlon im
regard to obedlence.

In regard to Kaufman's exscution too, his inherent nature of obedience
exceeded the thoughts of humanity.

Iomm-mmhammm-utumhtimurm
original petition fo the best of my knowledge.
= f(’)_\

. EERRICK, Jri,
’ U. 8: Naval Reserve,
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/8/ WATANABE, Toshio,
Former Captain,
Attached to the 1l4ith Divislon
Headquarters, Imperial Japanese Army

1, How I came to know him,

Second Lieutenant Katsuyama graduated from the Army Academy in 1943 as &
cadet, and was attached to the 20th Artillery Regiment. Just at that time I
was an officer of the same regiment, and I came to know him as one who
graduated from the Army Academy like me,

2. His Character.
(1) He was full of a sense of responsibility.

(a) Around February 1945, the anti-aircraft unit was seriously bombed
by petroleum bombs dropped from Americen planes and Second Lieutenant
Katsuyama was seriously wounded. Since he knew his heavy responsibility as
a commanding officer, he did not leave his position and econtinued his oper=
atioral command,

(b) After the end of the war, they tried to conceal Katsuyama.
Katsuyama took his respomsibility and tried to commit sulcide but it was
stopped by Yajima and me.

(¢) When he was away from his unit and hiding in the jungle, he was
always worrying about his unit which had lost its commanding officer.

(2) He was humane,

Then the food conditions on Palsu became very bad, he did fishing
with explosives by his own decision, making up his mind that he would take all
the responsibility if anyting might happen on account of that, and tried to
improve food conditions in his company. He had the same meal as his men and
never complained about it. He shared the hardships vith his men.

(3) He was an excellent officer,

After serving as a non-commissioned officer, he entered the Army
Academy and was appointed an officer, Then he was attached to the 2nd
Corpany, Artillery Battalion, 59th Infantry Regiment, his Company Commander,
Cantain Maruyama admired him as & most reliable platoon leader, and regretted
it when he was transferred to an enti-aircraft unit,

(b) After he was transferred to an anti-sircraft unit, he became
skillful in firing anti-aircraft guns in a few months, and he was very
skillful,

(4) He was very obdient,
When he was transferred from an artillery unit to an anti-aircraft
unit he looked dissatisfied of it., But whenever he received orders, though
they were against his will, he was willing to carry them out with complaint,

(5) He prayed for the repose of the soul of Second Lieutenant Kaufman,
After he went into the jungle to- hide himself, he had such an attitude like
an enlightened priest.

I certify the above to be a true and complete translation of the
original petition to the best of my ability. /
-

-f\
EU . KERRICK, Jr., /
Lieu t, U, 8. Naval Reserve,
Intirpr&trur.
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l, How I came to kmow him,

On September 15, 1944, First Lisutemant KATSUYAMA was detached to
the Koror battery and 1 was sent to the Arakebesan emplacement. Om October
1l of the same year I was appointed commanding officer of the lst compamy
and he was appointed commanding officer of the 2nd company sc from that time
on I came to kmow him,

2, His character.

He was a serious mimded person, and a man who practiced what he
said., He had & strong semse of obedience., I shall give a few examples of
his character. :

After the severebombing in February 1945, food became scarce and eacl
unit engaged in farming im ite spare time, At this time the headquarters put
out an order to practice bayonet charges but my company did mot do this, But
I heard that the Katsuyama Unit practiced it by overcoming all difficulties.
It was not an easy thinmg for the anti-airecraft umit to fight, farm and besideg
train the men in bayomet charges. From this, it can be seem that he was a
man of practicability and a man of obedience,

As regards the present incident of the prisoner Kaufmen, I have
heard that he was opposed to it at first but in the end could met help but
obey the orders of his superior.

When I thimk of his feelings and his sufferings, I have the
greatest sympathy for him,

I prey that you will judge him most impertially and be 1an7/-1t.h
him,

/8/ HAISHI, Nobuo,
Former First Lieutemant, IJA.
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/8/ TANAKA, Masao,
Former C.0. 3rd Company, Koichi Unit,
Former First Lieutemamt, IJA.

1, How I came to lkmow him,

When I was the commanding officer of the 3rd company of the
provisional anti-aireraft umit, he came and took over the duty as company
commander of the second compamy and from that time I came to kmow him,

2« His character.

He was a kind person with a strong sense of obedience to his super-
iors. ‘

When headquarters issued an order to train the men in bayonet
charges in December 1944, the other units did not do it because of battle
duty and farming, But the Eatsuyama unit did what it was told, and obeyed
the orders of the superior. When headquarters ordered the prisoner to be
eracuted, he, along with us, was opposed to it, When he carried out the
execuiion it was against his will and he only did it because he was a man with
a strong sense of obedience, That he was a man of kindness and feeling
toward his men can be seen from the fact that his umit was umited and bravely
fought to the end even though his unit sustained the greatest casumlties,
Particularly, the fact that he visited the grave of the prisoner twice proved
that he was a man of bemevolent feelings.

I certify the above to be & true and complete translation of the
original petition to best of my ability.
{. /

. KERRICK, J¥.,
Lieu t, U. 3. Naval Reserve,
Interpreter. °
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i FPERTAL JAPANES

| /e/ HAKAGAWA, Kiyoshi

Former Colonel,

Staff Officer of the 1l4th
Divieion,

Imperial Japenese Army.
l, How I came to know Second Ideutenant Onose,

In 1944, when the 14th Division Headquarters srrived on Koror, I heard
there was an excellent officer who pleaded to enter the Intelligence Section
with a letter written with blood. I knew afterwerds that this man wes Second
Iieutenant Onose.

2. The period of time that I have known him.
Since 24 April 1944.
3. His character,

(1) He wes full of & sense of responeibility end was poeitive in every-
thing., He was such e poeitive man as to volunteer to enter the Arry with a
letter written with blood. He wes esrnest in his work and even forgot to
take his meals, His strong sense of responsibllity was edmitted, and he
was appointed & member of a party which hed a duty of setting up a reconnss-
gsance station on larakel, and he assisted Captain Sakamoto, the chief of the
party, very well,

(2) He wae of cheerful character and wes relied on by hie superiors and
ecomrades. His bright charecter mede his superiors and comrades merry, and
he was & very benevolent person to his subordinates. He was loved by his

|Bupprior&.

I certify the ebove to be a true and complete transletion of the

origine]l petition to the best of my ability.
a
C
EUG Iﬂif Jr., ﬂ

Iieu  U. B, annl Reserve,
Intarprutar
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AVIT AS TC THE CHATACTER OF OHOSE, ICUIRC, FORIEDR SECOND

| LIEUTEVANT, II'PERTAI JAPAIESE AHMY,

1, How I came to know him,

From the time I was

lcence section efter heing tre
the Aketeuki Unit in December 194,

until the end of the war

2. Hip cheracter.

A

Then I £
gaction, he wes

at me when I mede & mistake,
to me by others, he would come to me end

to the photegrenly sguad of the intelli-
fered to the lith Division Hesdguerters
ceme to ¥now him snd from thet tinme

/&/ SFTI0JO, Mitesuheru
Gunzoku photographer attached
to the Lith Divislon Hesdguar-

ters.

frem

gserved topether, |

firet trensfered to the photograph
the one who locked efter
Vhen I wes

me, He
derreseed by
congole me,

v room of the intellipgence
would never relese his voice
someé hersh wordes said

Wihen I developed ple- |

jtures in the leborstory he would come end give rme ciperettes and other things |

fmldeh comforted re.

cigerettes, so ell the enlisted ren respected him,
teken care of.

|wed the one vho

aev te

it

thet

O
L+ =

Wwhen we vere in the intelligence room he often geve us |

Then I went on trips he
I'ea weeg & very kind offl-

{lcer and I hed not forgotten about hir after I returned to Japan.

4 T

T certify the shove to be & true end complete transletion of th |

loriginel netition to
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FERRICK, Jr.,
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FF12/A17-10(2) UNITED STATSS PACIFIC FLEET
COMIANDER MAHIANAS

|Serials e, 0 AR 7
| - IRl

| The military commission, composed of Army, Vavy, and Marine Corps
[|officers, in the foregoing case, b}r precept dated November 8, 1947, was
llordered convened Nevember 20, 19&'? or a8 soon thereafter aa pmctim’blu by
|the Commander Marlanas Area pursuant. to his ipherent authority es a military
'commander and the specific authorization of the Commander in Chief, U, 5. |
|Pacific Fleet and High Commissioner of the Trust Territory of the 'Pnt:ifit:.
'Islands (CinC U.S, PacFlt serial 0558 of & Mur, '46; ComMarianas Deap,
-2923362 Sept. '47; CinCPacFlt Desp. 0201032 Oct. '47; Seclav Desp. 08194562
Oct. '47; CinCPacFlt Desp. 0923532 Oct. '47). The cormission was authorigzed
to take up this case as indicated in the precept. The order for trial
'(charges and speeifications) was issued November 10, 1947 and served on the
accused on the same day, The iricl wes held under authority of Nawval Courts
and Boards except that the commission was authorized by the precept to relax
the rules for naval courts to meet the necessities of the trial and to use
|the rules of evidence and procedure promulgated December 5, 1945 by the
Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers in his Regulations Governing the ,
|Trials of Accused "ar Criminals, and modifications thereof, s necessary to |
|lebtain justice,

i Briefly stated the evidence in this case, as relates to the respective |
||accused nared in the specification of Charge I, is to the following effect. |
|An Americen aviator, Second Lieutenant allace F, KAUFVAN, USA, was captured |
|'i.t. KOROR Island in the spring of 1944 by members of a Japanese anti-aircraft
|1mit stationed at that place. He was delivered by his captors to the Kem-
peitai (Military Police) unit of the l4th Japanese Army Division Head= .
|u_uurtera on BABELTHUAF Island. Subsequently and without legal justification
|tha Commanding Generel of the 14th Division ordered his ex&cutrion by the
|KGIGH'I Anti-aireraft Unit on KOHCR, for the purpose of improwing the morale
|lof Japanese personnel in that area., A party including CONOST, TSUCHIYA,
SHIMOJO and an enlisted man from the l4th Division Kempeitai, name unknown,
with ONOSE in charge was ordered te take KAUFVAY from BABELTHUAP to KORCH

for execution by KOICHI and other designated members of his command., ONOSE'e
orders directed him to return KAUFLAlN's personal belongings to him and to per-

sonally execute FKAUIYLYN should the other persons designeted fail to do so =
(he was to see that the execution of KAUFLAN did not fail, All members of

|this party knew before leaving BABELTHUAF that KAUFVAN was to be executed. !
[They escorted him to KOZOR, After arrival in KOROR a conference, attended '

(by KOICHI, ONOSE, KATSUYANA, TSUCHIYA and others was held, At this con-
|ference the time and place of KAUI'MAN's execution was discussed, The next
morning at or about 0700 the 2/th of llay 1944 at a gruveyard on KORCR where
& grave had been dug KOICHI, OROSE, KATSUYANA, TSUCHIYA and others assembled
'with KAUFEAN in custody, in the presence of about thirty to fifty other
menbers of KOICHI's command., KOICHI was in general charge, ONOSE informed
h&TJFE‘.Mu that he was to be executed, TSUCHIYA, who had assisted in escorting
UFMAY from BASELTHUAF to KOHROR, was preaant to render such assistance and
erform such acts as ORNOSE might require and in accordance with ONOSE's
rders did in fact immediately prior to the execution deliver to KAUFMAN
g8 personsl belongings, being photographed by the execution party photo-
rapher while soc deoing. HAUFKAI was then placed near the grave for
lerecution, OHOSE instructed KATSUYAIA relative to the technique of
xecution, KATSUYAMA behesded KAUFMAN with his sword on the order of

On the above facts the commission feund the specification of the firet
harge "proved in part, proved except the words '"TSUCHIYA, Naohiko, then a
ergeant major, IJA,' which words are not proved," as to accused KOICHI,
TSUYAMA, and CMOSE, The commission found the specification "not proved"

OICHI, A
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las to accused TSUCHIYA. It is obvious that the commission's findings of

®proved in part® as to KOICHI, KATSUYAMA end ONOSE were based on the come !
mission's mequittal of TSUCHIYA. The findings in this respect do not affect |
|the legality of the commission's findings of "Guilty* as to Charge I as the |
:'Exneptinns made by the commission leaves the specificetion still supporting |
the charge (Sec, 429, N.C. & B,). |
' |
|
|
|

\ _ The convening suthority does not concur in the commission's findings
jof ®not guilty" and "not proved® on Charge I and the specificetion thereunder
las to accused TSUCHIYA (Sec. L'FE—-L H.C. & B.}, becaguse he believes, for the
reasons hereinafter steted, that a prima facie case was established egainst
TSUCHIYA, whir:.‘;. wae not overthrown by rebutting evidence esdduced by him (Sec, |
{156, H.C. & B.). '

4s atated above accused TSUCHIYA was & member of an escorting party of |
jfour perscns commanded by accused ONIOSE which took KAUFMAN from the Kempeitai,|
{14th Division Headquarters, on BABELTHUAF to KOROR for execution, TSUCEITA |
iknew KAUFMAN was to be executed &t the time he was taken into custody by the
lescorting perty. He was an assistant of ONOSE whose mission it was from the
cuteel to assure KAUFLAN's execution., He attended CITOSE every step of the
iway from the time KAUFLAN was teken into custody until he wes executed on
KOROR, end performed such duties es were ordered by ONOSE. He attended the
conference with ONHOSE the night before the execution at which the time and
place of the executlon was discussed and ennounced, He went with CONOSE the
next morning and was present st the execution., Immediately prior to the
llexecution he delivered to KAUFIAl hies personsl effects in compliance with |
ONOSE's orders, and had his plcture teken with KAUFIAY while doing this., 411 |
llof these facts were sdmitted by TSUCHIYA end testified to by other witnesses. |
! There was no contradictory evidence unless TSUCHIYA's stetements, to |
|the effect thet (1) he had no melice towerds KAUFIAN end that he did not wish |
llhim executed; (2) he went in the escort perty with ONOSE in obedience to
llorders and (3) he did not perform the sct of execution, could be considered
{lsuch evidence, These stetements of TSUCHIYA ere einmply a statement of his
{opinion to the effect that because he did not commit the actusl act of execu- |
{tion, he did not murder KAUFIMAY, They do not explain away or overthrow the
i;facts thet he escorted KAUFMAK from BAEELTHUAF to KOHOR for execution and
lassisted ONOSE as necessary until EAUFIWN's execution wes accomplished by
LK].TSUII 4 in his presence,

The very nature of & war crime is such that participetion either in-
|volves the accused as a principsl or not &t all. The extent of participation
is not an element to be considered in the findinge but rather in the guantum
lof sentence (Rev. in case of lst Lt. ¥, TAEICHI, et &l, 21 Nov, 194’5?.
\Section 550, Title 18 of the United States Code defines principals as
|[follows:

"ihoever directly commits any act constituting an
offense defined in any law of the United Stetes,
or alds, abets, coungels, commands, induces, or
procures its commission, is & principal.”

This definition hes in prectice been mede sppliceble in war crimes cases tried
throughout the world, It waries from the gemeral legal concept of who 1s a i
principal only to the extent thst it makes ell persons who are in cogtem-
plation of law parties to a crime principels. It has always been true,
generally speaking, "....every one is a party to an offense who either




| ¥ar. 1946). The remaining stetus, which he might occupy meking hin a

| an€ non-interference was designed es an encouragement to the rerpetrators of
| the crime, He was, with the knowledge of the perpetrators, neasr encugh to

| Allied statesmen as to whom would be puaished for war crimes (War Criminals o

| and functionaries as well as the leaders having a part in war crime acts

pe 1773).
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actually commits the offense or does some act which forms part of the nffanal
or assists in the actual commiseion of the offense or of any amct which forms
part thereof, or directly or indirectly counsels or procures any person to
commit the offense or to do eny sct forming a part thereof or who eids one
who has committed the offense, knowing that he hae committed it, for the
purpose of preventing his apprehension or conviction" (Sec. 72, !4ller on
Crim, Lew).

In the instant case it 1s clear that TSUCHIYA did not counsel, proourd
or command anyone to commit the murder of KAUFMAN or himself strike the blow
that killed FAUFMAN. He was present at the execution but his mere mecqguies=
cence or approvel would not be suffiecient to constitute him an accessory
before the fact (a nrincipal) (Rev. of case It. I, YOSHICEA, et al, dated 20

responsible party to the murder of FAUFFAN, ig thet of an eider and abettor.
This he unquestionably was, He had assisted in escorting FAUFVAN from BAPEIA
TIUAP to KOROR for executlion. He wae present et the exscution. His presence

give essistence and, a& shown by his past performance in escorting KAUFVAN tq
ECROR end carrying out orders of ONOSE at the scene of execution, intended g
do so if it became necessery (see penerslly, Wharton's Crim. Iew (12th Ed.)

pp. 327 = 364), He was a party to the community of unlewful purpose at the

tine the ect wes committed. In such circumstences it is unnecessary to show
thet he exprescly authorized the others to do the act (Sec. 75(c), ¥il, Crim,
Iﬂw: Pe 233]-

It is, in my opinion, cleerly intended by the Potedam Declarstion of
26 July 1945 wherein it states, ".....stern justice chall be meted out to all
war criminsls, including those who have visited cruelties upon our priscners
esves” that ell aiders and gbettors in the murder of our priscmers of war J
should be punished, In this connectlon many pronouncements have been made b

Their Prosecution and Punishment by Sheldon Glueck, p. 191). Both President
Roosevelt and Prime Minister Churchill om 24 March 194/ repeated themselves
in proclaiming punishment for war criminals, Churchill inoluded not only

the miscreants but also their apents, and Roosevelt promised the subordinated

would be puniehed, But even before this the United States Senate unanimously
adopted the concurrent resolution presented by Senator Barkley to the effect
that "the dictates of humanity and honorable conduct in war demand that this
inexcussble slaughter and mistreatment shall cemse and that it is the sense
of this Congress thet those guilty, directly or lndirectly, of these criminal
acts shall be held accountable and punished in a manner commnsurate with

the offenses for which they ere respcnsible "(Cong. Rec. Senate 9 Mar, 1943,
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« The findings of guilty and sentences as to the acoused KDICHI
SUTAMA and ONOSE are approved,

KOICHI, Hirce, KATSUYAMA, Tetsuji, and ONOSE, Ichire, will be trans-
to the ocustody of the Commanding General of the 8th Army, via the firgt
United States ship, to serve their respective sentences of confine-
nt in Sugamo Prison, Tokyo, Japan.

TSUCHITA, Nachiko, who was scquitted, was released from srrest and
returned to Japan.

e,
(L ci./dvma bl
C. A, POWNALL,
Rear AMumiral, U, 8. Navy,
The Commander Marianas Area.
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TE PACIFIO OOMMAND
AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
Headguarters of the Commander in Ohief

Cincpacflt File c/o Fleet Post Offioce,
Al T=26 Ban Francises, Oalifornis.
1 8 APR 1948

The record is, in conformity with Appendix D-14, Naval Courts and Boards,
1937, and Chief of Naval Operations serisl O01P22 of 28 November 1945, tranme-
"l:l.ttﬂ. to the Judge Advocate Gemeral of the Havy to be revised and recorded.

and United States Pacific/Fleet.

|
To: BSecretary of the Navy (Office of the Juige Advocate Gemeral).

Re: BRecord of proceedings of a Military Commission in the cases of KOICHI,
Hiroe, EATSUTAMA, Tetsuji, ONOSE, Ichire amd TSUCHITA, Nachiko.

Coples to:
ComMarianss
Olnopaeflt War Orimes Officer, Guam.
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THE PACIFIC OOMMAND
. AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
Headquarters of the Commander in Chief

{Oincpacflt Mle ofe Fleet Post Office,
A1 7-28 San Francisco, Califormia.
18 APR 1948

Serisl 1040

Oinepacflt does not concur with the convening amthority im his comments
the acquittal of TSUCHITA. It is the preregative and duty of the court
to welgh the evidemce presented to it (Naval Courts and Boards, Sections 304,
). The Navy Department has repeatedly held in effect that the court u--ﬁ

personally heard the witnesses testify, is ordinarily more competent
ve at the facts than is the reviewing amthority (Court Martial Order 10,
931, 16, 16). After a court, acting as the judge of facts has arrived at a
inding as a result of its determination of the facts established by the
evidence, the question for the reviewing muthority is whether there is suf-
iclent evidence to support such a finding, not wvhether an opposite finding
have been jJustified (Court Martial Order 4, 1920, 7). Where, as in
e, the evidence is sufficient vhem "weighed" to support the findings of th
ourt, no error is committed even though the conclusions reached by the court
erronsous in the mind of the convening authority (Court Martial Orders 4,
937, 17; 4, 1935, 6, 6; 3, 1944, 436), In the instent case, 1t is considered
t vhile under orders to accompany the execution party, TSUCHIYA's position
an enlisted man in a party of officers precluded a positive refusal to
roceed with the party. In as much as TSUCHITA himself by word or deed com-
itted no act which made him a participant in the actual murder, it is not
nsidered that presentation of the persenal effects to the deceased at the
ene of the execution makes TSUCHIYA an sccessory, any more than the cameramsn
tock a ploture of the presentation.

Upon the face of the pleadings, the offemse alleged under Charge II and

ecifications 1 and 2 thereunder were preferred to provide for the exigenci

f proof (Naval Courts and Boards, Section 19). In accordance with the Judge
vocate General's action (00-TACHIBANA, Yoshio, et al/A17-20 I(3-19-47 HJH:

164878) roved by the Secretary of the Navy 18 July 1547, (JAG:I:RAS:

4 A17-20/00(6-36-47) 1545678), the findings on Charge II and specifications

and 2 thereunder as to the accused KOICHI might be set sside. However, as

e conviction on this charge and the specifications thereunder are legal, it
is considered that any mction to set them aside should be tskem by the finmal

ewing snthority.

Bubject to the foregoing, the proceedinge, findings of guilty and sen-
ences in the foregoing case of KOICHI, Hiroe, KATSUYTAMA, Tetsuji, ONOSE,
Ichire, and TSUCHIYA, Nachike, and the actien of the conveming authority
thereon, are approved.
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